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Corporate Profile A &/

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company Limited (the “Company” or “ZMJ”) was incorporated in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRG”) on 28 December 2008 as a joint stock company with limited liability.
The Company’s A Shares were listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange on 3 August 2010. The Company was
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 5 December 2012.

The Company is a leading comprehensive coal mining and excavating equipment manufacturer in the PRC. It
focuses on the manufacturing and sales of hydraulic roof supports, and is the largest hydraulic roof support
manufacturer in the PRC. The Company is also engaged in the trading of steel and other raw materials primarily
through its wholly-owned subsidiaries. The Company’s established operating history, high quality products,
strong research and development capabilities, advanced manufacturing processes and extensive sales and
service network are the keys to its success and enable it to maintain its leading position in the PRC coal mining
and excavating equipment market.
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Directors 55
Mr. Jiao Chengyao (Chairman and Executive Director) FAEEE(EFRFNTESE)
Mr. Xiang Jiayu (Vice Chairman and Executive Director) MRREE(FIEZRFHNTEE)
Mr. Wang Xinying (Executive Director) TGS EHTESE)
Mr. Guo Haofeng (Executive Director) PRIETE(HTEE)
(appointed on 10 February 2015) (R=—ZF—RF—HA+HEZ(T)
Mr. Liu Qiang (Executive Director) 2REE(HTEE)
(appointed on 10 February 2015) (R=ZF—AF=-HA+HEZF)
Ms. Liu Yao (Independent non-executive Director) RELZ T (BUIHHTEE)
(appointed on 5 June 2014) (R=F—pIF N7 HEZ(E)
Mr. Jiang Hua (Independent non-executive Director) TERE (B VINTESE)
(appointed on 10 February 2015) (R=ZF—AF-H+HEZ(E)
Mr. Li Xudong (Independent non-executive Director) TR E(BUINTESE)
(appointed on 10 February 2015) (R=F—AF=—H+HEZ(F)
Mr. Wu Guangming (Independent non-executive Director) RIEAFAE(HVIFHTTEE)
(appointed on 10 February 2015) (R-ZF—AF=—H+HEZ(F)
Mr. Lin Zhijun (Independent non-executive Director) MEBERE(BUIHHTESE)
(resigned on 3 April 2014) (R=—F—pq4/9H = AE#T)
Mr. Shao Chunsheng (Vice Chairman and Executive Director) BEEFTE(BIZEFERFNTEE)
(resigned on 10 February 2015) (R=ZF—FF= A+ HBET)
Mr. Fu Zugang (Executive Director and Deputy General Manager) TRER S (7T E B SIAEAEFE)
(resigned on 10 February 2015) (R=—F—AF=H+HEET)
Mr. Li Bin (Independent non-executive Director) IR E (B VIR TEE)
(resigned on 10 February 2015) (R=ZF—AF=H+HEET)
Mr. Gao Guoan (Independent non-executive Director) SRR (B UINTESE)
(resigned on 10 February 2015) (R=—F—AF = H+HEET)
Mr. Luo Jiamang (Independent non-executive Director) SRR EE (B UHHTESE)
(resigned on 10 February 2015) (R=F—AF=H+HEEE)
Supervisors Ex
Mr. Li Chongqing (appointed on 10 February 2015) FERIER-_F—AF_A+HEZF)
Mr. Zhang Zhigiang (appointed on 5 June 2014) SRAEGR A (R F—WFEN AR AEZF)
Mr. Zhou Rong (appointed on 10 February 2015) BEEE(R=—F—AF = H+HEZT)
Mr. Liu Fuying (appointed on 10 February 2015) BtEnE(R=FE—AF A +HEZT)
Mr. Ni Heping IEE e
Mr. Jia Jingcheng ESRBEE
Ms. Xu Mingkai ®wEAG 2
Mr. Xu Yongen (resigned on 5 June 2014) BXBIRER=-F—WEFENH A HABET)
Mr. Wang Tiehan (resigned on 10 February 2015) FEERE(R=ZFE—AF A+ HBEF)
Mr. Ding Hui (resigned on 10 February 2015) TR (R-ZE—AF = A+ HEBET)
Mr. Lv Yu (resigned on 10 February 2015) BRAE(R-FE—AF A+ HEETE)

1 as at the date of this report
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Company Secretary

Mr. Zhang Haibin (@ppointed on 16 February 2015

and such appointment became effective on 2 March)
Mr. Bao Xueliang (resigned on 2 March 2015)
Ms. Chan Yin Wah (assistant to Company Secretary)

Strategy Committee

Mr. Jiao Chengyao (Chairman)
Mr. Xiang Jiayu

Mr. Wang Xinying

Mr. Guo Haofeng

Mr. Wu Guangming

Audit Committee

Mr. Li Xudong (Chairman)
Ms. Liu Yao
Mr. Jiang Hua

Nomination Committee

Mr. Jiang Hua (Chairman)
Mr. Liu Qiang
Ms. Liu Yao

Remuneration and Assessment Committee

Mr. Wu Guangming (Chairman)
Ms. Liu Yao
Mr. Wang Xinying

Authorized Representatives

Mr. Jiao Chengyao
Mr. Zhang Haibin

Legal Advisers

As to Hong Kong and United States laws:
Clifford Chance

As to PRC law:
Zhong Lun Law Firm
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Auditors

International auditors:
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
35th Floor, One Pacific Place
88 Queensway

Hong Kong

Domestic auditors:

BDO CHINA SHU LUN PAN

Certified Public Accountants LLP

4th Floor, Nanjing East Road No. 61, Shanghai, 200002

Principal Place of Business in Hong Kong

18/F, Tesbury Centre,
28 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai,

Hong Kong

Registered Office in the PRC

No. 105, Huashan Road, Zhengzhou
Henan Province
PRC

Headquarter in the PRC

No. 167, 9th Street

Econ-Tech Development Zone, Zhengzhou
Henan Province

PRC

Company’s Website
WWW.ZZM].com

H Share Registrar

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712—1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai, Hong Kong

A Share Registrar

Shanghai Branch of China Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation Limited

36/F, China Insurance Building
No. 166 Lujiazui East Road,
Pudong New District

Shanghai
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Stock Code R3S

H Share: 00564 HA%00564

A Share: 601717 (Shanghai Stock Exchange) ARZ601717(_E/BBHRZ HF)
Principal Banks FEFRELT
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China R TIRTT
Jianshe Road Branch, Zhengzhou SO TR IS 21T
No. 11 West Jianshe Road 2]

Zhengzhou, Henan Province IR

PRC BN TR AR PO ER 115
Bank of China FREIERTT

Longxi Branch, Zhengzhou G iR,

No. 62 Huaihe Road, Zhengzhou ]
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Dear Shareholders,

| am pleased, on behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company Limited, to present
the annual report of the Group for the period from 1 January 2014 to 31
December 2014 (the “2014 Annual Report”).

Jiao Chengyao
Chairman
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In 2014, in response to challenges posed by the fluctuating macroeconomic
conditions, continual worsening conditions of the coal industry, and the
continual shrinkage of the demand for coal mining machinery, all management
staff of ZMJ steered their efforts towards the goal for the year namely “seizing
opportunities, adjusting structure, fostering transformation and refining
management” by strenuously promoting our diversified sales mode externally,
and implementing our market-oriented, profit-based appraisal approach
internally, to continually identify potentials and reduce costs, and continuing
working on the preliminary preparation for our intensive corporate reforms and
transformation and upgrading. Under the challenging conditions, the Company’s
results of operations in 2014 were significantly affected. However, ZMJ still
maintained at the highest level of competitiveness and profitability in the
industry.

In China, there are 8 enterprises in the hydraulic roof support industry which
are larger in scale and can compete in the market. They command nearly 90%
market share of the hydraulic roof support market in the PRC. According to the
statistics of an industry association, as at 31 December 2014, the Company
accounted for 74% among the top 8 enterprises in terms of total profit and
39% among the top 8 enterprises in terms of sales revenue in the hydraulic roof
support industry.
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In 2014, the Company was designated as a pilot entity for implementing dual
reforms for “developing mixed-ownership economy” and “market-oriented
selection of professional managers” as a province-administered enterprise. In
early 2014, the Company attempted the pilot work of market-oriented selection
of professional managers (and such system of market-oriented selection of
professional managers was fully promoted and implemented in early 2015), and
conducted intensive study of the mixed-ownership economy.

In 2014, total purchase orders from the international market grew by 20% year-
on-year, while collection of trade receivables from the international market grew
by 36% year-on-year. We also succeeded in developing the Vietnamese market.
Domestically in the PRC, we achieved sound results in our diversified market
development mode. In 2014, with the Company’s diversified marketing modes
such as professional life-long equipment service, its domestic projects managed
to account for 15% of the total purchase orders on a full-year basis in 2014. It
expanded the span of market of the coal mining machinery industry chain and
addressed the diversified customer requirements.

In 2014, the Company completed the solution in respect of ultra mining
height hydraulic roof support of 8.8 meters, and achieved breakthroughs in
the research and development of large dip angle paste backfilling supports.
The Company also completed the verification of the solution for medium-
thick intelligent automatic welding production line technology and the solution
for the renovation of production lines for oil tanks automation. In 2014, the
manufacturing cycle per 100 units shortened by 10.2% year-on-year. In 2014,
our product quality continued to uplift, with a 34.9% year-on-year decrease in
defective batches internally, and an 8.7% year-on-year decrease in batches
with quality problems externally.

2014 was considered another year full of challenges for the Company and it
exemplified the positive energy of the Company in its endeavours amidst a
period of industrial downturn.

With increasingly more sophisticated consumer demand, the equipment
manufacturing industry in the PRC is gradually demonstrating a clearer pattern
with “integration between manufacturing and service delivery”. Benchmarking
against the development history of international manufacturing giants, the
equipment manufacturing industry of the PRC is witnessing inevitable changes
from pure manufacturing to both manufacturing and service delivery, from
a profit model with primary focus on manufacturing of products to a value-
added profit model whereby full-process services are provided to customers,
and from suppliers of single products to suppliers of comprehensive solutions
and services. The coal mining machinery equipment manufacturing industry is
indeed following a similar trend of development.
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Reforms and innovations are the keys to an enterprise’s success. In the course
of rapid development in more than ten years, ZMJ benefited from the continual
intensive reforms and the innovations. At present, our operations face immense
pressure, but our situation could have been even more challenging without the
release of the benefits from our previous reforms. Meanwhile, we should fully
recognize that the difficulties and challenges facing us today also provide us
with good opportunities for achieving transformations in wider scopes, whereby
ZMJ can grasp the industry downturn to intensify its reforms and carry on with
its innovations, and achieve industry consolidation by making use of the capital
platform and its brand equity.

Based on the prevailing internal and external environments, the Company further
articulated that the new round of strategic development will be directed under
the notion of “intensifying reforms of systems and structures, fostering the
strategy of people-based corporate development, setting firm footholds in the
coal mining machinery industry to achieve development in multiple scopes, and
building an international large-scale conglomerate”. Under the energy structures
in both China and the rest of the world, coal is still the major source of energy
for a relatively long period of time in future (According to the Action Plans for
the Energy Development Strategies (2014-2020) ( B&/R 2 R B BE 1T &)
=12 (2014-20204F))) of the State Council, it has been planned that total
coal consumption will be limited to about 4.2 billion tonnes up to 2020, and
coal consumption will account for at most 62% as a percentage of the primary
energy structure). That having said, the pace of growth of the coal industry will
not be as rapid as during the “Golden Decade for Coal”. To become a century-
lasting enterprise, achieve ongoing operations and sustainable development,
ZMJ must, apart from maintaining its footholds in the coal mining machinery
industry, go beyond coal mining machinery to seek new areas of development
and areas for profit growth, marching towards the goal of becoming an
international large-scale conglomerate. The new round of development
strategies of the Company are summarized as follows:

First, strategic positioning as an international enterprise: Economic globalization
has become an irreversible trend. It is a strategic choice in line with the current
global economic development and also a necessary path to becoming an
international enterprise, for an advantageous enterprise basically equipped with
international competitiveness, to seek self-enhancement to an international
standard, adopt “Outbound Development” strategies, actively participate in
international competition and cooperation, and continually explore the room for
existence and development.

Second, market-oriented corporate governance: A sound mechanism is pivotal
to the virtuous cycle of development of an enterprise. In recent years, ZMJ has
been bold in exploration and implementation in terms of corporate systems and
structures, bringing remarkable improvements in its corporate governance,
albeit the inadequacy in its market-oriented development in comparison with
private enterprises which are fully exposed to market competition. In pursuit of
corporate growth in terms of size and strength, an enterprise which is under
full exposure to market competition needs further intensified, market-oriented
reforms in systems and structures: Leveraging on “developing mixed-ownership
economy” to further optimize shareholding structure and uplift the level of
corporate governance; Having in place a board of directors which operates in
a market-oriented approach, so that it becomes the platform for governance,
for expression of thoughts and for decision-making; Adopting tenure-based
management for senior management staff, promoting a system of professional
managers, and exploring market-oriented mechanisms for remuneration,
incentives, appraisal and restrictions applicable to management and general
staff.
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Third, diversified industry planning: first of all, with its footholds in the coal
mining machinery industry, the Company will build a world class brand of
comprehensive coal mining machinery equipment and service delivery. It will
probe into the international high-end market to seek some market share from
major international players in the coal mining machinery industry, making itself
a world class supplier of comprehensive coal mining machinery equipment and
a worldwide top-notch service provider in coal mining machinery equipment;
Further, it will explore new areas of development and new sources of profit
growth in a timely manner: Firstly, with the setting up of production lines for
producing intelligent structural components and upright posts and oil pressure
levers (37 #+ T /7 T&), the Company will establish its presence in the area of
intelligent equipment by riding on its medium-thick and special steel robotic
welding technology, intelligent and automated production lines, automated
surface technology for mines, in advanced preparation for the industrial 4.0
era. Secondly, the Company will firmly grasp the opportunities presented by the
formation of Henan Machinery and Equipment Investment Group (Jr] =3 1
HEIRE EE), which is primarily constituted by ZMJ, to fully leverage on
the new round of reforms of state-owned enterprises and make good use of the
capital market. Thirdly, the Company will establish its presence in the area of
new energy equipment by riding on its LNG technology and equipment, optimize
its industrial planning, work strenuously on new-energy technology reservation,
and adapt to the trend of structural adjustments of the new energy industries.

Fourth, globalization of human resources: Human resources are the ultimate
source of corporate reforms and innovations, and the most substantial
resources for corporate development. By steadfastly adhering to the strategy of
people-based corporate development under the mindset of “innovations, open-
mindedness and inclusion”, sustainably optimizing the structure of existing
human resources under a market-oriented mindset, creating a scientific system
of human resources incubation and development, having in place a clear path of
career advancement, adopting a reasonable system of remuneration and, from
a global perspective and under a market-oriented mechanism, recruiting and
retaining people of high caliber under a human resources mechanism via both
training and selective hiring, we will be able to lay a solid foundation upon which
we will build a century-lasting ZMJ.

In 2015, our first goal will be to solidify our footholds in the coal mining
machinery industry, i.e. to secure our existence before seeking further
development. The second priority will be to have bold attempts in new areas.
Further, we shall further intensify the reforms of systems and structures and
embark upon the strategies of people-based corporate development, to foster
rapid growth of our outstanding management staff and core members under a
market-oriented mindset and approach. In line with this general line of thought
for our work, our annual goal for 2015 has been set as “exploring market under
innovative mindset, reducing costs via multiple channels, preserving funds with
full efforts, and fostering transformation by grasping opportunities”.
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Facing the future opportunities and challenges, the board of directors of the
Company will strictly adhere to its designated duties in order to cope with the
challenges and grasp opportunities. Based on the principle of maintaining the
Company’s leading position in coal mining machinery industry, we will facilitate
the acceleration of strategic transformation, promote development in terms of
quality and comprehensively enhance our profitability as well as development
and management ability, striving for bringing higher and better investment
return for the Shareholders.

Last but not least, on behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere

gratitude to the Shareholders, the society and our friends for their trust and
support.

Jiao Chengyao
Chairman

17 March 2015
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Construct a high-quality support base,
create a globally supported brand,

and create a sustainable
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery
Group.
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Review of the Group’s Overall Operations in
2014

1. The Group’s Overall Operations in the Reporting

Period

In 2014, the Group realized revenue of RMB6,124.46 million,
representing a decrease of 24.0% as compared with 2013.
Net profit was RMB193.33 million, representing a decrease of

76.90% as compared with 2013.

Overview

The Group is a leading comprehensive coal mining and
excavating equipment manufacturer in the PRC. Our
established operating history, high quality products, strong
in-house research and development capabilities, advanced
manufacturing processes and extensive sales and service
network are the keys to our success and allow us to maintain
our leading position in the PRC coal mining and excavating
equipment market. The Group’s products and businesses
primarily include: (i) hydraulic roof supports; (i) steel and
other raw materials trading; (iii) spare parts; and (iv) other coal

mining equipment.

Results of Operations

The following table sets forth a summary, for the year of 2014
indicated, of our consolidated results of operations.

>

E_Ei MEREEAREEERD

BEPAREBREBE2BTN

—NEAEBEE2FEREER
Ammmﬁ%ﬁ BT —=ZF T

24.0% : BIREFE19333E BT B
T— = F T PE76.90% °

e

VEA P B 4B SE M B AR BRAR TR R L
B AEEKANCEFES - BEE
0 SRR ) - LM ERLERR
RERKHEE RRBEELE T RRMIED
PRI RASE - AP FPIRE A A R
B RIBRET IS EEN - AEE
WEMREBEZZRE  ()REXZZE - i)
S 4 K2 H A BRRHE 5~ (i) B 14 B Gv) EL A
BRIERRAE -

RS

TREJIAEERAR _E—NFENE
FEEREME -




Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Co., Ltd.

BINEBEEREBR D ERAE]

Management Discussion and Analysis & & 51 3% &2 25 47

2014 2013
—E—lF —E—=F
RMB millions RMB millions
AREEHET AREEET
Revenue N 6,124.46 8,055.31
Cost of sales SHE R (5,070.47) (6,233.12)
Gross profit EF 1,053.99 1,822.20
Other income Hablr A 106.67 107.36
Other gains and losses Hilez REE (342.43) (172.02)
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHMAE (216.27) (257.85)
Administrative expenses TR (279.51) (333.53)
Research and development expenses s (105.69) (147.05)
Share of profit (loss) of associates B A REF(EE) 18.13 (11.74)
Share of profit of joint ventures FE(LEEDERT 0.09 0.09
Finance costs BERA (2.38) 3.79)
Profit before tax I B B S ) 232.58 1,003.67
Income tax expense FriSHiRX (39.25) (166.69)
Profit for the year FEREF 193.33 836.98
Other comprehensive income (expense) Ememl A (L)
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently AJEERA BB D BE 157
to profit or loss: ZIEA
Fair value loss on available-for-sale financial assets AHEHEEZSREEAFEER (32.85) (22.42)
Share of fair value loss on available-for-sale JEMRERE AR A HEEZ
financial assets of an associate TREEANTEESS (10.47) -
Exchange differences arising on translation WMEEL ZENZ5E (0.92) 0.11
Other comprehensive expense for the year, net of income tax  FERNEM 2 EEX - FKRETEH (44.24) (22.31)
Total comprehensive income for the year FREEMWALELLE 149.09 814.68
Profit for the year attributable to: AR AT EEFREF
Owners of the Company /NG 205.19 866.71
Non-controlling interests FEIZERR A A (11.86) (29.73)
193.33 836.98
Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to: AT ALTEGFRAZEWALEE
Owners of the Company PN 3 160.95 844.41
Non-controlling interests FEIERR (11.86) (29.73)
149.09 814.68
EARNINGS PER SHARE FREEF
— Basic and diluted (RMB) —EAREE(ARKE) 0.13 0.53
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As the Group recorded a decrease in our revenue, our cost of
sales decreased by 18.7% from RMB6,233.12 million for the
year ended 31 December 2013 to RMB5,070.47 million for
the year ended 31 December 2014.

Gross Profit

Driven by the factors above, our gross profit decreased by
42.2% from RMB1,822.20 million for the year ended 31
December 2013 to RMB1,053.99 million for the year ended
31 December 2014.

Due to the increasingly intensive market competition, our
gross profit margin decreased from 22.6% for the year
ended 31 December 2013 to 17.2% for the year ended 31
December 2014.

Management Discussion and Analysis &2 Bt iREE D47
Revenue KA
Our revenue decreased by 24.0% from RMB8,055.31 million AEBRABHEZZE—=F+=A
for the year ended 31 December 2013 to RMB6,124.46 =T —HLEFEMARKS06I1EE
million for the year ended 31 December 2014, mainly due TR 240%EHE T —NF+—A
to demand in domestic coal market continued to diminish T —HLEFEMARK6124468 8
in 2014 which resulted in a decrease in domestic market T FERTE-NFERNERTISH
demand for the Group’s products and the corresponding KIBFEZEN  SEAMSHERERS
decrease in the Group’s revenue from hydraulic roof supports. KA EBREBRESZEHBAT
P& FTEL -
The following table sets forth the breakdown of our revenue by TREH AN EBIRE @M EBE DR
product and business (in RMB millions): AR (B ARBEET)
2014 2013
—E—OF —ET—=
RMB millions RMB millions
AREEETT AREEHET
Sales of hydraulic roof supports RIBEZ B 7 SHE 3,701.45 4,851.51
Revenue from steel and other raw materials trading S8 K H AR E 5 2 WA 1,679.71 2,393.04
Sales of spare parts o tHE 540.20 612.84
Sales of other coal mining equipment H R LG 2 HE 89.37 128.53
E MU 113.73 69.39
6,124.46 8,055.31
Cost of Sales SHER A

HRAEERABAT R - NEBEHEE
RABEBEE-_T—=5+-"F=+—
BIEFEMNARYG233.125ETED
187% 2T —MF+-A=+—HIL
FEMARES07047TABTT °

E7

ST EMEAE#ES  AEEEFHER
TE-=ZF+-F=+—HIFEEX
ARBE18220FBILRV422%E_F
—E+-A=+—HBILFEEHARE

- —

1,063.99E & 7T °

HRTISHFEEME - MAEEHE
MEHBE-_Z—=%+-A=1+—81
IEFEM26% THRE_FT—NF+=
A=+—RIEFEMT2% -
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Other Income

Our other income decreased by 0.6% from RMB107.36
million for the year ended 31 December 2013 to RMB 106.67
million for the year ended 31 December 2014.

Other Gains and Losses

Qur other gains and losses increased by 99.1% from
RMB172.02 million for the year ended 31 December 2013 to
RMB342.43 million for the year ended 31 December 2014,
primarily due to an increase in our allowance for doubtful
debts.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

Our selling and distribution expenses decreased by 16.1%
from RMB257.85 million for the year ended 31 December
2013 to RMB 216.27 million for the year ended 31 December
2014, primarily as a result of a decrease in transportation and
logistics expenses as our sales volumes decreased.

Administrative Expenses

Our administrative expenses decreased by 16.2% from
RMB333.53 million for the year ended 31 December 2013 to
RMB279.51 million for the year ended 31 December 2014,
primarily as a result of a decrease in salary costs.

Staff Costs and Remuneration Policy

Our staff costs decreased by 9.6% from RMB455.63 million
for the year ended 31 December 2013 to RMB412.06 million
for the year ended 31 December 2014, primarily as a result
of a decrease in our revenue and a decrease in the numbers
of staff. The staff remuneration of the Group comprises of
basic salary and bonus payment, which is determined with
reference to the operating results of the Group and results
of performance assessment on the employees. The Group
insisted the orientation towards efficiency and results as well
as the focus on top-tier staff. It also strived to ensure scientific
and reasonable allocation of income.

Hbg A

AEBEMBRABEHEZS—=F+=
AR=T—HIEFEMNARK10736EE
TRV EHE T —NE+—A
=+ —HIEFENAREI0667EETT

Hitpe i & 518

AEBEMEEREBEBEEHE S
— =+ _A=+t—BLEFEMAR
172028 BL iM% E28=—2F
—NE+ A=+ —BHIEFENARE
MASEETL  TEHNRRIREL A
BN o

HERDHERX

AEBEERDHEAIBHET
—ZF+_A=+t—BLEFENAR
Ko5785 B B A 16I%EHE-T
—NE+-—A=+—HIEFENARE
1621 EBIL  TEHNEEE R E
Bugdn RYm SR o

THRAX

AEETHRRAZAEEE-Z—=F1+=
A=+—HILFEMARKEILIE
BB 162% 2B E T —NFE+=
A=+—RHIEFEMARB2951 88
JL o EERRAIKARD

BIARETHMEE

REBEINABHEZS—=F+=
A=+—HIEFEMARKLE63TE
TRLVICKhEHE T —NE+ A
—+—ALEFEMARBH206EE
T EZARKRATE - BT AZR
Ao ANEE B TH Bk EATE M EE
TEMB D4R - HE T E KB AEE
EERBEREZENETE - AEEERF
LA ML AER - BiFm—4KE8T
AR BORRBADREZEIE -
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Research and Development Expenses

Our research and development expenses decreased by 28.1%
from RMB147.05 million for the year ended 31 December
2013 to RMB105.69 million for the year ended 31 December
2014, primarily as a result of our effective control of research
and development expenses and adjustments to investments in
research and development according to market situation.

Share of Profit of Associates

Share of profit of associates increased by 254.4% from a loss
of RMB11.74 million for the year ended 31 December 2013 to
a profit of RMB18.13 million for the year ended 31 December
2014, primarily as a result of an increase in the profit of our
associates.

Finance Costs

Our finance costs decreased by 37.2% from RMB3.79 million
for the year ended 31 December 2013 to RMB2.38 million for
the year ended 31 December 2014, primarily as a result of a
decrease in interest expenses on our bank borrowings due to
a decrease in the average balance of our bank borrowings.

Profit Before Tax

Being affected by the factors referred to above in aggregate,
our profit before tax decreased by 76.8% from RMB1,003.67
million for the year ended 31 December 2013 to RMB232.58
million for the year ended 31 December 2014.

Income Tax Expense

Our income tax expense decreased by 76.5% from
RMB166.69 million for the year ended 31 December 2013
to RMB39.25 million for the year ended 31 December 2014,
primarily as a result of a decrease in our taxable profit for the
year. Our effective tax rate for the year ended 31 December
2014 increased to 16.9% from 16.6% for the year ended 31
December 2013.
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AEBAREBAEHEE_S—=F1+=
A=+—HLFENARKE147055
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Profit for the Year

Being affected by the factors referred to above in aggregate,
our profit and total comprehensive income decreased by
76.9% from RMB836.98 million for the year ended 31
December 2013 to RMB193.33 million for the year ended 31

December 2014.

Profit Attributable to Owners of the Company

Based on the factors referred to above, profit attributable
to owners of the Company decreased by 76.3% from
RMB866.71 million for 2013 to RMB205.19 million for 2014.

Cash Flows and Capital Expenditures

During 2014, the Group had RMB1,821.66 million in cash
and cash equivalents. The Group’s cash and cash equivalents

primarily consist of cash and bank deposits.

FREF

SAMARZ AT E  AEEF NG
FkzEBRAEEEEHE-_T—=F
+ZA=+—HLEFEMHARES36.98
BEILNR769%EHE —_ZT—NF
+ZA=+—HLEFEMHARE19333

i —

BEIT°

A R R ER FEAL T

ARl gEAE - ARAQFIRRRESF)
HE T —=—FMARB67TTEET
BAT76.3% = — T —F M ARE205.19

e —

BEJT °

RERREAZN

—EF - AEEHRERENRSSE
BYARE182166E BT ° AEEIR
SR\ CESEMESRERE KIRTHE

2014 2013

—E—mF —E—=F

RMB millions RMB millions

AR¥EHER AREBEETT

Net cash from (used in) operating activities EEETE (PR ) IR e %58 232.86 (576.82)

Net cash used in investing activities WEREFARE FE (166.75) (465.91)

Net cash used in financing activities MEEETRRSFE (289.11) (466.45)

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents R MASEERIFRE (223.00) (1,509.18)

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EXREH o w8 (1.77) (43.21)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of year FYHRS RIESEEY 2,046.43 3,598.82

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year FRNES RIESEEY 1,821.66 2,046.43
Operating Activities ReEES

Net cash from operating activities in 2014 was RMB232.86
million, derived primarily by deducting from the profit before
taxation, the following items: (i) loss of doubtful debts of
RMB348.07 million, (i) a decrease in trade and other
payables of RMB169.12 million; (i) an increase in trade and

other receivables of RMB147.08 million.

RZE-—NFEETHMBRSFE
BAREE2286EHE T 0 EBEUTA
FEARBHRIBATEBTES : ()
RIFIBLAAREMBOTEE L (1B 5
REMEMFIBERID ARK160.128 8
TC ¢ (i) B 2 I EAth UK R IR IS I A R EE
147.08B & T °
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Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities in 2014 was RMB166.75
million, primarily comprising: (i) payment of RMB1,260.00
million from the purchase of short-term structured deposits
with banks; (i) receipt of proceeds of RMB1,410.82 million
from the disposal of short-term structured deposits with
banks; (i) payment of RMB396.66 million due to bank
deposits with a maturity of over three months; (iv) withdrawal
of bank deposits with a maturity of over three months of
RMB460 million; and (v) payment of pledged bank deposits
of RMB462.22 million, for the issuance of bank notes that we
used to purchase raw materials; (vi) withdrawal of pledged
bank deposits of RMB510.32 million; and (vii) expenses of
RMB369.24 million from the purchase of bonds.

Financing Activities

Net cash used in financing activities in 2014 was RMB289.11
million, primarily consisting of (i) payment of dividends of
RMB267.49 million; (ii) repayment of bank borrowings of
RMB39.24 million.

Capital Expenditures

We incurred capital expenditures of RMB217.09 million
in the year ended 31 December 2014, for purchase of
property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and lease
prepayments.

Commitments and Contingent Liabilities
Capital Commitments

As of 31 December 2014, our commitments consisted
of capital commitments that have been authorized and
contracted for in the amount of RMB56.09 million and capital
commitments that have been authorized but not contracted
for in the amount of RMB25.91 million, and operating lease
commitments of RMB73.13 million.
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Contingent Liabilities

During the year, the Group has endorsed and derecognised
certain bills receivable for the settlement of trade and other
payables with full recourse. In the opinion of the directors
of the Company, the risk of the default in payment of the
endorsed bills receivable is low because all endorsed bills
receivable are issued and guaranteed by reputable PRC banks.
The maximum exposure to the Group that may result from the
default of these endorsed and derecognised bills receivable at

the end of each reporting period is as follows:

AR

RAFE » AEBEUSERKR RS
FREEEZFAGEEA2HEBRE
2B REMENTUE - KAREER
B HRBEBSEZENEET REE
RiFz BRI N RIBEER - K
NBEEZEBEEZRBRTK - RER
EHR  AEBEAREEXNZESER
BUHTERR 2 FE U 215 T 784 2 SRRl
o :

2014 2013
—E-mF —T=%F
RMB millions RMB millions

ARBEER ARBBEST

Outstanding endorsed bills receivable with recourse

BEBFEZAAEEESE
e

765.36 1,782.53

Working Capital and Indebtedness

The following table sets forth details of our current assets and
liabilities as of 31 December 2014 (in RMB millions):

EERLRAR
FRHFN-F-mE+—A=+—A
AEE B AR A B (A
REEET)

2014 2013
—B-mE —T=F
RMB millions RMB millions

ARBEER ARBEST

CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Prepaid lease payments FENHEERIE 8.68 8.66
Inventories 7E 1,449.17 1,639.36
Loan receivables from an associate FEU — KB N a3 I8 80.00 50.00
Trade and other receivables B 5 N EH A ENIE 4,353.75 4,675.44
Finance lease receivables BhE TR S I GRIA 7.83 -
Long-term receivables within one year — 4 N E B R A e I 2koE 31.92 -
Other financial assets HihepEE 505.00 655.82
Tax recoverable Al Y IR IE 9.23 9.80
Pledged bank deposits EERIRITIER 246.32 294.41
Bank balances and cash IRITER KB 2,368.32 2,656.43
Total Current Assets mEEERE 9,060.22 9,989.92
CURRENT LIABILITIES bk =R
Trade and other payables B5 REMENIE 2,044.65 2,223.41
Advances from customers EFPE® 450.40 562.49
Tax liabilities HIEAE 2.70 26.82
Borrowings E3=d 97.17 136.05
2,594.92 2,948.77
NET CURRENT ASSETS MEEEFE 6,465.30 7,041.16
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The Company’s net current assets decreased from
RMB7,041.16 million as of 31 December 2013 to
RMB6,465.30 million as of 31 December 2014, primarily due
to a decrease in trade and other receivables and a decrease in
advances from customers.

As at 31 December 2014, our outstanding borrowings, which
wholly consist of short-term bank borrowings, amounted to
RMB97.17 million, there are no material financial covenants
relating to our outstanding borrowings.

In 2014, our available credit line from various financial
institutions amounted to RMB4,860 million. As of 31
December 2013, approximately RMB6,096 million of our
credit lines from various domestic and foreign financial
institutions remained unused.
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AARREEEFEE_S—=—F+=
A=+—HMARB7041.16EE LR
E-T-ME+-F=+—HHARKE
6,465.30 8 &L+ E & B R EWERR &
HiERFR D AR BPIESHRD

WoE-—mE+-A=+—8  AAT
REEER(BARMRFTER) AA
REOITEET - mARKERERY
AR B -

ZE—OF - ARFBREZR S B
B REREEARB4L860EE T °
RZE—=F+=-_A=+—H  &ARQHa
RAEZRENINERIEENEABEED
AREE6,0068 BITIARER -

Capital Adequacy Ratio BEARTELEE
2014 2013
—E—-F —T—=F
Gearing ratio BEBEHR 1.0% 1.4%

Gearing ratio is calculated by dividing the total interest-bearing
liabilities at the end of the year by total equity at the end of the
year and multiplying by 100%. In our case, interest-bearing
liabilities include only our interest-bearing borrowings.

Our gearing ratio decreased from 1.4% as of 31 December
201310 1.0% as of 31 December 2014, primarily as a result
of the repayment of bank borrowings during the year.

BERBLEXTDRFRGEBERER
IASREESARE - BIR100%:TE - 3Lk
PSR - FHEABEBEHMNR
a8 -

BIMEERBLER_T—=F1+=
A=+—BM14% FEE-ZT N4
+=—A=+—Bf1.0% ' TEHRNKF
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Liquidity Risk REBESRAR
In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors REEBRBESRRE  ~AEEZE
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed EREFEEERETNBNAEE
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s eiEEN—TKEREeMREEE
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash V) BEBERERNTE - 18
flows. The management monitors the utilization of bank Bie R EENER - R
borrowings and ensures compliance with loan covenants. HSPENRRE -
The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual TRHEINAEEIFTESRBERE
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities based on the WEEEERAR T ELEHA - %
agreed repayment terms. The table has been drawn up based FIEDIBBEERANRE A H BRI N
on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on NxFANEREERTERSR
the earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay. EHRE  ZRERBEMNELRAESRS
The table includes both interest and principal cash flows. ME °
Liquidity Risk REBE SRR
Weighted
effective  On demand Total
average  or less than 3 months 1year to 2years to Over undiscounted Garrying
interest rate 3 months to 1 year 2 years 5years 5years  cash flows amount
MEER REX KRBE
TaRE FORMEA MEAZEIE 15525 2 E5F L5 F RERHE FEE
% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
% AREFT ARETT ARETT ARBTT AREFT ARETT ARET:R
The Group rEE
Asat 31 December 2014 ~ RZZ—M%E
+=ZA=+-H
Trade and other payables B 5 REMERN
HI8 - 1,774,580 240,135 - - - 2,014.715 2014715
Borrowings EE 28 632 98,643 - - - 99,275 97,170
1,775,212 338,778 - - - 2,113,990 2,111,885
Credit Risk FEERR

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial 10ss to
the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties is arising from:

o the carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated
statements of financial position; and

o the amount of contingent liabilities in relation to the
financial guarantees issued by the Group and bills
receivable endorsed by the Group with full recourse
as disclosed in note 43 of the financial statements
prepared under IFRS.

R_E—=ZFR_FT—NF+=_A
=+—H  AEENEXNEERRGE
HERRSGHFENMSAEERZH
%k PR TRIEEAL

. RAEMBHRRARLE B CHER
ERMEBEENREE: &

. RIZIR BB 15 R s 2R R AR LY
BT ER R M 43P IR R AR R [
TEHMBSERARBHEORABER
AEBEAAEHMBREZEEE
EKRRIEEHE -
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In order to minimize the credit risk, the management of the
Company has delegated a team responsible for determination
of credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up actions are taken to
recover overdue debts. In addition, the management of the
Company reviews the recoverability of each trade debt at
the end of each reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this
regard, the management of the Company considers that the
Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the risk of
the default in payment of the endorsed bills receivable is
low because all endorsed bills receivable are issued and
guaranteed by reputable PRC banks.

The Group has concentration of credit risk on liquid funds
which are deposited with several banks. However, the credit
risk on bank balances is limited because the majority of the
counterparties are state-owned banks with good reputation or
banks with good credit rating assigned by international credit-
rating agencies and with good reputation.

The Group has no concentration of credit risk on the Group’s
trade receivables and bills receivable as the Group has a
number of diverse customers.

Interest Rate Risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation
to variable-rate pledged bank deposits, variable-rate bank
balances and variable-rate borrowings. Currently, the Group
does not have a specific policy to manage its interest rate
risk, but the management will closely monitor interest rate
exposures and consider hedging significant interest rate risk
should the need arise.

Please refer to note 6(b) of the financial statements prepared
under IFRSs for more quantitative information about the
Company’s credit risk.
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Currency Risk

The primary economic environment in which the Company
and its principal subsidiaries operate is the PRC and their
functional currency is RMB. However, certain transactions of
the Company and its principal subsidiaries including sales and
purchases of goods are denominated in foreign currencies.

The Group currently do not have a foreign currency hedging
policy but the management of the Group monitors foreign
exchange exposure by closely monitoring the foreign exchange
risk profile and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.

The Group is mainly exposed to the foreign currency risk
between USD/RMB and EUR/RMB and HKD/RMB. Please refer
to note 6(b) of the financial statements prepared under IFRSs
for more quantitative information about the Group’s currency
risk.

Other Price Risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its
investments in listed equity securities. The Group’s equity
price risk is mainly concentrated on equity instruments
operating in coal industry sector quoted in the Stock
Exchange. In addition, the Group has appointed a special team
to monitor the price risk and will consider hedging the risk
exposure should the need arise.

Please refer to note 6(b) of the financial statements prepared
under IFRSs for more quantitative information about the
Company’s other price risk.
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2.

Major Work Done in 2014

In 2014, in response to challenges posed by the fluctuating
macroeconomic conditions, continual worsening conditions
of the coal industry, and the continual shrinkage of the
demand for coal mining machinery, all management staff
of ZMJ steered their efforts towards the goal for the year
namely “seizing opportunities, adjusting structure, fostering
transformation and refining management” by strenuously
promoting our diversified sales mode externally, and
implementing our market-oriented, profit-based appraisal
approach internally, to continually identify potentials and
reduce costs, and continuing working on the preliminary
preparation for our intensive corporate reforms and
transformation and upgrading. Under the challenging
conditions, the Group’s results of operations in 2014 were
significantly affected. According to the statistics of China
National Coal Machinery Industry Association (7 [2 173
&), ZMJ accounted for 74% among the top 8 enterprises in
terms of the absolute value of the total profit and 39% among
the top 8 enterprises in terms of sales revenue in the hydraulic
roof support industry, maintaining at the highest level of
competitiveness and profitability in the industry.

In 2014, the Company was designated as a pilot entity for
implementing dual reforms for “developing mixed-ownership
economy” and “market-oriented selection of professional
managers” as a province-administered enterprise. In early
2014, the Company attempted the pilot work of market-
oriented selection of professional managers (and such system
of market-oriented selection of professional managers
was fully promoted and implemented in early 2015), and
conducted intensive study of the mixed-ownership economy.
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Management Discussion and Analysis B8

In 2014, total purchase orders from the international
market grew by 20% year-on-year, while collection of trade
receivables from the international market grew by 36% year-
on-year. We also succeeded in developing the Vietnamese
market. Domestically in the PRC, we achieved sound results
in our diversified market development mode. In 2014, with the
Company’s diversified marketing modes such as professional
life-long equipment service, its domestic projects managed
to account for 15% of the total purchase orders on a full-year
basis in 2014. It expanded the span of market of the coal
mining machinery industry chain and addressed the diversified
customer requirements.

In 2014, the Company completed the solution in respect of
ultra mining height hydraulic roof support of 8.8 meters, and
achieved breakthroughs in the research and development
of large dip angle paste backfilling supports. The Company
also completed the verification of the solution for medium-
thick intelligent automatic welding production line technology
and the solution for the renovation of production lines for
oil tanks automation. In 2014, the manufacturing cycle per
100 units shortened by 10.2% year-on-year. In 2014, our
product quality continued to uplift, with a 34.9% year-on-year
decrease in defective batches internally, and an 8.7% year-
on-year decrease in batches with quality problems externally.

2014 was considered another year full of challenges for the
Group and it exemplified the positive energy of the Group in its
endeavours amidst a period of industrial downturn.

Il. The Board’s Discussion and Analysis of Future
Development of the Company

(1)

Competitive Landscape and Development
Trend of the Industry

Amidst economic downturn around the globe and weak
economic performance in the PRC, the coal industry
experienced more prominent excessive market supply,
augmented stocking up, dipped prices and lowered efficiency
in 2014, as affected by the weak market demand, over-
construction of production capacity and large-scale imports.
The entire industry was posed with challenges, and coal
enterprises faced increasingly immense pressure in their
operations. It is expected that such trend will continue in 2015
and excessive supply in the coal market is expected to remain
in the short run.
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During the “Golden Decade” of the coal industry, a lot of
capital and enterprises were attracted to join the coal mining
machinery industry, especially foreign conglomerates,
enterprises of military industry background, and private
capital flooding in to the industry, which underwent a period
of massive capacity expansion which greatly outpaced the
growth in market demand. In the past three years, with the
shrinking market of coal mining machinery, overcapacity in
the industry has become more prominent. This has resulted
in the intensified competition today, and such competition is
spreading out to the global market. In 2015, competition in
the coal mining machinery market will remain fierce, in both
the domestic and international markets.

With increasingly more sophisticated consumer demand, the
equipment manufacturing industry in the PRC is gradually
demonstrating a clearer pattern with “integration between
manufacturing and service delivery”. Benchmarking against
the development history of international manufacturing
giants, the equipment manufacturing industry of the PRC is
witnessing inevitable changes from pure manufacturing to
both manufacturing and service delivery, from a profit model
with primary focus on manufacturing of products to a value-
added profit model whereby full-process services are provided
to customers, and from suppliers of single products to
suppliers of comprehensive solutions and services. The coal
mining machinery equipment manufacturing industry is indeed
following a similar trend of development.

Development Strategies

First, strategic positioning as an international enterprise:
Economic globalization has become an irreversible trend. It
is a strategic choice in line with the current global economic
development and also a necessary path to becoming an
international enterprise, for an advantageous enterprise
basically equipped with international competitiveness, to
seek self-enhancement to an international standard, adopt
“Outbound Development” strategies, actively participate in
international competition and cooperation, and continually
explore the room for existence and development.
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Second, market-oriented corporate governance: A sound
mechanism is pivotal to the virtuous cycle of development
of an enterprise. In recent years, ZMJ has been bold in
exploration and implementation in terms of corporate systems
and structures, bringing remarkable improvements in its
corporate governance, albeit the inadequacy in its market-
oriented development in comparison with private enterprises
which are fully exposed to market competition. In pursuit of
corporate growth in terms of size and strength, an enterprise
which is under full exposure to market competition needs
further intensified, market-oriented reforms in systems and
structures: Leveraging on “developing mixed-ownership
economy” to further optimize shareholding structure and uplift
the level of corporate governance; Having in place a board of
directors which operates in a market-oriented approach, so
that it becomes the platform for corporate governance, for
expression of thoughts and for decision-making; Adopting
tenure-based management for senior management staff,
promoting a system of professional managers, and exploring
market-oriented mechanisms for remuneration, incentives,
appraisal and restrictions applicable to management and
general staff.

Third, diversified industry planning: first of all, with its
footholds in the coal mining machinery industry, the Group
will build a world class brand of comprehensive coal mining
machinery equipment and service delivery. It will probe into
the international high-end market to seek some market share
from major international players in the coal mining machinery
industry, making itself a world class supplier of comprehensive
coal mining machinery equipment and a worldwide top-notch
service provider in coal mining machinery equipment; Further,
it will explore new areas of development and new sources
of profit growth in a timely manner: Firstly, with the setting
up of production lines for producing intelligent structural
components and upright posts and oil pressure levers (37 i+
FFrT8), the Group will establish its presence in the area of
intelligent equipment by riding on its medium-thick and special
steel robotic welding technology, intelligent and automated
production lines, automated surface technology for mines,
in advanced preparation for the industrial 4.0 era. Secondly,
the Group will firmly grasp the opportunities presented by the
formation of Henan Machinery and Equipment Investment
Group (f] EI# A &= s 4% & £ ), which is primarily
constituted by ZMJ, to fully leverage on the new round of
reforms of state-owned enterprises and make good use of the
capital market. Thirdly, the Group will establish its presence
in the area of new energy equipment by riding on its LNG
technology and equipment, optimize its industrial planning,
work strenuously on new-energy technology reservation, and
adapt to the trend of structural adjustments of the new energy
industries.
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Fourth, globalization of human resources: Human resources
are the ultimate source of corporate reforms and innovations,
and the most substantial resources for corporate development.
By steadfastly adhering to the strategy of people-based
corporate development under the mindset of “innovations,
open-mindedness and inclusion”, sustainably optimizing
the structure of existing human resources under a market-
oriented mindset, creating a scientific system of human
resources incubation and development, having in place a clear
path of career advancement, adopting a reasonable system
of remuneration and, from a global perspective and under a
market-oriented mechanism, recruiting and retaining people
of high caliber under a human resources mechanism via both
training and selective hiring, we will be able to lay a solid
foundation upon which we will build a century-lasting ZMJ.

Operations Plan

In 2015, our first goal will be to solidify our footholds in the
coal mining machinery industry, i.e. to secure our existence
before seeking further development. The second priority
will be to have bold attempts in new areas. Further, we
shall further intensify the reforms of systems and structures
and embark upon the strategies of people-based corporate
development, to foster rapid growth of our outstanding
management staff and core members under a market-
oriented mindset and approach. In line with this general line of
thought for our work, our annual goal for 2015 has been set
as “exploring market under innovative mindset, reducing costs
via multiple channels, preserving funds with full efforts, and
fostering transformation by grasping opportunities”.

First, sales will lead the way. Sales will be our focal point in
2015 and beyond, while sales orders and cash flow will be
the physical representation of our efforts in sales. Amidst
a challenging environment, it is more important for the
Company’s sales efforts to enshrine its “wolf” team spirit,
with all staff members of the Company fighting for victory and
working under the clear target of “market-oriented external
development”. In 2015, efforts shall be made to fully support
sales, whether in product delivery time, product quality, cost
control, level of after-sales services, logistics support etc. Our
sales team shall also initiate innovative ideas and strive for
growth in both sales orders and collection of trade receivables
albeit the challenging environment.
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Second, cost reduction will provide support. All staff members
shall contribute to cost reduction by understanding the
constituents of our costs and helping to stringently control
non-production expenses and limit production expenses
to a reasonable level, thereby controlling costs via multiple
channels.

Third, capital funds will be crucial. Capital funds will be crucial
to our existence and development. Cash is king under the
current situation, and our ability to collect trade receivables
within as short time as possible and our ability to expedite the
flow of capital (and goods) among different business segments
will determine ZMJ’s ability to sustain our existence in this
round of reshuffling in the industry.

Fourth, transformation will be the key. Selecting appropriate
new areas for corporate development and boldly making
the first move at the right point will be necessary for the
strategic development of the Company and more importantly
for boosting morale and enabling cohesion during an
extraordinary period of time.

Fifth, a market-oriented system and structure and human
sources will perpetually secure success in all of our efforts.

Potential Risks

Industry risk: The risk of continual downturn of the coal
industry. In case of continual downturn of the coal industry,
the coal mining machinery market will continue to shrink and
the challenges facing us will be more severe.

Policy risk: Any adjustments in the PRC’s relevant planning
and policies for the coal industry and relevant policies of
environmental protection will affect the market conditions and
room for development of the Group.

Foreign exchange risk: Foreign exchange risk exists in the
Company’s international business along with the Company’s
ongoing efforts in international business development.
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Directors
Executive Directors

Mr. Jiao Chengyao (£ 7#&2g), aged 51, is the Chairman and executive
Director of the Company. Mr. Jiao is a professor-level senior engineer. He
graduated from China Institute of Mining and Technology (P B #& 2 £2F5)
(now known as China University of Mining and Technology (7 B 8& 3£ A £2)),
majoring in mechanical design, manufacture and automation and obtained a
bachelor’s degree in engineering in July 1985. He obtained a master’s degree
in engineering from China University of Mining and Technology in December
2003, and obtained a doctoral degree in economics from Huazhong University
of Science and Technology in December 2007. From July 1985 to May 1992,
he served as a technician, a production dispatcher and an engineer of the No.
1 machinery sub-plant of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From May
1992 to May 1993, he was the manager of Zhengshen Import Vehicles Repair
Station (£F3% 3 M 3588 4 {& k). From May 1993 to January 1998, he was
the deputy plant manager and the plant manager of the No. 1 machinery sub-
plant of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From January 1998 to July
2000, he was the deputy plant manager of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery
Factory. From July 2000 to October 2002, he was the plant manager of
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From October 2002 to December
2008, he served as the chairman and general manager of Zhengzhou Coal
Mining Machinery Company. Since December 2008, he has been the Chairman
of the Company.

Mr. Xiang Jiayu (/5 2R /), aged 49, is the Vice Chairman and executive
Director of the Company. Mr. Xiang is a senior engineer. From September
1980 to July 1984, he studied at the Department of Electrical and Mechanical
Engineering of Jiaozuo Mining Institute (£ {EHE 2 £p%), majoring in
mechanization. He studied at the China University of Mining and Technology,
Master's Department (Beijing) (FF B #& % K 21k mAf 7t 4 5) from
September 1988 to January 1991, majoring in mining mechanical engineering
and obtained a master’s degree. From July 1984 to August 1988, he lectured
at Yima Mining Technical School (£ B ¥ 7 B %), From May 1991 to
December 1992, he was a designer at the research center of Zhengzhou
Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From December 1992 to July 1995, he was
the executive officer of the No. 2 research center of Zhengzhou Coal Mining
Machinery Factory. From August 1995 to November 1998, he was the deputy
plant manager at the Huanghe Electronics Institute (7 25 8) & &) of
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From November 1998 to July
2000, he was the executive officer of the hydraulic project center of Zhengzhou
Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From July 2000 to October 2002, he served
as the deputy plant manager of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory.
From October 2002 to October 2008, he was the deputy general manager
and standing deputy general manager of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery
Company. From October 2008 to December 2008, he was a director and
the general manager of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Company. From
December 2008 to February 2015, he was a director and the general manager
of the Company. Since February 2015, he has been the Vice Chairman of the
Company.
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Directors (Continued)
Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Wang Xinying (E $7%8), aged 49, is an executive Director of the
Company. Mr. Wang is a senior engineer. From September 1981 to July 1985,
he studied at the Department of Mining Engineering of Chongging University
(EEAE), majoring in mining machinery. From September 2004 to July
2007, he studied at the School of Mechanical Engineering of China University of
Mining and Technology and obtained postgraduate qualification and a master’s
degree in engineering. From July 1985 to October 1992, he was an engineer
of the equipment division of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory, and
worked and studied in Toyota Motor Corporation between January 1991 and
January 1992, From October 1992 to July 1994, he was a deputy manager
of Zhengshen Import Vehicles Repair Station. From July 1994 to December
1996, he was a deputy plant manager of sub-plant of machinery repair of
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From December 1996 to July 2000,
he was a deputy director of the production division of Zhengzhou Coal Mining
Machinery Factory. From July 2000 to January 2005, he was the head of
corporate planning department of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory.
From January 2005 to December 2008, he was a deputy general manager of
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Company. From December 2008 to February
2015, he was a director and deputy general manager of the Company. Since
February 2015, he has been a director of the Company.

Mr. Guo Haofeng (B £1£), aged 50, is an executive Director. Mr. Guo
is a senior engineer. From September 1983 to July 1987, he studied at the
Department of Mechanical Engineering of South China Institute of Technology
(FEFg T2 B%) (now known as South China University of Technology (3
FgIE T K E2), and obtained a bachelor’s degree in engineering. He has a
master’s degree in engineering awarded by Huazhong University of Science and
Technology (&= A f2H% K E2) in June 2007. From September 1987 to August
1991, he was a technician, an assistant engineer and an engineer of the sub-
plant of casting of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From August
1991 to July 1994, he served as an assistant to plant manager of the sub-
plant of casting of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From July 1994
to April 1997, he was the deputy plant manager of the sub-plant of casting
of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From April 1997 to September
1998, he was the plant manager of the sub-plant of casting of Zhengzhou
Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From September 1998 to July 2000, he was
the head of the corporate planning department of Zhengzhou Coal Mining
Machinery Factory. From July 2000 to October 2002, he was the deputy plant
manager of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From October 2002 to
September 2006, he served as the deputy general manager of Zhengzhou Coal
Mining Machinery Company. From October 2006 to December 2008, he was a
director and the deputy general manager of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery
Company (“ZCMM”). From December 2008 to February 2012, he was the
director and deputy general manager of the Company. From February 2012
to February 2015, he was the deputy general manager of the Company. Since
February 2015 he has been a director of the Company.
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Directors (Continued)
Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Liu Qiang (£38), aged 45 and born in Yongcheng, Henan, is a member
of the Communist Party of China. From September 1986 to July 1990, he
studied at the Nankai University, majoring in economics management and law,
and obtained bachelor’s degrees in economics and law. In October 2004, he
studied a master’s degree in economics from Wuhan University, majoring in
world economics. In July 2009, he studied at Henan University, majoring in
regional economics and was admitted as a doctoral candidate. He obtained a
doctoral degree in Economics in December 2009. Mr. Liu holds the qualification
of senior auditor, asset valuer, lawyer and senior consultant. From July 1990
to November 2002, he successively served to a director-level officer at the
agriculture audit division, general office and division of legal affairs under the
Department of Audit of Henan Province. From November 2002 to July 2012, he
was the deputy section-level supervisor of the Supervisory Committee for the
State owned Enterprises Administered by Henan Provincial Government (7] &5
BEEHAEEEE) From July 2012 to November 2012, he served as
the section-level supervisor of the Supervisory Committee for the State owned
Enterprises Administered by Henan Provincial Government. From November
2012 to September 2014, he was also a researcher of Provincially Administered
and State-owned Medium and Small Enterprise Department (& & /N> 2
&) of the State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of
the People’s Government of Henan province. He also served as a researcher of
Economic Cooperation Department of the State-owned Assets Supervision and
Administration Commission of the People’s Government of Henan Province from
September 2014 to December 2014. Since December 2014, he has been the
secretary to the Disciplinary Commission of the Company. Since February 2015,
he has been a director of the Company.
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Directors (Continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Liu Yao (£/2£), aged 39, is an independent non-executive Director
of the Company. Ms. Liu joined the Company on 5 June 2014. Ms. Liu has
approximately 13 years of experience in financial industry. She worked in the
investment banking department of UBS Securities Hong Kong Limited as an
associate director, a director and an executive director from December 2009 to
June 2014, and has served as a managing director of HK Griffin Reed Capital
Group (=& 2<% &) since June 2014. Since June 2014, she has been an
independent director of the Company. Ms. Liu has worked as a key member of
the sponsor or one of the joint sponsors (as the case may be) in a number of
offerings of shares on the main board of Hong Kong Stock Exchange, including
among others, the Company, China Huishan Dairy Holdings Company Limited
(stock code: 06863), International Mining Machinery Holdings Limited (stock
code: 01683; delisted), Zhongsheng Group Holdings Limited (stock code:
00881), China Lesso Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 02128) and Boer
Power Holdings Limited (stock code: 01685). In the foregoing transactions,
Ms. Liu reviewed and analyzed the audited accounts, management accounts,
corporate governance and internal control of the relevant companies,
coordinated prospectuses drafting (including the financial information sections),
compared performance of the relevant companies against comparable
companies in similar industries, and provided advice to the relevant companies
to improve their corporate governance and internal control in accordance with
the Listing Rules. She worked in Deutsche Bank at its corporate finance practice
under the investment banking department as a manager from July 2007 to
November 2009, during which period of time she participated in the offerings
of shares by a company in the bio-pharmaceutical industry and a company
in the ship building industry, subprime debt financing of Bank of China, an
overseas acquisition by Industrial and Commercial Bank of China, etc. Ms. Liu
served as an analyst, manager and department head for Capital One Bank from
March 2001 to May 2007, mainly working on analysis of market data, risk
analysis of subprime credit cards and strategic planning of bank’s investment
in housing loan business and non-subprime automobile loan business. Ms.
Liu graduated from Xiamen University in July 1996 and obtained a bachelor’s
degree in chemistry. She graduated from the National University of Singapore
with a master’s degree in chemistry in December 1998. Ms. Liu possesses
a second master’s degree in materials engineering granted by Case Western
Reserve University in Cleveland, the United States of America in March 2001.
She also obtained an EMBA degree from the Wharton School of the University of
Pennsylvania in Philadelphia, the United States of America in May 2007.
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Directors (Continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Jiang Hua (ST %), aged 51, is an independent non-executive Director of
the Company. Mr. Jiang joined the Company on 10 February 2015. Mr. Jiang
was among the first batch of securities lawyers in China. From September 1981
to June 1985, he studied law at Renmin University of China and obtained a
bachelor’s degree. From September 1985 to June 1987, he studied civil law
at Renmin University of China and obtained a master’s degree. He began to
practice law since 1992. From 1994 to 2001, he was a partner of the Beijing-
based Dacheng Law Offices (3t /1 A K 2 B = #5Ff). From 2001 to
2003, he was a partner of the Beijing-based Tongwei Law Firm (1t =R
[m] 4 2 B 75 F7). Since 2003, he has been a partner of Beijing Kangda
Law Firm (Jb RTTEEER2EN S A5FT). In 2012, Mr. Jiang was hired by the
Law School and the Lawyer College of Renmin University of China as a part-
time instructor for graduate students under the Juris Master program. He has
provided legal services in various aspects, including transformation into shares-
based corporations, issue and listing of shares, refinancing, and merger and
acquisition to more than a hundred enterprises including Beijing Tiangiao (3 &%
X18), Gu Yue Long Shan (& #BE (L)), Yintai Resources (3R =& &) and so
forth, contributing his profound theoretical knowledge and extensive practical
experience. Mr. Jiang has also served as the general manager of the Merger and
Acquisition Division of China Economy Trust and Investment Corporation (%7
RS EEA A N T EAE IS EE) and the deputy general manager of Xi'an
Securities Limited (F5Z2 5% B R /A &) (currently Morgan Stanley Huaxin
Securities (EEAR+ 5| —ZEZE ). Mr. Jiang is qualified to become an
independent director of listed companies. Mr. Jiang has been an independent
director of Hangzhou Hikvision Digital Technology Co. Ltd. (i) 8 B EAR
TR ATA% 5 B R A 7)) (Shenzhen Stock Exchange: 002415) from 2008
to December 2014; an independent director of China Zhonghua Geotechnical
Engineering Co., Ltd. (FF{tE+ TI2M 5 B FR A A)) (Shenzhen Stock
Exchange: 002542) since 2009; an independent director of Daheng New
Epoch Technology Inc. (K1E#42 T RHE A% 1D ABR 22 B]) (Shanghai Stock
Exchange: 600288) from 2009 to December 2014; an independent director of
Huafa Industrial Co., Ltd. Zhuhai (/82235 & 2£ 1% {5 B FR A &) (Shanghai
Stock Exchange: 600325) since 2013; and an independent director of China
National Complete Plant Import and Export Corporation Limited (57 Bk #& 1 O
%5 75 BR /A 7)) (Shenzhen Stock Exchange: 000151) since May 2014.
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Directors (Continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Li Xudong (Z=/B%-), aged 44, is an independent non-executive Director
of the Company. Mr. Li joined the Company on 10 February 2015. Mr. Li is
a senior accountant, Chinese certified public accountant, Chinese certified
assets valuer and Chinese certified tax agent. From 2000 to 2003, he studied
at Central University of Finance and Economics and obtained a bachelor’s
degree in accounting. He is currently a managing partner (775 ¥ A) of
Da Hua Certified Public Accountants (Special General Partnership) (K=
BIEMSFT (B HE@mA ) ). Mr. Li was a member of the 13th, 14th and
15th session of the review committee for main board issue of China Securities
Regulatory Commission. In 1996, Mr. Li commenced his CPA business and
has focused on the partial and whole-scale listing of corporate assets, asset
restructuring, and IPO audit and consulting for listed companies. Mr. Li has
been a certified public accountant in respect of auditing for or signing the audit
for listed companies and large-scale state-owned enterprises including Wanda
Commercial Properties Co., Ltd. (B3 m 2 MERMD R A F), Inner
Mongolia Junzheng Energy & Chemical Industry Co., Ltd. (N5 & & [FEER
L TR B PR A 7)), Zhejiang Hangxiao Steel Structure Co., Ltd. (#3T#7
FMFERL{D B R A 7)), China CAMC Engineering Co., Ltd. (f TEIF T
T2 R% 15 B PR /A 7)), and China National Machinery Industry Corporation (47
e, T 2 5% E /2 7)). He has accumulated professional experience in areas
including accounting, auditing, asset appraisal, merger and acquisition and
corporate governance consulting.

Mr. Wu Guangming (%R 3¢ 88), aged 53, is an independent non-executive
Director of the Company. Mr. Wu joined the Company on 10 February 2015. He
is a senior economist and senior engineer. He is currently the chairman of the
board of directors of and general manager of Jiangsu Yuyue Medical Equipment
and Supply Co., Ltd. (T &k f B B85 2L 5% {9 B FR 2 7)) (Shenzhen Stock
Exchange: 002223), and vice chairman of Chinese Medical Equipment Industry
Association (F X Z&& 2547 177 &). Mr. Wu graduated from Jiangsu University
of Technology (T #f3% T AE2) in 1997, and was admitted to China Europe
International Business School in 2010. Mr. Wu was the manager of Danyang
Electronic Medical Apparatus Factory (F}[5 ik #8528 5 =5 F & 25 /&%) and
manager of Danyang Medical Equipment Factory (F}F5 22 FH 23 &%), Since
1998, he has been chairman of the board of directors of and general manager
of Jiangsu Yuyue Medical Equipment and Supply Co., Ltd.
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Supervisors

Mr. Li Chongging (Z=ZE ), aged 50, is a Supervisor of the Company. Mr.
Li a political worker and assistant engineer. He obtained a bachelor’s degree in
economics and management from the Party School of the Central Committee
of the Chinese Communist Party. From July 1980 to September 1983, he
worked for 83016 Force Military Service Station in Yixing County, Jiangsu. From
September 1983 to September 1984, he worked in the General Dispatching
Office of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From September 1984 to
July 1987, he studied full-time in the Vocational University of Zhengzhou Coal
Mining Machinery Factory, majoring in machinery manufacturing. From July
1987 to June 1990, he worked as a technician in the sub-plant of stanchion
(workshop) of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From June 1990
to May 1995, he was the vice secretary and secretary of the Zhengzhou Coal
Mining Machinery Factory Committee of the Chinese Communist Party, during
which period of time he studied economics and management in the Party
School of the Henan Province Committee of Chinese Communist Party and
obtained a bachelor’s degree. From May 1995 to February 1997, he was the
deputy plant manager and the deputy party secretary of the sub-plant of welding
of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From February 1997 to May
2000, he served as the plant manager of the sub-plant of mining of Zhengzhou
Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From May 2000 to August 2000, he worked
as the standing deputy general manager of Diversified Business Corporation
of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory (Z5/M| R BR 22 T 48
4872 7)), From August 2000 to October 2002, he was the head of General
Office of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From October 2002 to
January 2006, he was the head of General Office of Zhengzhou Coal Mining
Machinery Company. From January 2006 to September 2006, he worked as
the director of the Human Resource Department of Zhengzhou Coal Mining
Machinery Company. From October 2006 to December 2008, he served as the
deputy general manager and a supervisor of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery
Company. From December 2008 to February 2012, he was the deputy general
manager of the Company. Since February 2012, he has served as the chairman
of Labor Union of the Company. Since February 2015, he has been a supervisor
of the Company.
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Supervisors (Continued)

Mr. Liu Fuying, aged 49, is a Supervisor of the Company. Mr. Liu is a senior
engineer. He graduated from the China University of Mining and Technology,
majoring in mechanical design and manufacturing and obtained a bachelor’s
degree in engineering in July 1987. In June 2008, he graduated from the
China University of Mining and Technology majoring in mechanical design and
theory and obtained a master’s degree in engineering. Mr. Liu Fuying has been
working for the Company since July 1987, responsible for technical work. He
is @ major technical personnel of the Company and the leader in the academia
and technology field of the coal industry in the Henan Province. From November
1998 to February 2004, he served as the deputy director of the Research
Center of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From February 2004 to
February 2007, he was the deputy director of the Research Center of Zhengzhou
Coal Mining Machinery Company. From February 2007 to December 2008, he
was the deputy director of the Design and Research Institute of Zhengzhou Coal
Mining Machinery Company. From December 2008 to August 2010, he was
the deputy director of the Design and Research Institute of the Company. Since
August 2010, he has been the director of the Design and Research Institute of
the Company. Since February 2015, he has been a supervisor of the Company.

Mr. Zhou Rong (&%), aged 43, is a Supervisor of the Company. Mr. Zhou
is an engineer. He graduated with a bachelor’s degree in chemical engineering
and technology from Zhengzhou University of Light Industry in July 1996. He
graduated from Zhengzhou University majoring in mechanical engineering and
obtained a master’s degree in engineering in June 2007. He served as the
deputy plant manager of the sub-plant of electroplating of Zhengzhou Coal
Mining Machinery Company from April 2002 to August 2006. From August
2006 to December 2007, he was the plant manager of the sub-plant of
electroplating of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Company. From December
2007 to August 2009, he was the plant manager of the sub-plant of installation
of the Company. From August 2009 to February 2010, he was the deputy head
of the Marketing and Sales Department of the Company. From February 2010
to February 2011, he was the plant manager of the sub-plant of electroplating
of the Company. From February 2011 to April 2011, he was the deputy plant
manager of the plant of oil tanks and the plant manager of the sub-plant of
electroplating of the Company. Since April 2011, he has been the head of
the supply department of the Company. Since February 2015, he has been a
supervisor of the Company.
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Supervisors (Continued)

Mr. Zhang Zhigiang (&% 38), aged 55, is a Supervisor of the Company.
From September 1988 to July 1991, Mr. Zhang studied economics and
management through a correspondence course at the Correspondence Institute
of the Party School of the Henan Province Committee of Chinese Communist
Party and obtained a college diploma; from August 2003 to December 2005,
he studied at the Party School of the Central Committee of Chinese Communist
Party and obtained a bachelor’s degree in economics and management. From
September 1981 to March 1985, he was an operator at workshop No. 1 of
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From March 1985 to November
1989, he was the secretary of the Workshop No. 1 of Zhengzhou Coal Mining
Machinery Factory Committee of the Chinese Communist Youth League. From
November 1989 to June 1994, he was the objectives management officer of
the Office of Total Quality Management of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery
Factory; from June 1994 to November 1996, he was a secretary of the Office
of the Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory Committee of the Chinese
Communist Party. From November 1996 to May 1998, he served as the division
head of Project Developments Department of Diversified Business Corporation of
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From May 1998 to October 2000,
he was the deputy head of the Publicity and United Front Work Department
and the chief editor of the factory newsletter; from October 2000 to May 2002,
he was the head of the Publicity and United Front Work Department and the
Organization Department of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory; from
May 2002 to February 2005, he was the head of the Execution Department
of the Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Company Committee of the Chinese
Communist Party, of which he was a member during the period. From February
2005 to February 2010, he was the secretary to branch Party Committee of the
sub-plant of processing of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Company. From
February 2010 to July 2011, he was the deputy head of the General Office of
the Company and the vice chairman of the Labor Union of the Company. From
July 2011 to September 2011, he was the head of the security department of
the Company. Since September 2011, he has been the head of the General
Administration Division of the Company. Since July 2012, he has been the vice
secretary to the Disciplinary Commission and vice chairman of Labor Union of
the Company. Since June 2014, he has been a supervisor of the Company.

Mr. Ni Heping ({2 %15), aged 50, is a Supervisor of the Company. Mr. Ni
joined the Group in 1987, and was appointed as the supervisor in December
2008 and was re-elected on 28 February 2012 and 10 February 2015. Mr. Ni
has held various positions with the Company and its predecessor companies,
including as the deputy director of the first research institute of, and a designer,
the head of design office and the deputy director of the research institute of
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory. He was also the director of the
research institute of and the dean of the design and research institute of ZCMM.
He is presently the deputy general engineer of design and the director of the
general office of the technology centre of the Company. Mr. Ni obtained a
master’s degree in engineering from China University of Mining and Technology
in June 2007 and is a senior engineer.
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Supervisors (Continued)

Mr. Jia Jingcheng (B 5 7%8), aged 52, is a Supervisor of the Company.
Mr. Jia joined the Group in 1982, and was appointed as the supervisor in
December 2008 and was re-elected on 28 February 2012 and 10 February
2015. Mr. Jia has held various positions with the Company and its predecessor
companies, including as a machinery worker and a dispatcher of the No. 1
machinery sub-plant of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory, an assistant
to the plant manager and the deputy plant manager of sub-plant of processing,
the plant manager of sub-plant of machinery maintenance of Zhengzhou
Coal Mining Machinery Factory, as well as the deputy general manager of
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Comprehensive Equipment Co., Ltd. (‘ZMJ
Comprehensive Equipment”). He was previously the plant manager of the
ZCMM’s sub-plant of machinery processing and the head of production and
manufacturing department of ZCMM. He was also the deputy general engineer
of manufacturing of the Company. He is presently the plant manager of the
sub-plant of fuel tank of the Company. From 1985 to 1988, Mr. Jia studied
machinery manufacturing technology and design at Zhengzhou Coal Mining
Machinery Factory Staff College (55 /M 5 A 4 i iR Bk T K £2), which has not
been authorized by the relevant competent authorities to grant accreditations,
and is an engineer.

Ms. Xu Mingkai (%88 §]l), aged 50, is a Supervisor of the Company. Ms. Xu
joined the Group in 1984, and was appointed as the supervisor in April 2011
and was re-elected on 28 February 2012 and 10 February 2015. She has held
various positions with the Company and its predecessor companies, including as
a section member of quality office, a senior section member of publicity division
of Communist Youth League Committee, a senior section member of the office,
the deputy head of family planning office, the deputy head of corporate planning
department and the deputy director of the office of Zhengzhou Coal Mining
Machinery Factory, as well as the deputy director and the director of the office
of ZCMM. She was also the director of the general office and the director of the
human resource department of the Company. She is presently the director of
the safety and environmental protection department of the Company. Ms. Xu
graduated in economics and management through a correspondence course
at the Correspondence Institute of the Party School of the Central Committee of
C.P.C. (Fr #£ b R B A% b33 E2B5%) in December 2005.
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Senior Management

Mr. Fu Zugang ({<#E.f8), aged 49, is a general manager of the Company.
Mr. Fu is a senior engineer. From September 1981 to July 1985, he studied at
Wuhan Technology College (i, T 22Fx) (now known as Wuhan University of
Technology (/232 T KE2)), majoring in casting and obtained a bachelor's
degree in engineering. From July 1985 to July 2000, he served as a technician,
an assistant engineer, an engineer, a senior engineer, a team leader of
technology team, an assistant to the plant manager, a deputy plant manager
and a plant manager of the sub-plant of casting of Zhengzhou Coal Mining
Machinery Factory. From July 2000 to October 2002, he was the deputy plant
manager of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From October 2002 to
November 2006, he was the chairman of labor union of ZCMM. From November
2006 to December 2008, he was a director and a deputy general manager
of ZCMM. From December 2008 to February 2012, he was a deputy general
manager of the Company. From February 2012 to February 2015, he was a
director and a deputy general manager of the Company. Since February 2015,
he has been the general manager of the Company.

Mr. Gao Youjin (57 3£), aged 51, is a deputy general manager of the
Company. Mr. Gao is a senior engineer. From September 1981 to July 1985,
he studied at Jiaozuo Mining Institute (£ /ERE 2 2285%) (now known as
Henan Polytechnic University), majoring in mining machinery. From July 1985
to December 1985, he was a technician of the sub-plant of installation of
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From January 1986 to July 1993, he
served as a designer, an officer and the deputy director of the research institute
of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From August 1993 to August
1994, he was the deputy director of the planned sales division of Zhengzhou
Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From September 1994 to November 1995,
he served as the deputy director and the director of No.1 sales development
division of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From November 1995 to
July 2000 and from July 2000 to October 2002, he served as the deputy plant
manager and the chief engineer of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory,
respectively. From October 2002 to December 2008, he was the deputy general
manager and the chief engineer of ZCMM. Since December 2008, he has been
the deputy general manager and the chief engineer of the Company.

Mr. Zhang Minglin (3R a57K), aged 52, is a deputy general manager of the
Company. Mr. Zhang is a senior engineer. From September 1979 to July 1983,
he studied at Huainan Mining Institute (£ 5 % 3£ £2F%), majoring in mining.
From August 1983 to August 1987, he was a section member of Henan Coal
Mine Supply Company (7] & KEAZ {iE & ‘2 &1). From August 1987 to May
1996, he worked as a section member, a deputy senior section member and a
senior section member of Henan Coal Industrial Department. From August 1995
to February 1996, he went to Zhengaqiao Village, Huzu Town, Gushi County in
Xinyang District to participate in the party construction in rural areas which was
organized by Henan Province Committee of Chinese Communist Party. From
May 1996 to May 1999, he was the deputy general manager of Henan Coal
Mine Supply Company. From May 1999 to April 2004, he served as the general
manager and the secretary of the Party Committee of Henan Coal Mine Supply
Company. From October 2000 to November 2004, he served as the general
manager of Henan Coal Sales Company Limited (Al @& R ISEGRE
fE£72&)). Since November 2004, he has been the deputy general manager of
ZCMM.

BREEAE

AR LE - 495% - BAEARQALLIE - (FLEERSR
TR e —AWN\—FNLA——ANREFEA REIZ
PrGRRZE T RS )EEEXEE  EISBBLE4
—NNAFEA-ZZZTZTF LA - EENETEEARRR
SBEDMEIRITE « BIETIERD - TI2A0 &R TiE
Bl - BiTAR - HHBBmERE C PMERE C BE =
SEEFLA - _F+ A FENNEEE R
WE: —EE-_F+A-_TT X F+—8 - [TEHK%
WMIgXR: —TE"FT+—A— =T N\F+=ZAH -
FEHEERES - JlBKE s — T N\F+=ZA— =%
—Z—FZ R EARRARRRgE —F——F=A—=
T—HFZA  EARFESE  FBLE - —T—hF
ZRAESHERRNRBIE -

BEEXE S RAARFRRKE - ahERS
MITIRRAD - —NWN\—FNAZ—ANRFELA  E£EE
¥E[RRNmETAS)EL#RREES  — L\ BT
tAZE—NANRF+=A - BN BRI L 2 5
ME : — W \RNFE—AZ—NANA=ZFLA - BN EEE
WIS FTERET B ~ I EET BTk —h=
FNAE—ANATFENR - BONEEEW R EHEER
R — A NmFALAZE—AARF+—A  BIE
BHWREERE —EIER  BE: — W NAF+—
AE_ZBTTEL A BNEBERFIRE -
TZFLAZE—TT-F1 7 - SNEBEERRETE
Bl TS -_F+AZ_FTT)\F+F » (EEHE W
BlBIB R ATIZA : — 2T )N\F+_AZS AR
A BIABAIR TR AB T I2AT -

RaMELE - 5258 - REARFEIBLE - REERS
MIEE - —WENFNRE-AN=ZFLH - &M
BEBREBREE  —NWN\=FN\AE-ANLF
NA AEERBHRERIRME  —ANEFNAE
—NAARERR  ABARKTERERNE - BIEEN
B TEME  —hAAEFNAAZ-ANRF A &
EfGR E R EARASEN 2T h TS T A
MENERIE  —AWNARFREAZE-NAANFRA
AEEREHEARREKLE " WANFRAE-E
TENA - AREREREARERE - EREC
“ERTF+AETEMF+—H  ARmEEREE
BEREFNREERE  —ZTAF+—AES - E8K
Mt Bl A AIE o




Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Co., Ltd. AREgNiFeeEgsmESEil gy l-oNG]

Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management % - EZEN SR EEE

Senior Management (Continued)

Mr. Fu Qi ({33), aged 45, is a deputy general manager of the Company. Mr.
Zhang is a senior engineer. From September 1988 to July 1992, he studied
at China University of Mining and Technology, majoring in mechanical design
and theories. From July 1992 to September 1995, he was a section member
of the first development division of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory.
From September 1995 to May 1996 and from May 1996 to December 1996,
he was a senior section member and the deputy head of the first development
division, respectively. From December 1996 to January 2006, he was a section
officer and the deputy head of the planned sales division, the deputy head of
the marketing and sales department, and the deputy head of the sub-plant
of installation. From January 2006 to March 2008, he was the head of the
production and manufactory department. From April 2010 to February 2012,
he was the chairman and the secretary of the Party Committee of Huainan ZMJ
Shun Li Machinery Co., Ltd. Since February 2012, he has been the deputy
general manager of the Company.

Mr. Jia Hao (&%), aged 45, is a deputy general manager of the Company.
Mr. Jia graduated from University of Shanghai for Science and Technology
in 1991, majoring in mechanical engineering. In the 1990s, he worked at
Guangzhou Electrical and Mechanical Scientific Research Institute of China
National Machinery Industry Corporation and was responsible for design and
research. He also worked at Parker Hannifin Motion & Control (Shanghai)
Co., Ltd., a foreign company, and was responsible for sales. In April 2001,
he obtained an Executive Master of Business Administration (EMBA) degree
from China Europe International Business School. He then worked as the
general manger of the investment department of Salim Group (China) Company
Limited, a foreign company. In March 2006, he began to serve as the president
of Shanghai Huili Group Company Limited and a director of Shanghai Huili
Company Limited, both of which are the subsidiaries of Salim Group, a listed
company. Since March 2014, he has been the deputy general manager of the
Company.

Mr. Wang Yonggiang (£ 7k 3&), aged 43, is a deputy general manager of
the Company. Mr. Wang graduated from Zhengzhou University and obtained
a master’s degree in mechanical engineering in June 2007. He started his
career in August 1993. From February 2003 to June 2007, he was the deputy
executive officer of hydraulic project center of ZCMM. From June 2007 to
December 2007, he served as full-time deputy executive officer of research
and development centre for hydraulic control of ZCMM. From December 2007
to February 2010, he was the executive officer of hydraulic project center of
the Company. From February 2010 to February 2014, he served as a manager
and secretary of the party branch of hydraulic control company. From February
2014 to February 2015, he was the head of human resources department of
the Company. Since February 2015, he has been the deputy general manager
of the Company.
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Senior Management (Continued)

Mr. Guo Desheng (EBfE4E), aged 53, is the chief financial officer of the
Company. Mr. Guo is a senior accountant. From February 1981 to October
1994, he was a section member of the finance division of Zhengzhou Coal
Mining Machinery Factory. From October 1994 to October 2001 and from
October 2001 to October 2002, he was the deputy division head and the
division head of the finance division of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery
Factory, respectively. From January 2002 to December 2008, he served as
head of the finance department of ZCMM. Since December 2008, he has been
the chief financial officer of the Company.

Mr. Zhang Haibin (3R33), aged 33, is a deputy general manager, the
secretary to the Board and Company Secretary of the Company. Mr. Zhang
graduated from China University of Mining and Technology and obtained a
bachelor’s degree in law in July 2005. From July 2005 to March 2007, he was
a secretary of the general office of ZCMM. From March 2007 to December
2008, he served as the chief secretary of the general office of ZCMM. From
December 2008 to March 2010, he was the chief secretary of the general
office of the Company. From March 2010 to September 2010, he served as an
assistant to the head of the general office of the Company. From September
2010 to January 2012, he served as the deputy head of capital operation
department and representative for securities affairs of the Company. From
January 2012 to February 2015, he was the head of general office, head of
capital operation department and representative for securities affairs of the
Company. From July 2012 to February 2015, he was the head of division
of party and masses’ affairs. Since February 2015, he has been the deputy
general manager and secretary to the Board of the Company.

Company Secretary

Mr. Zhang Haibin is the Company Secretary. Please see “— Senior Management”
of this section for his biography.

Ms. Chan Yin Wah (BR#Z£), aged 39, is the assistant to the Company
Secretary. Ms. Chan is an Associate Director of SW Corporate Services
Group Limited. She has over 17 years of professional experience in handling
the corporate secretarial, compliance and share registry matters for listed
companies in Hong Kong. She has worked for various international professional
firms and listed companies in Hong Kong. Ms. Chan holds a bachelor’s degree
in economics and a master’s degree in professional accounting. She is a fellow
member of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and The Institute
of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators in the United Kingdom. She is also
a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
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Corporate Governance

The board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Company is committed to maintain
a high standard of corporate governance practices. The Board believes effective
and reasonable corporate governance practices are essential to the development
of the Group and can safeguard and enhance the interests of the shareholders.

During the year ended 31 December 2014 (the “Review Period”), the
Company has complied with the requirements in the code provisions (the “Code
Provisions”) as set out in the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and there is no material
deviation from such code.

Board of Directors
Responsibilities and Delegation to the Management

The Board of the Company is accountable to the shareholders for leading the
Company in a responsible and effective manner; responsible for execution of the
resolutions passed at general meetings; deciding on the Company’s operating
plans, investment proposals and the establishment of its internal management
units; preparing annual financial budgets, final accounts and profit distribution
plans; and appointing members of its senior management. Meanwhile, the
Board has established four special committees under the Board, namely, the
Strategy Committee, the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration and Assessment Committee, and these Board committees are
assigned respective responsibilities according to their terms of reference.

The Board delegated the authority and duties to the senior management to carry
out the daily management, administration and operation of the Company. The
general manager is accountable to the Board.

All Directors of the Company carry out their duties in good faith in the
best interests of the Company and in compliance with applicable laws and
regulations, and act in the best interests of the Company and its shareholders at
all times.

Corporate Governance Functions of the Board

The Board is collectively responsible for performing the corporate governance
functions, of which at least includes the following:

e 1o develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance;

e to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management;

e to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements;
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Board of Directors (Continued)
Corporate Governance Functions of the Board (continued)

e to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees and the Directors; and

e to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in
the Company’s annual report.

Board Meetings

The Board of the Company will convene at least four regular meetings each
year at approximately quarterly intervals. Regular Board meetings will involve
the active participation, either in person or through electronic means of
communication, of a majority of Directors entitled to be present. A written
notice should be sent to all the Directors and Supervisors 14 days prior to the
regular Board meeting. For the extraordinary meetings of the Board, the written
notice should be sent to all the Directors and Supervisors four days prior to the
meeting. When an extraordinary meeting of the Board needs to be held as early
as possible in case of an emergency, the meeting notice is allowed to be given
by telephone or in other verbal forms at any time provided that the convener
makes necessary explanations at the meeting. A written meeting notice shall at
least include the subject matters for discussion and the meeting information as
necessary for the Directors to make well-informed decisions.

When a Director and the enterprise(s) involved in a proposal of a Board meeting
have connected relations, such Director shall not exercise his/her voting rights
on such proposal nor shall he/she exercise any voting rights on behalf of other
Directors.

Draft and final versions of minutes of Board meetings should be sent to all
Directors for their comments and records respectively within a reasonable
time after the Board meeting is held. The participating Directors shall sign
the meeting minutes and resolutions records for confirmation on behalf of
themselves and the Directors who authorize them to attend. Any Director who
has different views on the meeting minutes or the resolutions records can make
a written explanation when signing the same; when necessary, he/she shall
report such views to the regulatory authorities timely; he/she can also make a
public statement regarding such views.

During the Review Period, the Board held seven meetings on 3 March 2014, 27
March 2014, 25 April 2014, 26 June 2014, 21 August 2014, 20 October 2014
and 24 December 2014 respectively.
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Board of Directors (Continued)
Board Meetings (Continued)

Attendances of meetings by Directors during the Review Period are set out
below:

1. The tenth meeting of the second session of the Board was held in the
Conference Room on 3 March 2014. There were nine Directors, including
Mr. Jiao Chengyao, Mr. Shao Chunsheng, Mr. Xiang Jiayu, Mr. Fu Zugang,
Mr. Wang Xinying, Mr. Lin Zhijun, Mr. Li Bin, Mr. Gao Guoan and Mr. Luo
Jiamang, eligible for attending the meeting and all of them attended the
Meeting. The Proposal on the Change of Principal Place of Business in
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Hong Kong was considered and approved at the meeting.

The eleventh meeting of the second session of the Board was held in the
Conference Room on 27 March 2014. There were nine Directors, including
Mr. Jiao Chengyao, Mr. Shao Chunsheng, Mr. Xiang Jiayu, Mr. Fu Zugang,
Mr. Wang Xinying, Mr. Lin Zhijun, Mr. Li Bin, Mr. Gao Guoan and Mr. Luo
Jiamang, eligible for attending the meeting and all of them attended the
meeting.

The meeting considered and approved the Proposal on the 2013 Work
Report of the Board of Directors of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery
Group Company Limited, the Proposal on the 2013 Work Report of the
General Manager of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company
Limited, the Proposal on 2013 Audited Domestic and Overseas Financial
Report of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company Limited, the
Proposal on 2013 Annual Report on A Shares and Summary thereof of
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company Limited, the Proposal
on 2013 Results Announcement of H Shares of Zhengzhou Coal Mining
Machinery Group Company Limited and Authorising the Chairman of the
Company to Sign and Announce 2013 Annual Report of the Company’s
H Shares, the Proposal on the 2013 Profit Distribution Plan of Zhengzhou
Coal Mining Machinery Group Company Limited, the Proposal on the
2013 Specific Audit Report on the Deposit and Actual Use of Proceeds of
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company Limited, the Proposal
on the Specific Report on Appropriation of Fund by the Controlling
Shareholder or Other Related Parties, the Proposal on the Use of Part of
the Balance of the Proceeds under A Share Projects and the Balance of
the Surplus Proceeds from A Shares Offering as Supplemental Working
Capital Permanently, the Proposal on the Corporate Social Responsibilities
Report of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company Limited
for 2013, the Proposal on the Report on Internal Control Assessment
for 2013, the Proposal on the Audit Report on Internal Control for 2013,
the Proposal on the Report of the Independent Non-executive Directors
on Their Performance in the Year 2013, the Proposal on the Report on
Performance of Duties by the Audit Committee for 2013, the Proposal on
the Appointment of External Audit Institution for 2014 and Payment for
the Auditing Fee for 2013, the Proposal on Amendments to the Business
Scope and the Articles of Association of the Company, the Proposal on the
Appointment of Jia Hao as the Deputy General Manager of the Company,
the Proposal on the Providing Guarantee to Repurchase to Clients under
the Sale Business Adopting the Way of Finance Lease and the Proposal on
Convening the 2013 Annual General Meeting of Zhengzhou Coal Mining
Machinery Group Company Limited.
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Board of Directors (Continued)

Board Meetings (Continued)

3.

The twelfth meeting of the second session of the Board was held in the
Conference Room on 25 April 2014. There were eight Directors, including
Mr. Jiao Chengyao, Mr. Shao Chunsheng, Mr. Xiang Jiayu, Mr. Fu Zugang,
Mr. Wang Xinying, Mr. Li Bin, Mr. Gao Guoan and Mr. Luo Jiamang,
eligible for attending the meeting and all of them attended the meeting.

The meeting considered and approved the Proposal on the 2014 First
Quarterly Report of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company
Limited.

The thirteenth meeting of the second session of the Board was held in the
Conference Room on 26 June 2014. There were nine Directors, including
Mr. Jiao Chengyao, Mr. Shao Chunsheng, Mr. Xiang Jiayu, Mr. Fu Zugang,
Mr. Wang Xinying, Mr. Li Bin, Mr. Gao Guoan, Mr. Luo Jiamang and Ms.
Liu Yao, eligible for attending the meeting and all of them attended the
meeting.

The meeting considered and approved the Proposal on Change of Member
of the Audit Committee of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group
Company Limited.

The fourteenth meeting of the second session of the Board was held in
the Conference Room on 21 August 2014. There were nine Directors,
including Mr. Jiao Chengyao, Mr. Shao Chunsheng, Mr. Xiang Jiayu,
Mr. Fu Zugang, Mr. Wang Xinying, Mr. Li Bin, Mr. Gao Guoan, Mr. Luo
Jiamang and Ms. Liu Yao, eligible for attending the meeting and all of
them attended the meeting.

The meeting considered and approved the Proposal on 2014 Interim
Report on A Shares of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company
Limited, the Proposal on 2014 Interim Report on H Shares of Zhengzhou
Coal Mining Machinery Group Company Limited and Authorising the
Chairman of the Company to Sign and Announce 2014 Interim Report
of the Company’s H Shares, the Proposal on the Specific Report on the
Deposit and Actual Use of Proceeds of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery
Group Company Limited, the Proposal on the Use of the Owned and H
Shares Idle Raised Funds and to Invest in Financial Products, the Proposal
on the 2014 Unaudited Interim Financial Statements of Zhengzhou Coal
Mining Machinery Group Company Limited, the Proposal on Review
of Performance of Duties by the Directors and any Material Changes
in Commitment and the Proposal on Review of the Structure, Size and
Composition (Including the Skills, Knowledge and Experience) of the
Board of the Company and the Board Diversity, the Proposal on Review of
Performance of Duties by the Directors and Managers of the Company and
Annual Performance Assessment.

The fifteenth meeting of the second session of the Board was held in
the Conference Room on 20 October 2014. There were nine Directors,
including Mr. Jiao Chengyao, Mr. Shao Chunsheng, Mr. Xiang Jiayu,
Mr. Fu Zugang, Mr. Wang Xinying, Mr. Li Bin, Mr. Gao Guoan, Mr. Luo
Jiamang and Ms. Liu Yao, eligible for attending the meeting and all of
them attended the meeting.

The meeting considered and approved the Proposal on the 2014 Third
Quarterly Report of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company
Limited and the Resolution Regarding the Extension of the Guarantee
Granted for a Wholly-owned Subsidiary in Hong Kong.
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Board of Directors (Continued)
Board Meetings (Continued)

7. The sixteenth meeting of the second session of the Board was held in
the Conference Room on 24 December 2014. There were nine Directors,
including Mr. Jiao Chengyao, Mr. Shao Chunsheng, Mr. Xiang Jiayu,
Mr. Fu Zugang, Mr. Wang Xinying, Mr. Li Bin, Mr. Gao Guoan, Mr. Luo
Jiamang and Ms. Liu Yao, eligible for attending the meeting and all of
them attended the meeting.

The meeting considered and approved the Resolution Regarding the
Nomination of Candidates for the Third Session of the Board of the
Company, the Resolution Regarding the Extension of the Guarantee
Granted for a Wholly-owned Subsidiary in Hong Kong and the Proposal on
Convening the First Extraordinary General Meeting of 2015.

Board Composition

During the Review Period, the Board of the Company consists of nine Directors,
comprising five Executive Directors and four Independent Non-executive
Directors. More than one-third of the members of the Board of the Company
are Independent Non-executive Directors. The Executive Directors possess in-
depth experience in coal mining equipment industry while the Independent
Non-executive Directors have appropriate professional qualifications in law or
accounting or related financial management expertise. In accordance with the
Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange, the Independent Non-executive Directors
are explicitly identified in all corporate communications.

As at the end of the reporting period, the members of the Board are:

Executive Directors: Mr. Jiao Chengyao (Chairman), Mr. Shao Chunsheng (Vice
Chairman), Mr. Xiang Jiayu (General Manager), Mr. Fu Zugang (Deputy General
Manager) and Mr. Wang Xinying (Deputy General Manager) and the independent
non-executive directors are Mr. Li Bin, Mr. Gao Guoan, Mr. Luo Jiamang and Ms.
Liu Yao.

As at the date of this annual report, the members of the Board are:

Executive Directors: Mr. Jiao Chengyao (Chairman), Mr. Xiang Jiayu (Vice
Chairman), Mr. Wang Xinying, Mr. Guo Haofeng and Mr. Liu Qiang.

Independent Non-executive Directors: Ms. Liu Yao, Mr. Jiang Hua, Mr. Li
Xudong and Mr. Wu Guangming.

The biographies of all the Directors are set out in the “Directors, Supervisors and
Senior Management” section of this annual report. Save as disclosed in such
section, there is no other material relationship among the members of the Board
(including financial, business, family or other material or relevant relationships).

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence from all the
Independent Non-executive Directors. Based on the confirmation, the Board
considers that all of the four Independent Non-executive Directors meet the
independence requirements of the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange.
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Chairman and General Manager

The roles of the Chairman and the General Manager of the Company have
been separated and performed by different individuals. Mr. Jiao Chengyao is
the Chairman of the Company and Mr. Fu Zugang is the General Manager. The
Chairman is primarily responsible for the leadership and effective running of the
Board and ensuring that all significant and key issues are discussed and where
required, resolved by the Board timely and constructively. The General Manager
is delegated with the authority and responsibility to manage the Company’s
day-to-day business in all aspects effectively, implement major strategies and
coordinate the overall business operation.

Internal Control

The Board has the overall responsibility for the system of internal control of the
Group (the Company and its subsidiaries) and is responsible for reviewing its
effectiveness.

During the Review Period, the Company has conducted reviews on the
effectiveness of the system of internal control of the Group in accordance with
the Code Provisions. The reviews covered the financial, operational, compliance
control and risk management functions of the Company and included reviewing
of the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting
functions.

Directors
Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal of
Directors are laid down in the Company’s corporate documents such as
the articles of association. In accordance with Article 144 of the Articles of
Association of the Company, the Directors of the Company shall be elected or
replaced at the general meetings and the terms of office of all directors (including
executive directors and independent non-executive directors) will be three years.
Upon the expiry of the terms, the Directors will be eligible for re-election and
reappointment. Subject to the compliance with relevant laws and administrative
regulations, the general meeting may dismiss any Director during his/her service
term by way of an ordinary resolution (except that any claim for compensation
pursuant to any contract shall not be prejudiced thereby).

The Company has not entered into any service contract (except for any contract
expiring or determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation other than statutory compensation) with any of the Directors/
Supervisors.
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Directors (Continued)
Directors’ Training and Professional Development

Each newly appointed Director has received formal, comprehensive and tailored
induction after his/her initial appointment to ensure appropriate understanding
of the business and operation of the Company and full awareness of Director’s
responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange
and relevant statutory requirements.

The Directors also reviewed the amendments to or updates on the relevant laws,
rules and regulations regularly. In addition, the Company has been encouraging
the Directors and senior executives to enroll in a wide range of professional
development courses and seminars relating to the Listing Rules, companies
ordinance/act and corporate governance practices organized by professional
bodies, independent auditors and/or chambers in Hong Kong so that they can
continuously update and further improve their relevant knowledge and skills.
From time to time, Directors are provided with written training materials to
develop and refresh their professional skills.

All the Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development so that their relevant knowledge and skills can be improved and
updated. The Company has arranged internal training for the Directors by
seminars and provision of training information. All the Directors have provided a
record of training they received to the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, all Directors, including Mr. Jiao
Chengyao, Mr. Shao Chunsheng, Mr. Xiang Jiayu, Mr. Fu Zugang, Mr. Wang
Xinying, Mr. Lin Zhijun, Mr. Li Bin, Mr. Gao Guoan, Mr. Luo Jiamang, and Ms.
Liu Yao have been given relevant guideline materials and attended a training
regarding the duties and responsibilities of being a Director, the relevant laws
and regulations applicable to the Directors.

Insurance for Directors

Director liability insurance has been taken out for all Directors of the Company.
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Directors (Continued)

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors and
Supervisors

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Companies (“Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 of the
Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange as its code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors and the Supervisors. Having made specific enquiry
of all Directors and Supervisors, all of them confirmed that they had complied
with the Model Code during the Review Period.

Emolument Policy

The Company has endeavored to improve its remuneration management
measures for its directors, supervisors and senior management under the
guidance of the relevant policies of the PRC. The Company’s remuneration
policy for directors, supervisors and senior management is based on the
principle of combining incentives and disciplines, and market adjustment and
governmental regulation.

The Directors receive remuneration in the form of salaries, allowances, benefits
in kind, discretionary bonuses and retirement scheme contributions made on
their behalf.

During the Review Period, there was no arrangement under which a Director
has waived or agreed to waive any remuneration.

Responsibility Statement of Directors Regarding Preparation
of Account

All Directors of the Company had committed their responsibilities to the
preparation of the Company’s account for the year ended 31 December 2014.

The Board was not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that might cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern and the Board has prepared the financial statements on a
going concern basis.
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Board Committees

The Board has set up four specialised committees, namely, the Strategy
Committee, the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration and Assessment Committee, in accordance with the CG Code.
These Board committees are assigned respective responsibilities according
to their terms of reference. The composition and main functions of these
specialised committees and their work during the Review Period are set out as
follow:

Strategy Committee

As of the date of this annual report, the members of the Strategy Committee
comprise Mr. Jiao Chengyao (Chairman), Mr. Xiang Jiayu, Mr. Wang Xinying,
Mr. Guo Haofeng and Mr. Wu Guangming.

The primary responsibilities of the Strategy Committee are to study and
comment on our long-term development plans and significant investment
strategies, including: (i) reviewing the Company’s long-term development
strategies; (ii) reviewing and commenting on the Company’s significant capital
investment and financing proposals that require approval of the Board,; (iii)
reviewing and commenting on the significant capital expenditure and assets
management projects that require approval of the Board; and (iv) exercising
other functions and duties as authorized by the Board.

The Strategy Committee convened one meeting during the year. Mr. Jiao
Chengyao, Mr. Shao Chunsheng, Mr. Xiang Jiayu, Mr. Wang Xinying and Mr.
Luo Jiamang had attended this meeting.

The Strategy Committee considered and approved the proposal on the strategic
development of the Company for the year 2014.
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Board Committees (Continued)
Audit Committee

As of the date of this annual report, the members of the Audit Committee
comprise Mr. Li Xudong (Chairman), Mr. Jiang Hua and Ms. Liu Yao, all of
whom are the Independent Non-executive Directors.

The primary responsibilities of the Audit Committee are to review and supervise
the Company’s financial reporting and auditing work, including: (i) proposing
appointment and replacement of the Company’s independent auditors; (ii)
supervising the Company’s internal auditing policies and their implementation;
(ili) coordinating the communication between our internal audit department and
the independent auditors; (iv) reviewing the Company’s financial information
and disclosure of such information; (v) reviewing the Company’s internal control
systems and auditing on the material connected or related party transactions;
and (vi) exercising other functions and duties as authorized by the Board.

The Audit Committee convened four meetings during the year. Attendance of
which is as follows:

The Audit Committee considered and approved the following proposals during
the year. It convened two meetings with external auditors, discussed with them
regarding the legitimacy of the applied accounting principles and practices
and reviewed the list of the internal control findings discovered during the
engagement.

1. On 27 March 2014, the Audit Committee had convened the 2014 first
meeting. Mr. Li Bin, Mr. Lin Zhijun and Mr. Luo Jiamang had attended
this meeting and considered and approved the Proposal on 2013 Audited
Domestic and Qverseas Financial Report of Zhengzhou Coal Mining
Machinery Group Company Limited, the Proposal on 2013 Annual Report
on A Shares and Summary thereof of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery
Group Company Limited, the Proposal on 2013 Results Announcement of
H Shares of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company Limited
and Authorising the Chairman of the Company to Sign and Announce 2013
Annual Report of the Company’s H Shares, the Proposal on the Report on
Internal Control Assessment for 2013, the Proposal on the Audit Report
on Internal Control for 2013, the Proposal on the Appointment of External
Audit Institution for 2014 and Payment for the Auditing Fee for 2013
and the Proposal on the 2013 Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions;
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Board Committees (Continued)
Audit Committee (Continued)

2. 0n 25 April 2014, the Audit Committee had convened the 2014 second
meeting. Mr. Li Bin and Mr. Luo Jiamang had attended this meeting and
considered and approved the Proposal on the 2014 First Quarterly Report
of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company Limited;

3. On 21 August 2014, the Audit Committee had convened the 2014 third
meeting. Mr. Li Bin, Mr. Luo Jiamang and Ms. Liu Yao had attended this
meeting and considered and approved the Proposal on the 2014 Unaudited
Interim Financial Statements of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group
Company Limited, the Proposal on 2014 Interim Report on A Shares and
Summary thereof of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company
Limited and the Proposal on 2014 Interim Results Announcement of H
Shares and 2014 Interim Report of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery
Group Company Limited;

4. 0n 20 October 2014, the Audit Committee had convened the 2014 fourth
meeting. Mr. Li Bin, Mr. Luo Jiamang and Ms. Liu Yao had attended this
meeting and considered and approved the Proposal on the 2014 Third
Quarterly Report and the Summary thereof of Zhengzhou Coal Mining
Machinery Group Company Limited.

Nomination Committee

As of the date of this annual report, the members of the Nomination Committee
comprise Mr. Jiang Hua (Chairman), Mr. Liu Qiang and Ms. Liu Yao. The
Nomination Committee is chaired by an Independent Non-executive Director and
comprises a majority of Independent Non-executive Directors.

The primary responsibilities of the Nomination Committee are to: (i) advise
on the size and structure of the Board in accordance with the position of
the Company’s operation, scale of assets and shareholding structure; (ii)
formulate the selection criteria and procedures for candidates of the Company’s
directors and management personnel; (i) search for qualified candidates of
directors and management personnel; (iv) review the qualifications and other
credentials of the candidates of directors and management personnel; (v)
assess the independence of independent non-executive directors; (vi) make
recommendations on the appointment and re-appointment of the Company’s
directors; and (vii) exercise other functions and duties as authorized by the
Board.
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Board Committees (Continued)
Nomination Committee (Continued)

The Nomination Committee convened three meetings during the year.
Attendance of which is as follows:

During the year, the Nomination Committee reviewed the legitimacy regarding
the structure of the Board and assessed the independence of Independent Non-
executive Directors in accordance with the Board Diversity Policy.

1. The 2014 first meeting of the Nomination Committee was held in the
Conference Room of the Company at 8:20 am on 27 March 2014.
Members of the Nomination Committee, namely Mr. Jiao Chengyao and
Mr. Gao Guoan attended the meeting in person and Mr. Luo Jiamang
attended the meeting by means of telephone. The Proposal on the
Appointment of Mr. Jia Hao as the Deputy General Manager of the
Company was passed with 3 voted in favour, 0 voted against and O
abstained.

2. The 2014 second meeting of the Nomination Committee was held in
the Conference Room of the Company at 8:15 am on 21 August 2014.
Members of the Nomination Committee, namely Mr. Jiao Chengyao, Mr.
Gao Guoan and Mr. Luo Jiamang attended the meeting in person. The
Proposal on Review on the Structure, Size and Composition (Including the
Skills, Knowledge and Experience) of the Board of the Company and the
Board Diversity was passed with 3 voted in favour, O voted against and O
abstained.

3. The 2014 third meeting of the Nomination Committee was held in the
Conference Room of the Company at 8:00 am on 24 December 2014.
Members of the Nomination Committee, namely Mr. Jiao Chengyao,
Mr. Gao Guoan, Mr. Luo Jiamang attended the meeting. The Resolution
Regarding the Nomination for the Third Session of the Board of the
Company was considered and passed with 3 voted in favour, 0 voted
against and 0 abstained. It was agreed that Mr. Jiao Chengyao,
Mr. Xiang Jiayu, Mr. Wang Xinying, Mr. Guo Haofeng and Mr. Liu Qiang
be nominated as the candidates for the Executive Directors of the third
session of the Board and Ms. Liu Yao, Mr. Jiang Hua, Mr. Li Xudong,
Mr. Wu Guangming be nominated as the candidates for the Independent
Non-executive Directors of the third session of the Board.
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Board Committees (Continued)
Remuneration and Assessment Committee

As of the date of this annual report, the members of the Remuneration and
Assessment Committee comprise Ms. Liu Yao, Mr. Wang Xinying and Mr. Wu
Guangming (Chairman). The Remuneration and Assessment Committee is
chaired by an Independent Non-executive Director and comprises a majority of
Independent Non-executive Directors.

The primary responsibilities of the Remuneration and Assessment Committee
are to: (i) formulate the remuneration and compensation policies and schemes
for the Company’s directors and management personnel; (i) evaluate the
performance of the Company’s directors and management personnel and
assess the appropriate remuneration package for such directors and officers;
(iii) supervise the implementation of remuneration policies and schemes; and (iv)
exercise other functions and duties as authorized by the Board.

The Remuneration and Assessment Committee convened two meetings during
the year. Attendance of which is as follows:

All members of the Remuneration and Assessment Committee, which are Mr,
Luo Jiamang, Mr. Shao Chunsheng and Mr. Li Bin has attended these two
meetings.

During the year, the Remuneration and Assessment Committee considered
and approved the Proposal on the Remuneration of Mr. Jia Hao as the Deputy
General Manager of the Company, the Proposal on Review on the Emolument
Policy, Structure and Remuneration Package of the Directors, Supervisors and
Senior Management of the Company and its Subsidiaries and the Proposal on
Review on the Performance of Duties and Annual Performance Assessment
of Directors and Managers of the Company. The remuneration of directors
and senior executives is determined with reference to the performance and
profitability of the Group as well as remuneration benchmarks from other
domestic and international companies and prevailing market remuneration
conditions.
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Board Committees (Continued)
Remuneration and Assessment Committee (Continued)

Pursuant to the Code Provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the annual remuneration
of the members of the senior management by band for the year ended 31
December 2014 is set out below:

Remuneration band (RMB’000)
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500-750 4
750-1,000 5
1,000-1,250 1
Board Diversity Policy BEESZnLBER
Purpose ~E

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development, the Company
sees the increasing diversity of the Board level as an essential element
in supporting the attainment of its strategic objectives and its sustainable
development. In designing the Board’s composition, Board diversity has been
considered from a number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. All Board appointments will be based on
meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against objective criteria, having
due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

Measurable Objectives

Candidates of the Company’s directors will be selected based on a range of
diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board. The Board’s
composition (including gender and age) will be disclosed in the annual report of
the Company annually.

Monitoring and Reporting

The Nomination Committee will report annually on the Board’s composition
under diversified perspectives, and monitor the implementation of Board
Diversity Policy.
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Auditors’ Remuneration

The Company has appointed Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu and BDO CHINA SHU
LUN PAN Certified Public Accountants LLP as the international and domestic
auditors of the Company, respectively. Details of fees paid or payable to the
auditors by the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014 are as follows:

R BB B

ARBEDHIEBEE » WEMRD SEITMNILES
EDETSAT (IR E B A B)ERAR BNEBRAIRAZE
fi- B=E—ZT-—WF+-A=+—HILFE  F%£EE
NN ERFBNT

Services rendered Fees
FriR ftAR 7% WESHE
(RMB’000)

(AREFTT)

2014 annual audit T -NFEEZ 2,980
Non-audit services IEEZ R 1,000
Total @t 3,980

Company Secretary

The company secretary of the Company is Mr. Zhang Haibin (“Mr. Zhang”),
who also acts as the board secretary of the Company, is an employee of the
Company and has day-to-day knowledge of the Company’s affairs. During the
reporting period, the company secretary of the Company was Mr. Bao Xueliang
(“Mr. Bao”), who retired from his office on 2 March 2015.

In addition, the Company appointed Ms. Chan Yin Wah (“Ms. Chan”) as the
assistant to the company secretary, to work closely with Mr. Bao and to provide
assistance to Mr. Bao to discharge his duties and responsibilities as company
secretary such as organizing meetings of the Board and meetings of holders
of the H Shares and in gaining the relevant experience as required under Rule
3.28 of Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange in 2014. Ms. Chan is an associate
director of a corporate service provider, SW Corporate Services Group Limited.
In 2014, the primary corporate contact person at the Company is Mr. Bao,
whom Ms. Chan will contact on matters relating to corporate governance, the
Listing Rules of Hong Kong as well as other laws and regulations which are
relevant to the Company and other affairs of the Company. After resignation of
Mr. Bao, Ms. Chan’s primary corporate contact person at the Company is Mr.
Zhang.

Mr. Bao and Ms. Chan have taken not less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training during the reporting period, respectively.
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Investor Relations, Communication with Shareholders
and General Meeting

The Company considers that effective communication with shareholders
is essential for enhancing investor relations and investors’ understanding
of the Group’s business performance and strategies. The Company also
recognizes the importance of transparency and timely disclosure of corporate
information. Information of the Company is communicated to shareholders
mainly through the Company’s corporate communications including interim
and annual reports, announcements and circulars, etc. These publications
are sent to the shareholders in a timely manner and are also available on the
website of the Company (http://www.zzmj.com). The means of communication
between the Company and the shareholders also include general meetings,
analysts meetings or seminars, one-on-one meetings, telephone consultation,
advertisements, media interviews and coverage, site visits and roadshows, etc.

Shareholders’ Rights

According to the articles of association of the Company, shareholder(s)
individually or in aggregate holding 10% or above of the shares of the
Company shall have the right, by written requisition to the Board to propose
an extraordinary general meeting to be called. The Board shall, in accordance
with laws, administrative regulations, rules and the articles of association of the
Company, make a response in writing on whether or not it agrees to convene an
extraordinary general meeting, within ten days upon receipt of such requisition.
If the Board agrees to convene the extraordinary general meeting, notice
convening the extraordinary general meeting shall be issued within five days
after the Board resolves to do so. If the Board does not agree to convene the
extraordinary general meeting or does not reply within 10 days upon receiving
the request, shareholders individually or jointly holding 10% or above of the
Company’s issued shares have the right to propose the Board of Supervisors to
convene an extraordinary general meeting by way of written request. If the Board
of Supervisors agrees to convene the extraordinary general meeting, notice
convening the extraordinary general meeting shall be issued within five days
upon receiving the request. Should there be alterations to the original requests
in the notice, consent has to be obtained from the related shareholders. If the
Board of Supervisors does not issue notice of the general meeting within the
required period, it will be considered as not going to convene and preside over
the general meeting, and shareholders individually or jointly holding 10% or
above of the shares of the Company for 90 consecutive days have the right to
convene and preside over the meeting on their own. The requisitionists shall
be compensated by the Company for any reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionists by reason of failure by the Board of Directors and the Board of
Supervisors to duly convene a meeting, and any sum so compensated shall be
set-off against sums owed by the Company to the defaulting Directors.
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Shareholders’ Rights (continued)

When a general meeting is convened, shareholder(s) individually or in aggregate
holding 3% or above of the Company’s issued shares shall have the right
to submit proposals to the Company. Shareholders individually or jointly in
aggregate holding 3% or above of the Company’s issued shares can submit the
temporary proposal to the convener 10 days prior to the general meeting.

Shareholders have the right to make enquiries and copies of the minutes of
general meetings, resolutions of Board meetings and resolutions of the Board of
Supervisors.

Shareholders may make enquiries about the Company’s affairs through our
investor relations consultant of the Company:

Strategic Development Division of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group
Company Limited

Address: No. 167 (Nan San Huan), 9th Street
Eco-Tech Development Zone
Zhengzhou
Henan Province
PRC

Telephone: (86371) 6789 1017

Fax: (86371) 6789 1100

Postal Code: 450016

During the Review Period, following the consideration and approval to the
amendments to the constitutional documents of the Company as set out below
at the annual general meeting held on 5 June 2014, Article 14 of the Articles of
Association has been amended as follows:

“Subject to registration in accordance with laws, the Company’s scope of
business includes: design, processing, manufacturing of mining machinery and
equipment, environmental protection equipment, general machinery, power
station equipment, accessory, tool and die; sales of metal materials; corporation
management consulting; imports and exports of cargo and technology with
exception of cargo and technology prohibited by the state; lease of real estate
and tangible chattel and technology services.” For details, please refer to the
circular dated 16 April 2014, the announcement dated 6 June 2014 and the
Articles of Association of the Company uploaded to the Stock Exchange’s
website on 6 June 2014.

Save as the aforesaid, during the Review Period, there was no significant
change in the constitutional documents of the Company.
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Board of Supervisors
Composition of Board of Supervisors

As of the date of this annual report, the Board of Supervisors composes of
seven members, four of whom are nominated by the shareholders and three are
nominated by the employees. The Supervisors are appointed for a term of three
years, upon the expiry of which they may be re-elected.

The members of the Board of Supervisors are Mr. Li Chongqing, Mr. Zhang
Zhigiang, Mr. Zhou Rong, Mr. Liu Fuying, Mr. Ni Heping, Mr. Jia Jingcheng and
Ms. Xu Mingkai.

The biographies of the Supervisors of the Company are set out under section
“Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management” of this annual report. Save
as disclosed in that section, there is no any other material relationship among
members of the Board of Supervisors.

Duties of Board of Supervisors

The Board of Supervisors shall be accountable to the general meetings and
exercise the following powers in accordance with laws:

e reviewing regular corporate reports prepared by the Board and submitting
written opinions regarding the same;

e examining the finance affairs of the Company;

e monitoring of the performance of duties of Directors and senior
management, and proposing the dismissal of Directors and senior
management who have violated the laws, administrative regulations and
articles of association or resolutions of the general meeting;

e demanding for correction in the event of any damage to the interests of the
Company caused by Directors or senior management;

e proposing the convening of extraordinary general meetings, and convening
and chairing of general meetings in the event of the Board having failed to
perform its duties to convene and chair the general meeting pursuant to
the Company Law (2 &13%);

e proposing motions to general meetings;
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Board of Supervisors (Continued)

Duties of Board of Supervisors (Continued)

liaising with Directors on behalf of the Company and instituting legal
proceedings against Directors and senior management pursuant to the
provisions of Article 152 of the Company Law;

in case of any irregularity related to the operation of the Company
identified, to investigate and if necessary, to engage professional
institutions such as accountants or law firms to assist in its work at the
expense of the Company;

reviewing the financial report, operation report and profit distribution plan
to be submitted by the Board to the general meetings; and may, in the
name of the Company, appoint a certified public accountant or a qualified
auditor to re-examine such documents if a suspicious item was identified;

exercising other duties and powers specified in the articles of association
of the Company.

During the reporting period, the Board of Supervisors held five meetings.
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Report of the Board of Directors EEE2HEE

The Board is pleased to present its report together with the audited financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2014.

Principal Activities and Subsidiaries

The principal activities of the Company are the manufacturing of comprehensive
coal mining and excavating equipment. Details of the principal activities of
its subsidiaries are set out in note 44 to the financial statements. During the
Review Period, there were no significant changes in the nature of the principal
activities of the Group.

Results and Dividends

The Group’s results for the year ended 31 December 2014 are set out in the
financial statements on pages 88 to 171 of this annual report.

Relevant resolution has been passed at a meeting of the Board held on 17
March 2015, and the Board proposed the payment of a final dividend (the “Final
Dividend”) of RMB0.038 per share for the year ended 31 December 2014,
totalling approximately RMB61.60 million. If the proposal in relation to the profit
distribution is approved by the shareholders at the 2014 annual general meeting
to be held on 5 June 2015, the Final Dividend for H Shares of the Company will
be distributed on 22 July 2015 to H Shareholders of whose names appear on
the H share register of the Company on Wednesday, 17 June 2015 (the “Record
Date”).

According to the Enterprise Income Tax Law of the PRC (Fh £ A R £ FNE
EERTSREE) and its implementation regulations (the “EIT Law”), the tax
rate of the enterprise income tax applicable to the income of a non-resident
enterprise deriving from the PRC is 10%. For this purpose, any H Shares
registered under the name of non-individual enterprise, including the H Shares
registered under the name of HKSCC Nominees Limited, other nominees or
trustees, or other organizations or entities, shall be deemed as shares held
by non-resident enterprise shareholders (as defined under the EIT Law). The
Company will distribute the Final Dividend to those non-resident enterprise
shareholders subject to a deduction of 10% enterprise income tax withheld and
paid by the Company on their behalf.

Any resident enterprise (as defined under the EIT Law) which has been legally
incorporated in the PRC or which was established pursuant to the laws of
foreign countries (regions) but has established effective administrative entities in
the PRC, and whose name appears on the Company’s H Share register should
deliver a legal opinion ascertaining its status as a resident enterprise furnished
by a qualified PRC lawyer (with the official chop of the law firm issuing the
opinion affixed thereon) and relevant documents to Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited in due course, if they do not wish to have the 10%
enterprise income tax withheld and paid on their behalf by the Company.
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Results and Dividends (Continued)

Pursuant to the Notice on the Issues on Levy of Individual Income Tax after the
Abolishment of the Circular SAT No.[1993] 045 (87 B4 25 [1993] 045557
N RE IH1 A R EAFTS HEUE BB RSB A (the “Notice”) issued
by the State Administration of Taxation on 28 June 2011, the dividend to be
distributed by the PRC non-foreign invested enterprise which has issued shares
in Hong Kong to the overseas resident individual shareholders, is subject to the
individual income tax with a tax rate of 10% in general. However, the tax rates
for respective overseas resident individual shareholders may vary depending
on the relevant tax agreements between the countries of their residence and
Mainland China. Thus, 10% personal income tax will be withheld from the Final
Dividend payable to any individual shareholders of H Shares whose names
appear on the H Share register of members of the Company on the Record Date,
unless otherwise stated in the relevant taxation regulations, taxation agreements
or the Notice.

The Company will not be liable for any claim arising from any delay in, or
inaccurate determination of the status of the shareholders or any disputes over
the mechanism of withholding.

The Board is not aware of any shareholders who have waived or agreed to waive
any dividends.

According to the Enterprise Income Tax Law of the PRC (2 A R LRI
ZEFT15%) and its implementation regulations (the “EIT Law”), the tax rate of
the enterprise income tax applicable to the income of a non-resident enterprise
deriving from the PRC is 10%. For this purpose, any H shares registered under
the name of non-individual enterprise, including the H shares registered under
the name of HKSCC Nominees Limited, other nominees or trustees, or other
organizations or entities, shall be deemed as shares held by non-resident
enterprise shareholders (as defined under the EIT Law). The Company will
distribute the Dividend to those non-resident enterprise shareholders subject to
a deduction of 10% enterprise income tax withheld and paid by the Company on
their behalf.

Any resident enterprise (as defined under the EIT Law) which has been legally
incorporated in the PRC or which was established pursuant to the laws of
foreign countries (regions) but has established effective administrative entities in
the PRC, and whose name appears on the Company’s H share register should
deliver a legal opinion ascertaining its status as a resident enterprise furnished
by a qualified PRC lawyer (with the official chop of the law firm issuing the
opinion affixed thereon) and relevant documents to Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited in due course, if they do not wish to have the 10%
enterprise income tax withheld and paid on their behalf by the Company.
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Results and Dividends (Continued)

Pursuant to the Notice on the Issues on Levy of Individual Income Tax after the
Abolishment of the Circular SAT No.(1993) 045 (B8 E7% 3% (1993) 0455%
X EE IR BB APTSTHEE B EA) (the “Notice”) issued
by the State Administration of Taxation on 28 June 2011, the dividend to be
distributed by the PRC non-foreign invested enterprise which has issued shares
in Hong Kong to the overseas resident individual shareholders, is subject to the
individual income tax with a tax rate of 10% in general. However, the tax rates
for respective overseas resident individual shareholders may vary depending
on the relevant tax agreements between the countries of their residence and
Mainland China. Thus, 10% personal income tax will be withheld from the
Dividend payable to any individual shareholders of H Shares whose names
appear on the H share register of members of the Company on the record date,
unless otherwise stated in the relevant taxation regulations, tax treaties or the
Notice.

The Company will not be liable for any claim arising from any delay in, or
inaccurate determination of the status of the shareholders or any disputes over
the mechanism of withholding.

Profit Distribution to Investors of Northbound Trading

For investors of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (including enterprises and
individuals) investing in the A shares of the Company listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange (the “Northbound Trading”), their dividends will be distributed
in RMB by the Company through the Shanghai Branch of China Securities
Depository and Clearing Corporation Limited to the account of the nominee
holding such shares. The Company will withhold and pay income taxes at the
rate of 10% on behalf of those investors and will report to the tax authorities for
the withholding. For investors of Northbound Trading who are tax residents of
other countries and whose country of domicile is a country which has entered
into a tax treaty with the PRC stipulating a dividend tax rate of lower than 10%,
those enterprises and individuals may, or may entrust a withholding agent to,
apply to the competent tax authorities for the entitlement of the rate under such
tax treaty. Upon approval by the tax authorities, the paid amount in excess of the
tax payable based on the tax rate according to such tax treaty will be refunded.

The record date and the date of distribution of cash dividends and other
arrangements for the investors of Northbound Trading will be the same as those
for the holders of A shares of the Company.
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Profit Distribution to Investors of Southbound Trading

For investors of the Shanghai Stock Exchange (including enterprises and
individuals) investing in the H shares of the Company listed on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange (the “Southbound Trading”), the Company will in due
course enter into the Agreement on Distribution of Cash Dividends of H shares
for Southbound Trading (% A BHA% A% =37 & AL Rk 25 {5 %) with the
Shanghai Branch of China Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation
Limited, pursuant to which, the Shanghai Branch of China Securities Depository
and Clearing Corporation Limited, as the nominee of the holders of H shares for
Southbound Trading, will receive all cash dividends distributed by the Company
and distribute the cash dividends to the relevant investors of H shares of
Southbound Trading through its depositary and clearing system.

The cash dividends for the investors of H shares of Southbound Trading will
be paid in RMB. Pursuant to the relevant requirements under the Notice on
the Tax Policies Related to the Pilot Program of the Shanghai-Hong Kong
Stock Connect (BARNBEREMIHX 5 B B Mgt 52 B N
s iE 55 H938 %) (Caishui [2014] No. 81), for dividends received by domestic
investors from investing in H shares listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
through Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect, the company of such H shares
shall withhold and pay individual income tax at the rate of 20% on behalf of
the investors. For dividends received by domestic securities investment funds
from investing in H shares listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange through
Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect, the tax payable shall be the same as that
for individual investors. The company of such H shares will not withhold and
pay the income tax of dividends for domestic enterprise investors and those
domestic enterprise investors shall report and pay the relevant tax themselves.

The record date and the date of distribution of cash dividends and other
arrangements for the investors of Southbound Trading will be the same as those
for the holders of H shares of the Company.
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Use of Proceeds from Initial Public Offer on the Stock
Exchange

The H Shares of the Company were listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 5 December 2012 and the net proceeds
were HK$2,155.55 million after deducting the relevant expenses. During
the Review Period, save as described in the announcement of the Company
dated 31 March 2014 in relation to the update on the use of proceeds, the
use of proceeds was in line with the usage disclosed in the prospectus of the
Company.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2014 are set out in the consolidated statements of
changes in equity and note 45 to the financial statements, respectively.

Share Capital

Details of movements in share capital of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2014 are set out in note 38 to the financial statements.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles of
association or the laws of the PRC which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

Share Option Scheme

The Company has not adopted any share option scheme.

Major Suppliers and Customers

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the total sales attributable to the
Group’s five largest customers accounted for approximately 39.78% of the
Group’s total sales while the sales attributable to the Group’s largest customer
accounted for approximately 13.73% of the Group’s total sales. For the year
ended 31 December 2014, the total purchases attributable to the Group’s five
largest suppliers accounted for approximately 44.65% of the Group’s total
purchases while the purchases attributable to the Group’s largest supplier
accounted for approximately 13.85% of the Group’s total purchases.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors, their associates
or substantial shareholders who had more than 5% of the issued share capital
of the Company has any equity interest in the Group’s five largest customers or
five largest suppliers.
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Donation

During the Review Period, the did not make any charitable or other donations.

Property, Plant and Equipment

For the year ended 31 December 2014, details of movements in property, plant
and equipment and land use rights during the year are set out in notes 19 and
20 to the financial statements.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Shares of the
Company

During the Review Period, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had
purchased, redeemed or sold any shares of the Company.

Directors and Supervisors

During the Review Period and as of the date of this report, the Directors and the
Supervisors are:

Directors:
From 1 January 2014 to 2 April 2014:

Jiao Chengyao (Executive Director, Chairman), Shao Chunsheng (Executive
Director, Vice Chairman), Xiang Jiayu (Executive Director, General Manager), Fu
Zugang (Executive Director, Deputy General Manager), Wang Xinying (Executive
Director, Deputy General Manager), Li Bin (Independent Non-executive Director),
Gao Guoan (Independent Non-executive Director), Luo Jiamang (Independent
Non-executive Director), Lin Zhijun (Independent Non-executive Director)

From 3 April 2014 to 4 June 2014:

Jiao Chengyao (Executive Director, Chairman), Shao Chunsheng (Executive
Director, Vice Chairman), Xiang Jiayu (Executive Director, General Manager), Fu
Zugang (Executive Director, Deputy General Manager), Wang Xinying (Executive
Director, Deputy General Manager), Li Bin (Independent Non-execultive Director),
Gao Guoan (Independent Non-executive Director), Luo Jiamang (Independent
Non-executive Director)

From 5 June 2014 to 9 February 2015:

Jiao Chengyao (Executive Director, Chairman), Shao Chunsheng (Executive
Director, Vice Chairman), Xiang Jiayu (Executive Director, General Manager), Fu
Zugang (Executive Director, Deputy General Manager), Wang Xinying (Executive
Director, Deputy General Manager), Li Bin (Independent Non-executive Director),
Gao Guoan (Independent Non-executive Director), Luo Jiamang (Independent
Non-executive Director), Liu Yao (Independent Non-executive Director)
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Directors and Supervisors (Continued)
Directors: (Continued)
From 10 February 2015 to the date of this report:

Mr. Jiao Chengyao (Executive Director, Chairman), Mr. Xiang Jiayu (Executive
Director), Mr. Wang Xinying (Executive Director), Mr. Guo Haofeng (Executive
Director), Mr. Liu Qiang (Executive Director)

Ms. Liu Yao (Independent Non-executive Director), Mr. Jiang Hua (Independent
Non-executive Director), Mr. Li Xudong (Independent Non-executive Director),
Mr. Wu Guangming (Independent Non-executive Director)

Supervisors:

During the Review Period and as of the date of this report, the Supervisors are:

From 1 January 2014 to 4 June 2014:

Mr. Wang Tiehan, Mr. Xu Yongen, Mr. Ding Hui, Mr. Lv Yu, Mr. Ni Heping, Mr.
Jia Jingcheng, Ms. Xu Mingkai

From 5 June 2014 to 9 February 2014:

Mr. Wang Tiehan, Mr. Zhang Zhigiang, Mr. Ding Hui, Mr. Lv Yu, Mr. Ni Heping,
Mr. Jia Jingcheng, Ms. Xu Mingkai

From 10 February 2015 to the date of this report:

Mr. Li Chongqing, Mr. Zhang Zhigiang, Mr. Zhou Rong, Mr. Liu Fuying, Mr. Ni
Heping, Mr. Jia Jingcheng, Ms. Xu Mingkai

Directors’ and Supervisors’ Service Contracts

During the Review Period, none of the Directors or the Supervisors had entered
into or proposed to enter into any service contract with any member of the
Group other than contracts expiring or determinable by the employer within one
year without payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

Remuneration of Directors and Supervisors

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and the Supervisors for the year
ended 31 December 2014 are set out in note 15 to the financial statements.
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Directors’ and Supervisors’ Interests in Material
Contracts

No contracts of significance (as defined in Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules of
the Stock Exchange) in which a Director or a Supervisor is or was materially
interested, directly or indirectly, subsisted during the Review Period.

During the Review Period, no contracts of significance in relation to the
Company’s business in which the Company, its subsidiaries, its holding
company or a subsidiary of its holding company was a party and in which a
Director or a Supervisor is or was materially interested in any way, directly or
indirectly, subsisted at any time during the period.

No contracts or proposed contracts with the Company in relation to the
Company’s business and in which a Director or a Supervisor is or was materially
interested in any way, directly or indirectly, subsisted during the Review Period.

Directors’ Interests in Competing Business

Pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange, the Company
hereby discloses that none of the Directors had any interest in any business (other
than the business of the Group) which competes or is likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group.

Directors’ and Supervisors’ Rights to Acquire Shares
or Debentures

At no time during the Review Period were rights to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any
Directors or Supervisors or their respective spouse or minor children, or were
any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company, its holding company,
or any of its subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors or the Supervisors to acquire such rights in any other body
corporate.

Directors’, Supervisors’ and Chief Executives’
Interests and Short Positions in Securities of the
Company and its Associated Corporations

To the best knowledge of the Directors, as at 31 December 2014, the Directors,
the Supervisors and chief executives of the Company had interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (as defined in the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO”) of Hong Kong) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the provisions of Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they
are taken or deemed to have under relevant provisions of the SFQO); or were
required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register
referred to therein (including interests and short positions which they are taken
or deemed to have under relevant provisions of the SFO); or were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies under the Listing
Rules of the Stock Exchange as follows:
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[=]
Directors’, Supervisors’ and Chief Executives’ E5 - EERESTHRAERAEAR =J &
Interests and Short Positions in Securities of the HABLIENESP 2 ERR AR &
Company and its Associated Corporations (continued)
Approximate Approximate
percentage percentage
Director/ of the relevant of the total  Long position/
Supervisor/ Capacity/ Class of Number of class of number of  Short position/
Name Chief executive Nature of interest shares shares shares % shares % Lending pool
hERA
B2E BEE RAERN EROBEEN HFE KE
" BRTHAR & Rty KROS5 BOEBE #BHNBES% BAESE% AMHEHORSG
Jiao Chengyao  Director Beneficial owner A Share 3,591,840 0.26 0.22  Long position
FEHREE o= EnEBA AR% 5=
Interest of spouse A Share 890,000 0.06 0.05  Long position
iRy olz e AR% 5=
Shao Chunsheng  Director Beneficial owner A Share 3,591,840 0.26 0.22  Long position
BFEE o= EnEBA AR% 5=
Xiang Jiayu Director Beneficial owner A Share 2,526,720 0.18 0.16  Long position
DERGH o= EmiEE A AR% 5=
Interest of spouse A Share 842,240 0.06 0.05  Long position
[y olz e AR% 5=
Fu Zugang Director Beneficial owner A Share 2,526,720 0.18 0.16  Long position
(EiENE o= EnEBA AR% 5=
Interest of spouse A Share 842,240 0.06 0.05  Long position
BB e o AR% ge
Wang Xinying Director Beneficial owner A Share 2,526,720 0.18 0.16  Long position
T 5% EmEA A AR% e
Interest of spouse A Share 842,240 0.06 0.05  Long position
iRk AR% e
Ding Hui Supervisor Beneficial owner A Share 2,394,000 017 0.15  Long position
TiE = EmEA A AR% e
Interest of spouse A Share 768,000 0.05 0.05  Long position
iRk AR% e
Ni Heping Supervisor Beneficial owner A Share 2,394,500 017 0.15  Long position
e = EmEA A AR% e
Interest of spouse A Share 798,000 0.06 0.05  Long position
iRk AR% e
Zhang Zhigiang  Supervisor Beneficial owner A Share 600 0.00 0.00  Long position
iR = EmEA A AR% e
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Directors’, Supervisors’ and Chief Executives’ BEE -EENBSITHAEREAQATR
Interests and Short Positions in Securities of the HRE £ E E’J%# FZRERRARE
Company and its Associated Corporations (ontinued)
Approximate Approximate
percentage percentage
Director/ of the relevant of the total Long position/
Supervisor/ Capacity/ Class of Number of class of number of  Short position/
Name Chief executive Nature of interest shares shares shares % shares % Lending pool
1hER
B BEE BARERIN EROEEN HE KE S
#E BBITHAR S H#umt4tE ROER RHOBE HBHAEIE% HBIBEIHE% THEHORG
Guo Haofeng Chief Executive Beneficial owner A Share 2,526,720 0.18 0.16  Long position
R BR{TBAE EmEAA AR S=)
Gao Youjin Chief Executive Beneficial owner A Share 2,526,720 0.18 0.16  Long position
SE=§ BR{TBAE EmEAA AR S5=)
Zhang Minglin Chief Executive Beneficial owner A Share 2,526,720 0.18 0.16  Long position
SRARAR BR{TBAE EmEAA AR S5=)
Bao Xueliang Chief Executive Beneficial owner A Share 2,472,960 0.18 0.15  Long position
MHER BR{TBAE EmEAA AR S5=)
Guo Desheng Chief Executive Beneficial owner A Share 2,394,000 017 0.15  Long position
ShEAE BR{TBAE EmEAA AR S5=)
Structure and Number of Shareholders BRELZBEREAH
Details of the shareholders as recorded in the register of shareholders of the R-EBE—E+—-_A=+—H ' AAFEELZMT8%
Company as at 31 December 2014 are as follows: PR EEFEB T ¢
Holders of A Shares ARER% R 47,727
Holders of H Shares HA AR 112
Total number of shareholders L 47,839
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares of the
Company

As at 31 December 2014, so far as the Directors were aware, the following
shareholders (other than the Directors, Supervisors or chief executives) had
interests or short positions in any shares and the underlying shares of the
Company which were required to be notified to the Company pursuant to the
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FEBRRRTAQRRFRS - HER
BB RRE

BEERMA R-T-NOF+-A=+t—H " TIIER
(B EERBESTRABRINRARBNEMRH
KB T - EARB(ESRREED)EXVEE2
K3DBAMEARRNEEIOARE - FARB(GES LY

provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were required, ERDI)EIEAL AR R BMETFRI B L M e 0%
pursuant to section 336 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register kept by the B
Company:
Approximate
percentage of Approximate
therelevant percentage of Long position/
Capacity/ Class of Number class of the total number Short position/
Name Nature of interest  shares of shares shares % of shares % Lending pool
1LER
BRAERN EROBEN HE KBS
wE LB B REEME ROEN ROBE #SAEIE% BMAESH% THEBNRG
State-owned Assets Supervision  Beneficial owner A Share 521,087,800 37.82 32.14  Long position
and Administration Commission E 5B A ARZ S
of Henan Provincial People’s
Government
EEARBNEEEESE
EREEY
National Council for Social Security Beneficial owner H Share 23,709,400 9.75 1.46  Long position
Fund HaBEHA Hi TA
2Rt EREEASESRS
CITIC Securities Company Limited®  Interest of controlled  H Share 22,402,600 9.21 1.38  Long position
corporation HR& A
Sl ]
BIHE R
CITIC Securities International Interest of controlled  H Share 22,402,600 9.21 1.38  Long position
Company Limited® corporation H& 1A
gt illsn)zNE]
MR
CSI Capital Management Limited®  Beneficial owner H Share 22,402,600 9.21 1.38  Long position
E=mBAA HAX Y=y
UBS AG Beneficial owner H Share 225,200 Long position
Hahi A A HRg 28
Holder of security H Share 16,556,600
interests in Shares  Hji&
HBRODFBEREZ
ERAA

16,781,800 6.9 1.00
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares of the
Company (Continued)

FERRRFAQTRERG - HERKR
R EBRRKEE

Approximate
percentage of
the relevant

Approximate
percentage of

Long position/

Capacity/ Class of Number class of the total number Short position/
Name Nature of interest  shares of shares shares % of shares % Lending pool
1hEEE
BARERIN EROEEN HE KE S
HE LB B REME ROER  ROBE #SYESH% BOEIL% THHERNKRE
UBS Group AG Interest of controlled  H Share 189,400 Long position
corporation HAR e
SRS EE
ol da
Holder of security H Share 15,189,000
interests in Shares  HA%
HRMNFERE
R A
15,378,400 6.32 0.95
Value Partners High-Dividend Beneficial owner H Share 14,533,600 5.97 0.90 Long position
Stocks Fund EnlEAA HA& e
Cheah Capital Management Interest of controlled  H Share 14,419,800 5.92 0.89  Long position
Limited® corporation HA% 5=
ZEH 8 EE
HiEm
Cheah Company Limited®@ Interest of controlled  H Share 14,419,800 5.92 0.89  Long position
corporation HA% e
ZiEH e EE
B R
BNP Paribas Jersey Trust Nominee for another ~ H Share 14,419,800 5.92 0.89  Long position
Corporation Limited® person HR% e
S—ABRABA
BNP Paribas Jersey Nominee Trustee H Share 14,419,800 5.92 0.89  Long position
Company Limited® ZFEA HA& e
Value Partners Group Limited® Interest of controlled  H Share 14,419,800 5.92 0.89  Long position
corporation HA& S5=)
ZEH 8 EE
Rt
To Hau Yin® Interest of the H Share 14,419,800 5.92 0.89  Long position
MO substantial HA% e
shareholder’s
spouse
AR B R
Cheah Cheng Hye® Founder of a H Share 14,419,800 5.92 0.89  Long position
BNl discretionary trust ~ H% e

B IB{EFERIRILA



Report of the Board of Directors EE 2 {EE

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares of the
Company (Continued)

Notes:

(1) CSI Capital Management Limited directly held 22,402,600 shares in the H Shares
of the Company. CSI Capital Management Limited was a wholly-owned subsidiary of
CITIC Securities International Company Limited, which was wholly-owned by CITIC
Securities Company Limited. By virtue of the SFO, CITIC Securities International
Company Limited and CITIC Securities Company Limited were deemed to own
22,402,600 shares in the H Shares of the Company which were in the same block
directly held by CSI Capital Management Limited.

(2) Cheah Company Limited directly held 14,419,800 shares in the H Shares of
the Company. Cheah Capital Management Limited was wholly-owned by Cheah
Company Limited. By virtue of the SFO, Cheah Capital Management Limited was
deemed to own 14,419,800 shares in the H Shares of the Company which were in
the same block directly held by Cheah Company Limited.

(3) BNP Paribas Jersey Trust Corporation Limited directly held 14,419,800 shares in
the H Shares of the Company. BNP Paribas Jersey Nominee Company Limited was
wholly-owned by BNP Paribas Jersey Trust Corporation Limited. Cheah Company
Limited was wholly-owned by BNP Paribas Jersey Nominee Company Limited. By
virtue of the SFO, Cheah Company Limited was deemed to own 14,419,800 shares
in the H Shares of the Company which were in the same block directly held by BNP
Paribas Jersey Trust Corporation Limited.

(4) Value Partners Group Limited directly held 14,419,800 shares in the H Shares of the
Company. Value Partners Hong Kong Limited was wholly-owned by Value Partners
Group Limited; and Value Partners Limited was wholly-owned by Value Partners
Hong Kong Limited. By virtue of the SFO, Value Partners Hong Kong Limited and
Value Partners Limited were deemed to own 14,419,800 shares in the H Shares of
the Company which were in the same block directly held by Value Partners Group
Limited.

(5) To Hau Yin is the spouse of Cheah Cheng Hye. By virtue of the SFO, To Hau Yin was
deemed to own 14,419,800 shares in the H Shares of the Company which were in
the same block directly held by Cheah Cheng Hye.

(6) Cheah Cheng Hye was the founder of a discretionary trust and the trustee of which
was C H Cheah Family Trust. By virtue of the SFO, Cheah Cheng Hye was deemed
to own 14,419,800 shares in the H Shares of the Company which were in the same
block directly held by C H Cheah Family Trust.

Public Float

Based on the public information available to and the knowledge of the Directors,
as at the date of this annual report, the Company has maintained sufficient
public float as required by the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange.
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(2) Cheah Company Limited & ¥ #5 / 14,419,800 i A& X BIHAR ©
Cheah Company Limited % & # /5 Cheah Capital Management
Limited = 1R 575 % R HIE &0 - Cheah Capital Management
Limited#45 {4 & FCheah Company Limited & & 44 E—#t
14,419,800% A A BIHAR ©

(3) BNP Paribas Jersey Trust Corporation Limited & #%% 14,419,800
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Retirement Benefit Scheme

The Group’s full-time employees in the PRC are covered by a defined
contribution pension scheme operated by the government, and are entitled
to a monthly pension from the date of retirement. The PRC government is
responsible to perform the pension obligation for these retired employees. The
Group is required to make annual contributions to the retirement scheme at a
rate of 20% of employees’ basic salaries, which are charged as an expense
when the employees have rendered services entitling them to the contributions
and when the contributions are due. For the year ended 31 December 2014,
a total contribution of RMB58.8 million made by the Group to the retirement
scheme was charged to the statement of income. Further information about the
Group’s pension scheme is set out in note 41 to the financial statements.

Corporate Governance Code

During the Review Period, save as the deviation disclosed in the Corporate
Governance Report set out in the annual report of last year, the Company had
complied with the applicable Corporate Governance Code set out in Appendix
14 to the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange.

Connected Transactions and Continuing Connected
Transactions

During the Review Period, the Company had entered into the following
non-exempt continuing connected transactions:

The transaction with Huainan Mining (Group) Co., Ltd. (EFEIEX(£E)
AR & {EA 7)) (“Huainan Mining’) in relation to the sale and purchase of
equipment, raw materials and accessories.

The Company entered into a framework agreement (the “Huainan Mining
Framework Agreement”) dated 2 September 2012 with Huainan Mining. The
Huainan Mining Framework Agreement took effect from the Listing Date and
has a term expiring on 31 December 2014, renewable upon mutual agreement.
Pursuant to the Huainan Mining Framework Agreement, the Group will supply
to the Huainan Mining coal mining and excavating equipment produced by the
Group, and the Group will purchase certain raw materials and accessories from
or sourced by the Huainan Mining from time to time. Huainan Mining holds
approximately 37.4% of the equity interest in ZMJ Shun Li Machinery, which is
a subsidiary of the Company held as to approximately 58.0% by the Company.
For the purposes of the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange, Huainan Mining is
therefore a substantial shareholder of ZMJ Shun Li Machinery, and hence each
of the members of the Huainan Mining is a connected person of the Company.
Thereby, the transactions under the Huainan Mining Framework Agreement
constitute continuing connected transactions of the Company.
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Connected Transactions and Continuing Connected
Transactions (Continued)

The terms of the Huainan Mining Framework Agreement were negotiated on
an arm'’s length basis and in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group. Under that agreement, the pricing or consideration of the transactions
between the parties will be determined on the following basis in order of priority:

e the price prescribed by the PRC government (including any price prescribed
by any relevant local authorities), if applicable;

e the price recommended under the pricing guidelines of the PRC
government, when no PRC government-prescribed price is available;

e the market price of similar transactions to be determined on a fair and
reasonable basis, when neither the PRC government-prescribed price nor
PRC government recommended price is available;

e the price to be determined on a fair and reasonable basis in our ordinary
and usual course of business which is equivalent or comparable to those
offered to or obtained from (as the case may be) third parties independent
of the Group for similar products, when none of the above is available or
applicable.

To implement the transactions contemplated under the Huainan Mining
Framework Agreement, the parties will enter into separate agreements or order
forms which will specify and record the specific terms (such as the quantity
and the specification of the products to be supplied or purchased under each
transaction, and the payment and delivery terms) and operative provisions of
those transactions determined on the basis of the Huainan Mining Framework
Agreement. Under the Huainan Mining Framework Agreement, before making
supply of coal mining and excavating equipment to any member of the Huainan
Mining, the Group may have to participate in tender procedures organized by
the Huainan Mining; and if the tender is successful, the Group shall bear the
costs and expenses incurred in the tender arrangements.

For the three years ended 31 December 2012, 2013 and 2014, the proposed
annual caps for the Group’s sales to the Huainan Mining were RMB90O million,
RMB950 million and RMB1,000 million, respectively. For the three years ended
31 December 2012, 2013 and 2014, the proposed annual caps for the Group’s
purchases from the Huainan Mining were RMB1,100 million, RMB1,200 million
and RMB1,300 million, respectively. For the year ended 31 December 2014,
the sales from the Group to the Huainan Mining and the purchases of the Group
from the Huainan Mining under the Huainan Mining Framework Agreement were
approximately RMB660 million and approximately RMB285 million respectively,
which were in line with the abovementioned annual caps of the Company.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
The auditor has issued its unqualified letter containing its findings and
conclusions in respect of the Group’s continuing connected transactions as
disclosed above in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules.
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Connected Transactions and Continuing Connected
Transactions (Continued)

The Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company have reviewed the
foresaid continuing connected transactions and confirmed that the transactions
were entered into:

(i) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Company;
(i) on normal or better commercial terms; and

(i) these transactions are conducted in accordance with the respective
agreements and on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests
of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

During the Review Period, continuing related party transactions of the Company
complied with the disclosure requirements regarding continuing connected
transaction in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange.
Please refer to note 42 of the financial statements for the major related party
transactions pursuant to IFRSs. For the connected transactions and continuing
connected transactions pursuant to the requirements of Listing Rules of the
Stock Exchange, please see this section.

Closure of the Register of Members

The 2014 Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held on 5 June
2015 (Friday). In order to determine the H Share holders’ entitiement to attend
the Annual General Meeting, the H Share register of members of the Company
will be closed from 6 May 2015 (Wednesday) to 5 June 2015 (Friday), both
days inclusive, during which no transfer of shares will be registered. For the
H Shareholders who wish to attend the 2014 Annual General Meeting but
not yet registered, all transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong Share registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712—1716,
17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong no
later than 4:30 p.m. on 5 May 2015 (Tuesday).

If the resolution of the proposed dividend is approved in the 2014 Annual
General Meeting, the H Share dividends will be paid to H Share holders whose
names appeared on the Company’s H Share register of members after the
close of trading as at 17 June 2015 (Wednesday). The Company’s register
of shareholders will be closed from 12 June 2015 (Friday) to 17 June 2015
(Wednesday), both days inclusive, during which no transfer of shares will be
registered. For the H Share holders who wish to receive the final dividend but
not yet registered, all transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong Share registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716,
17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong no
later than 4:30 p.m. on 11 June 2015 (Thursday).
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Audit Committee

The audit committee has reviewed the accounting principles and policies
adopted by the Group and the audited annual consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2014 with the management team and the
external auditor.

Auditor

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014
has been audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu. A resolution to re-appoint
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as the auditor of the Company will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

By order of the Board
Jiao Chengyao
Chairman

Zhengzhou, the People’s Republic of China
17 March 2015
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During 2014, in accordance with the relevant requirements of the Company
Law, the Articles of Association and the Rules of Meetings of the Board of
Supervisors of the Company, the Company’s Board of Supervisors dutifully and
conscientiously discharged their obligations and exercised their supervisory
duties towards the directors and senior management of the Company in
compliance with the principle of being accountable to all shareholders of
the Company, playing a positive role for standardizing the operation and
development of the Company.

Basic evaluation on Management Behavior of
the Board of Directors and Manager and the
Performance achieved in 2014

Through our supervision over the directors and senior management
of the Company, the Board of Supervisors considered that the Board
was able to strictly comply with the requirements of the Company Law,
Articles of Association and the other relevant laws and regulations and
operated in accordance with the laws. All major operation decisions
of the Company were rational and the decision-making process was
lawful and valid. The Company has further established and enhanced
its internal management systems and internal control mechanisms to
further regulate its operation. The directors and senior management
of the Company conscientiously executed their respective duties
in accordance with the national laws, regulations, the Articles of
Association, and the resolutions of the shareholders’ general meetings
and the Board meetings, and they were devoted to their duties, giving
their utmost efforts in exploration and expansion. None of the directors
and senior management of the Company were discovered for violating
any laws, regulations, the Articles of Association when discharging
their duties of the Company and no acts which contravene the interests
of the shareholders or the Company was found.
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The Work Overview of the Board of Supervisors

During the reporting period, the Board of Supervisors held five
meetings. Details are set out below:

1. The ninth meeting of the second session of the Board of
Supervisors was held on 27 March 2014, considering and
approving the Proposal on the 2013 Work Report of the
Board of Supervisors of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery
Group Company Limited, the Proposal on 2013 Audited
Domestic and Overseas Financial Report of Zhengzhou Coal
Mining Machinery Group Company Limited, the Proposal on
2013 Annual Report on A Shares and Summary thereof of
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company Limited,
the Proposal on 2013 Results Announcement of H Shares
of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company
Limited and Authorising the Chairman of the Company to
Sign and Announce 2013 Annual Report of the Company’s H
Shares, the Proposal on the 2013 Profit Distribution Plan of
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company Limited,
the Proposal on the 2013 Specific Audit Report on the Deposit
and Use of Proceeds of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery
Group Company Limited, the Proposal on the Use of Part of
the Balance of the Proceeds under A Share Projects and the
Balance of the Surplus Proceeds from A Shares Offering as
Supplemental Working Capital Permanently, the Proposal
on the Report on Internal Control Assessment for 2013, the
Proposal on the Audit Report on Internal Control for 2013 and
the Proposal on the Change of Supervisors.

2. The tenth meeting of the second session of the Board of
Supervisors was held on 25 April 2014, considering and
approving the 2014 First Quarterly Report of Zhengzhou Coal
Mining Machinery Group Company Limited.

3. The eleventh meeting of the second session of the Board
of Supervisors was held on 21 August 2014, considering
and approving the Proposal on 2014 Interim Report on A
Shares and the Summary thereof of Zhengzhou Coal Mining
Machinery Group Company Limited, the Proposal on 2014
Interim Results Announcement of H Shares of Zhengzhou Coal
Mining Machinery Group Company Limited and Authorising the
Chairman of the Company to Sign and Announce 2014 Interim
Report of the Company’s H Shares, and the Proposal on the
Specific Report on the Deposit and Actual Use of Proceeds of
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company Limited.

4. The twelfth meeting of the second session of the Board of
Supervisors was held on 20 October 2014, considering and
approving the Proposal on 2014 Third Quarterly Report and
the Summary thereof of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery
Group Company Limited.
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The Work Overview of the Board of Supervisors
(Continued)

5. The thirteenth meeting of the second session of the Board
of Supervisors was held on 24 December 2014, considering
and approving the Proposal on the Election of a Supervisor
Representing Shareholders for the Third Session of Board of
Supervisors.

The Board of Supervisors took part in the Company’s major work by
attending the Board meetings and effectively supervised the meeting
agendas, voting procedures and voting results, etc. and offered
opinions and recommendations on operation activities, proposals
and profit distribution plans, etc. The Board of Supervisors also
effectively supervised the guiding principles for decision-making and
the decisions made to ensure their compliance with the laws and
regulations of the state, the Articles of Association and the resolutions
of the shareholders’ general meetings and that they are in the interests
of shareholders.

The Independent Opinion of the Board of
Supervisors on the Company’s Operations in
2014

1. Lawful operation of the Company

The Board has complied with relevant requirements stipulated in
the Company Law, the Articles of Association, and the Rules of
Meetings of the Board of Supervisors of the Company and carried
on regulated operations and the decision-making procedures were
lawful and valid. The Company has established and improved
internal control system; the directors and senior management of
the Company discharged their duties in the Company diligently and
dutifully, with no acts of violation of any laws, regulations and the
Articles of Association or with prejudice to the Company’s interests
were discovered.

2. Inspection of financial status of the Company

The Board of Supervisors has reviewed the financial status of
the Company and considered that the financial report of the
Company reflected the actual state of the Company’s financial
position and operation results and that the audit report was truthful
and reasonable, and was favorable for the shareholders to truly
understand the financial and operational status of the Company.
The 2014 Annual Report prepared by the Board truthfully, lawfully
and completely reflected the Company’s position without any false
record, misleading statement or any material omissions.
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The Independent Opinion of the Board of
Supervisors on the Company’s Operations in
2014 (Continued)

3. Inspection of the utilization of the raised proceeds

The Board of Supervisors has inspected the utilization of the raised
proceeds, and the Company has established the management
system for the raised proceeds. The proceeds were used in a
regulated manner and were invested in the projects as undertaken.
No breaches in respect of the raised proceeds were found.

. Acquisition and disposal of assets by the

Company

During 2014, no asset acquisitions, disposal, asset swaps or
mortgages were carried out by the Company, and no insider
dealing was discovered. No prejudice to the interests of certain
shareholders or dissipation of the Company’s assets was
discovered.

. Connected transactions

The connected transactions of the Company in 2014 were
conducted in strict compliance with the Articles of Association
and pursuant to the connected transaction agreements and that
the transactions were fair and reasonable; major connected
transactions were conducted on an arm’s length basis and
the statutory approval process was fulfilled, with no act that is
prejudicial to the interests of the Company and its shareholders.

. Internal control self-assessment report

The Board of Supervisors has reviewed the 2014 self-assessment
report on the Company’s internal control prepared by the Board
and the establishment and implementation of the Company’s
internal control system, and considered that the Company has
established a relatively sound internal control system which could
be effectively implemented. The self-assessment report on the
Company’s internal control truly and objectively reflected the
establishment and implementation of such control in the Company.
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The Independent Opinion of the Board of
Supervisors on the Company’s Operations in
2014 (Continued)

/.

The Board of Supervisors’ review opinions on the
2014 Annual Report of the Company

The preparation of and procedures for reviewing the 2014
Annual Report of the Company were in compliance with the
relevant requirements of the laws, regulations and the Articles of
Association. The content and the format thereof were in line with
all the requirements of China Securities Regulatory Commission
and Shenzhen Stock Exchange, with the information contained
therein giving a true view of the business management and
financial position of the Company in that year. No staff involved in
the preparation and review of the annual report was found to have
violated the confidentiality requirement.

Working Plan of the Board of Supervisors

The Board of Supervisors will strictly comply with the requirements of
the Company Law, the Articles of Association and the relevant laws,
regulations and policies of the state, truthfully perform its duties, and
further promote regulated operations of the Company.

(1) Comply with the laws and regulations and

discharge duties conscientiously

In 2015, the Board of Supervisors will strictly implement the
relevant requirements of the Company Law and the Articles of
Association and supervise the Board and the senior management
according to the laws with the purpose to further regulate the
decision-making and operation activities to ensure their compliance
with the laws. Firstly, it will urge the Company to further improve
the corporate governance structure and enhance governance
standards according to the requirements of modern corporate
system. Secondly, in accordance with the Rules of Meetings
of the Board of Supervisors of the Company, it will continue to
strengthen the enforcement of its supervisory functions and attend
the Board meetings according to the laws so as to timely grasp the
Company’s major decisions and the lawfulness of the decision-
making procedures, thereby further safeguarding the interests of
the shareholders. Thirdly, it will convene working meetings of the
Board of Supervisors on a regular basis to implement the Rules of
Meetings of the Board of Supervisors of the Company.
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Working Plan of the Board of Supervisors
(Continued)

(2) Strengthen supervision and inspection to avoid

operational risks

The Board of Supervisors will constantly strengthen the supervision
over the directors and other senior management on their
performance of duties, execution of resolutions and compliance
with the laws and regulations.

Firstly,  the financial supervision will be maintained as a focus,
and the Board of Supervisors will monitor the financial
position of the Company in accordance with the laws.

Secondly, the internal control system will be further strengthened
to prevent corporate risks and the loss of the
Company’s assets. The Board of Supervisors will
regularly keep informed of and understand the
operation state of the Company from the holding
companies, especially the major operation activities
and investment projects, and provide prompt
suggestions to stop and remedy the situation when
problems are found.

Thirdly,  the Board of Supervisors will maintain communications

and liaison with internal audit function and external

accountants (auditors) entrusted by the Company,
taking full use of internal and external audit information
to keep abreast of the updates.

Fourthly, the Board of Supervisors will focus on the high risk
areas of the Company, carry out inspections on
the critical matters, such as major investments,
management of raised proceeds and connected
transactions.

(3) Uplift professional capabilities through self-

improvement

To better perform the role of the Board of Supervisors, it should
uplift its professional qualifications first in order to work efficiently.
In this regard, members of the Board of Supervisors will receive
more trainings, attend relevant programs in a planned manner and
persist in self-improvement this year in an attempt to broaden their
professional knowledge and improve their professional capabilities
S0 as to further safeguard the interests of the Company and the
shareholders. It will strictly comply with the laws, regulations
and the Articles of Association of the Company, conscientiously
discharge their duties and better perform the supervisory duties of
the Board of Supervisors.

The Board of Supervisors of
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company Limited

17 March 2015
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B BT HR

Deloitte.
=)

TO THE MEMBERS OF ZHENGZHOU COAL MINING MACHINERY GROUP
COMPANY LIMITED
(Incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Zhengzhou Coal
Mining Machinery Group Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 84 to 167, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2014, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
1 3 % B 3R

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December 2014, and of the Group’s
profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
17 March 2015
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

GeEsEkEMEEWER

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ=—Z—NFE+—-A=+—HIFE

2014 2013
—=E—MmEF ==
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETIT
Revenue WA 7 6,124,457 8,055,311
Cost of sales SHE AR (5,070,466) (6,233,115)
Gross profit EF 1,053,991 1,822,196
Other income E bl A 9 106,667 107,356
Other gains and losses Hib e R EE 10 (342,434) (172,019)
Selling and distribution expenses SHE RO HFAX (216,273) (257,851)
Administrative expenses TR (279,513) (333,528)
Research and development expenses === (105,692) (147,048)
Share of profit (loss) of associates FEAG B D TR (E51E) 18,130 (11,740)
Share of profit of joint ventures FEIEA D ERF 9 91
Finance costs BhE R AN 11 (2,383) (3,788)
Profit before tax [ B8 B Sk A 232,584 1,003,669
Income tax expense Frisfif sz 12 (39,250) (166,688)
Profit for the year FERREA 13 193,334 836,981
Other comprehensive income (expense) H2EWA (BIX) 14
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to  FJEER A B E# 748 21875
profit or loss: ZHEA -
Fair value loss on available-for-sale financial assets AJ & > & ph & E A FEEE (32,849) (22,418)
Share of fair value loss on available-for-sale FEMREEE AR A HEE 2
financial assets of an associate TRIEEN T ERE (10,467) -
Exchange differences arising on translation REEECIERZR (923) 113
Other comprehensive expense for the year, FREMEERS © HOBRAEH
net of income tax (44,239) (22,305)
Total comprehensive income for the year ERX2EINA%E 149,095 814,676
Profit for the year attributable to: BT ATEEFRER :
Owners of the Company AARIPER 205,194 866,712
Non-controlling interests IR (11,860) (29,731)
193,334 836,981
Total comprehensive income for the year LA T A XBEEFERASER AL :
attributable to:
Owners of the Company RARIPRE 160,955 844,407
Non-controlling interests IR R = (11,860) (29,731)
149,095 814,676
EARNINGS PER SHARE SREF
— Basic and diluted (RMB) —EAREE(ARKET) 18 0.13 0.53




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
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As at 31 December 2014 R —ZE—FE+—-F=+—H
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2014
—g-mg
RMB’000
ARMT 5

2013
—T—=F

RMB’000
AR¥ET T

NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BENMERE 19 1,727,100 1,683,405
Prepaid lease payments B TR E R IE 20 389,836 397,611
Investment properties B 21 10,196 10,594
Intangible assets WA E 22 5,735 6,067
Investments in associates YN s - 23 406,796 396,083
Investments in joint ventures NEZBLHETIRE 24 3,481 3,561
Available-for-sale investments A E ZIRE 25 42,433 75,282
Deferred tax assets FEFIAE E 26 132,595 88,917
Held-to-maturity investments HEIHEE 27 369,237 -
Finance lease receivables R AT & R IE 28 11,518 -
Long-term receivables RHAEMGRIE 29 36,730 -
3,135,657 2,661,520
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Prepaid lease payments B LR E TR IE 20 8,681 8,660
Inventories VES={ 30 1,449,172 1,639,358
Loan receivables from an associate FEU—KERE AR ER 31 80,000 50,000
Trade and other receivables B 5 R E A EKGRIA 32 4,353,751 4,675,442
Finance lease receivables BB E EWIE 28 7,831 -
Long-term receivables within one year —FRR R EEREOE 29 31,919 -
Other financial assets Efem&EE 33 505,000 655,815
Tax recoverable G EE e 9,231 9,799
Pledged bank deposits EEIPRITIER 34 246,317 294,414
Bank balances and cash IRITEBRRIRS 34 2,368,314 2,656,434
9,060,216 9,989,922
CURRENT LIABILITIES =R
Trade and other payables B 5 REMmENFKIA 35 2,044,647 2,223,408
Advances from customers BEEES 450,402 562,494
Tax liabilities MIEEE 2,697 26,815
Borrowings R 36 97,170 136,050
2,594,916 2,948,767
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEERE 6,465,300 7,041,155
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES #AEERABERE 9,600,957 9,702,675
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

mE BRI R

As at 31 December 2014 R —Z—FE+—=-F=+—H

2014 2013
—E—NEF —T—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFTT
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BRAR #E
Share capital R&AR 38 1,621,122 1,621,122
Share premium AR (B 3,409,354 3,409,354
Reserves i 4,401,842 4,488,372
Equity attributable to owners of the Company AR B R RS 9,432,318 9,518,848
Non-controlling interests eI AE S 151,476 163,336
TOTAL EQUITY XA 9,583,794 9,682,184
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBERE
Other non-current liabilities HinIEmEa& 37 17,163 20,491

17,163 20,491

The consolidated financial statements on pages 88 to 171 were approved and HIINEBEITIBENGEAEMBEHRRRN—_E—FRE=A4
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 17 March 2015 and are signed TEHASEEREREETIE - WHTIATREKRE

on its behalf by: Z:
Jiao Chengyao Xiang Jiayu
RS LESS]
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

EF EF
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Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE—Z—NF&+ A =+—HI-FE
Attributable
Statutory to owners Non-

Share  Revaluation surplus  Translation Other  Retained ofthe  controlling
premium reserve reserve reserve reserves  eamings  Company  interests Total

RS AAF
RiER B i EREE  EbEE  REEN BEARG FERER aF
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'00  RMB'000  AMB'00  RMB'OO0  RMB'000  AMB'000  RMB'000
ARETR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR AREFR ARMFR ARMTR

Balance at 31 December 2012 R=E——%+-R

=t-Bz&s 1621122 3409364 - 4799 - P2 3679406 9160778 193067 9303845
Proft forthe yar il - - - - - - BO67I2 866712 (29731) 836,981
(ther comprehensive expense for the year A 12 E R X - - (22418 - 113 - - 22,305 - (22,30)
Total comprehensive income forthe year - £R2ERALE = - 24y = 13 - BE6712 8447 (9731 814676
Transfer v - - - 85,076 - - (85,076) - - -
Dividsnds (note 17) TR& (Bi7) - - - - - - (48633 (48633 - (486330

Balance at 31 December 2013 R-E-=£+-R
St-Bzis 162112 3409354 (2248 503070 113 2902 3974705 9518848 163336 9,682,184

Profitfor the year ERgi = = = = = 205,19% 205,194 (11,860) 193,334
Other comprehensive expense for the year EREM 2 EE % - - (43316) - 923 - - (44239 - (44239
Total comprehensive income for the year M2 ANALESE - - (43,316) - 923 - 205,194 160955 (118600 149,09
Contrbuton from the parent o the Compary AAFIBATEE = = - - - 20000 - 20000 - 20,000
Transfer &R - - - 17,026 - - (17,026) - - -
Dividends (e 17) e GEA) - = = = = - 6748 (26748 - (6748

Balance at 31 December 2014 RZT-METZA
St-Begs 162112 3400354 (65,734) 520,09 (610) 2902  38%388 9432318 151476 9,583,794
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GEHERER

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ=—Z—NFE+—-A=+—HIFE

2014 2013
—F-MF —F=%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETIT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES TR
Profit before tax R 74 B Sk ) 232,584 1,003,669
Adjustments for: TR
Finance costs B B AN 2,383 3,788
Interest income FEUA (95,876) (89,718)
Share of (profit) loss of associates FEMRESE AR O A BE (18,130) 11,740
Share of profit of joint ventures L& &R (91) @)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - BRENMEEITE 165,720 148,503
Depreciation of investments properties WEYHENE 398 399
Amortisation of intangible assets WA E 2B 2,488 2,107
Release of prepaid lease payments FET + 1 FE & FIE R O] 8,817 9,913
Allowance provided for doubtful debts REREE 348,071 131,625
Write-down of inventories FEHH 1,999 10,397
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEWE BERERHE W (286) (5,129)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [EREE) 2 F & 1,774 43,207
Operating cash flows before movements EEECEPRI EER SRS
in working capital 649,851 1,270,410
Decrease (increase) in inventories FERAEEmMm) 117,773 (170,528)
Increase in trade and other receivables B 5 N H b U 2 IE I h (147,080) (762,260)
Decrease in trade and other payables 2 5 R EMERRIER D (169,116) (542,857)
Decrease in advances from customers BEIRES R (112,092) (181,749
Cash generated from (used in) operations REHETETE (PR )RS 339,336 (386,984)
Income tax paid BETSH (106,479) (189,837)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES &K= %i5Fr8 (FrH)REF5E 232,857 (576,821)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE—Z—NF&+ A =+—HI-FE

2014 2013
—ZE—MEF —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETIT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETE
Interest received B UF 8 93,122 76,726
Dividends received from associates B E R RIIRE - 6,209
Dividends received from joint ventures BREEDERE 171 472
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEYZ « ME MR GRS RIE 4,743 9,033
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEVME BELEE (120,589) (135,189)
Payments for prepaid lease payments SAFERS R E R IE (1,063) (57,467)
Purchases of other intangible assets EBEHEMEREE (2,156) (1,493)
Purchase of other financial assets BEHEMEMEE (1,260,000) (2,435,815)
Proceeds on other financial assets Hihe B ERSRIE 1,410,815 1,792,992
Purchases of available-for-sale investments BEAHLERE - (89,365)
Payments for loan receivables from an associate R — KB AR ERZT3K (30,000) (50,000)
Investment in an associate R—REE QAR ZE (4,000) -
Placement of bank deposits with original maturity FEHREDIEA B =& A LA E &R TR
over three months (396,657) (430,000)
Withdrawal of bank deposits with original maturity IREURZIEA B =& A A Em R T =R
over three months 460,000 700,000
Payment of pledged bank deposits SREERITER (462,218) (599,876)
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits REE HIRIRITIER 510,315 747,862
Purchase of held-to-maturity investments BERAZIHRE (369,237) -
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETEBFMARSTFE (166,754) (465,911)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES B EE
Contribution from the parent of the Company AARFRGEE 20,000 -
Repayment of borrowings BEEE (39,238) (10,500)
Interest paid BAFIE (2,383) (3,788)
Dividends paid BARRE (267,485) (631,389)
Listing expenses paid B EmER - (18,326)
Proceeds from new borrowings raised FEEEMSRIE - 97,550
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEEBFTARSFE (289,106) (466,449)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS B4 RIESZEYIH D S8 (223,003) (1,509,181)
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES  [E R B > g/4& (1,774) (43,207)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 1 JANUARY R—B—HzZBEERBEEZSEY 2,046,434 3,698,822

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 31 DECEMBER R+ =B =+—HzZHERBEEEEY
represented by bank balances and cash (note 34) RERIBITEHRKRIE S (FisEs4) 1,821,657 2,046,434
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1. General information

The Company was established in the PRC on 28 December 2008 as a
joint stock company with limited liability under the Company Law of the
PRC after a reorganisation of ZCMM, a state owned enterprise in the PRC.
In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the parent of the Company
is the State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission
of Henan Provincial People’s Government (“Henan SASAC”) of the PRC

Government.

On 3 August 2010, the Company completed its initial public offering and
listing of 140,000,000 A shares on the Shanghai Stock Exchange under
the stock code 601717.SS. The Company was listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 5

December 2012.

The respective addresses of the registered office and the principal place
of business of the Company are disclosed in the corporate information
section of the annual report. The Group is engaged in the manufacturing of

coal mining machinery.

The consolidated financial statements is presented in Renminbi (‘RMB”),
which is also the functional currency of the Company and its principal
subsidiaries. Details of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in note 44.

2. Application of new and revised International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”)

The Group has applied the following new and revised IFRSs issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) for the first time in the

current year:

Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 Investment Entities
and IAS 27

Amendments to IAS 32
Amendments to IAS 36

Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial

Assets and Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities:

Transition

Amendments to IAS 39 Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge
Accounting

IFRIC 21 Levies

The application of the new and revised IFRSs in the current year has had
no material impact on the Group’s financial performance and positions
for the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these

consolidated financial statements.
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2.

Application of new and revised International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised IFRSs that
have been issued but are not yet effective:

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments!

IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts?

[FRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers?

Amendments to IFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint
Operations®

Amendments to IAST Disclosure Initiative®
Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38 Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation®

Amendments to IAS 16
and IAS 41
Amendments to IAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans; Employee Contributions*
Amendments to IAS 27 Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements®
Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture®

Agriculture: Bearer Plants®

Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation
and IAS 28 Exception®

Amendments to IFRSs Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle®

Amendments to IFRSs Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle*

Amendments to IFRSs Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle?

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, with earlier
application permitted.

2 Effective for first annual IFRS financial statements beginning on or after 1
January 2016, with earlier application permitted.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017, with earlier
application permitted.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014, with earlier
application permitted.

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016, with earlier
application permitted.

£ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014, with limited
exceptions. Earlier application is permitted.

Annual Report 2014

V& FA 37 5] 2 ASAE 5T B PR R 35 3 5 22 A
(I BEIFR B M5 3R 5 22 R ) ()

E MR B W AR AR 2 $15] RAEETE
SR B R RS A

AR SR E AR R R T 5 B BB AR AR FET
RERTBIFR M 3R & 2R -

BB S A R 05E SHIA

B BRERERIE 145 EERTRP

BRI SR F155% RFAMNE

B BRERERENR PRARGERE &R
(& EW)
LR ACHES)
B & ERIF 165 R
BIFR &5t RI%36%:
CHES;

BB S EERIE165 R

o
S
S
S

R8s
BEIRE L FERBEH

RE : AEMEWP

ERplENEHCHEY)

BRI EAEI(ETA) TEEAEE : EEH
BIRSRERETR(BAIA)  BUBBRERP ZESE
BEREEREEAEIRR BREEEEREARHAELEY
BIPR @t 4ER25085% HEEHENT A

(1B3TA)

EREHREEAEIN . REEE : ERGAABRNHN
BUPR B R 4R o YRS 1057 fEe
REIE e ERE85,

(1B3TA)

ERIBRLLA(ETE)  —T-TEE-T-—FN
AR S
ERIBRLLA(ETE) ST —FE-T-=FEN

BRR B A S A EB  F
“E-CER-T-NERE
BURR EA A SRAS B o

G e HES)

kX

NH

—\F—A— B AR REFE R E
*JZ N 7t FFEERTER ©
—NEF— A — BARRA A B (E 5 B
BTSSR S SR B SRR AR - WA FFIRAIER -
:? tF - A B RERIGNFREHMAE
I/LutFkEH FEMA -
—MF+ R — B A& FREFEBREE
JZ H\ﬁ/LEHEH‘JFEﬁH"
5 ORZEB-ARF—H - BHEURFRANFERARE
B A FFRATER -
o BRABRMIMERS R
il 46 O F 2 BRI AE 2K

léi

A :1

%%Dﬂi’t%

—PmE+ A — B A%
EHEWEFH °



Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Co., Ltd. AREgNiFeLEgsmESEil gy l-oNG]

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PSRRI EE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ=—Z—NFE+—-A=+—HIFE

2. Application of new and revised International

Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) (Continued)

IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers

In July 2014, IFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising
from contracts with customers. IFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue
recognition guidance including IAS 18 Revenue, IAS 11 Construction
Contracts and the related Interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of IFRS 15 is that an entity should recognize revenue
to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an
amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Specifically, the Standard
introduces a 5-step approach to revenue recognition:

Step 1:  Identify the contract(s) with a customer
Step 2:  Identify the performance obligations in the contract
Step 3:  Determine the transaction price

Step 4:  Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in
the contract

Step 5:  Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a
performance obligation

Under IFRS 15, an entity recognizes revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of the goods or services
underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred to the
customer. Far more prescriptive guidance has been added in IFRS 15
to deal with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are
required by IFRS 15.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of IFRS
15 in the future may have a material impact on the amounts reported
and disclosures made in the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
However, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect
of IFRS 15 until the Group performs a detailed review.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of other new
and revised IFRSs will have no material effect on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE=ZT—F+=—A=+—HIEFE

3. Summary of significant accounting policies 3. FTESTTERME

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with IFRSs issued by the IASB. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical
cost basis except for certain financial instruments that are measured at fair
values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration
given in exchange for goods.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at
the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure
purposes in these consolidated financial statements is determined on such
a basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are within the
scope of IFRS 2, leasing transactions that are within the scope of I1AS 17,
and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not
fair value, such as net realisable value in IAS 2 or value in use in IAS 36.
In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are
categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

e |evel 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

e |evel 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within
Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or

indirectly; and

e |evel 3inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies 3. TESTHEEHE W)
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements
of the Company and entities controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries).
Control is achieved when the Company:

e has power over the investee;

e s exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the investee; and

e has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over
the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary.
Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group’s
accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies 3. FESTHHEBEH
(Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued) e EEw®)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interest in existing subsidiaries that do
not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiary are accounted for
as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s interests and
the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between the amount
by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of
the consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity and
attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is recognised
in profit or loss and is calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value
of any retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling
interests. All amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary
(i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another category of
equity as specified/permitted by applicable IFRSs). The fair value of any
investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date when control
is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent
accounting under IAS 39, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of
an investment in an associate or a joint venture.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method.
The consideration transferred in a business combination is measured at
fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values
of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the
Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs
are generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies 3. TESTHEEHE W)
(Continued)
Business combinations (continued) ¥Battm

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed are recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date, except
that:

e deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or assets related to
employee benefit arrangements are recognised and measured in
accordance with 1AS 12 Income Taxes and IAS 19 Employee Benefits
respectively;

e liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree or share-based payment arrangements
of the Group entered into to replace the share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree are measured in accordance with IFRS
2 Share-based Payment at the acquisition date; and

e assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in
accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations are measured in accordance with that
Standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree,
and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of
the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after re-
assessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in
the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held interest in
the acquire (if any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as
a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and
entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s net assets
in the event of liquidation are initially measured at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. Other types of non-controlling interests are
measured at their fair value or, when applicable, on the basis specified in
another IFRS.
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3.

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a business
combination includes assets or liabilities resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement, the contingent consideration is measured at
its acquisition-date fair value and considered as part of the consideration
transferred in a business combination. Changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that qualify as measurement period adjustments
are adjusted retrospectively, with the corresponding adjustments being
made against goodwill or gain on bargain purchase. Measurement period
adjustments are adjustments that arise from additional information
obtained during the measurement period about facts and circumstances
that existed at the acquisition date. Measurement period does not exceed
one year from the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the contingent
consideration that do not qualify as measurement period adjustments
depends on how the contingent consideration is classified. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured at subsequent
reporting dates and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity. Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability
is remeasured at subsequent reporting dates in accordance with IAS 39,
or IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, as
appropriate, with the corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit
or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to its fair value at the
acquisition date (i.e. the date when the Group obtains control), and the
resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss. Amounts
arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date that have
previously been recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified
to profit or loss where such treatment would be appropriate if that interests
were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end
of the reporting period in which the combination occurs, the Group reports
provisional amounts for the items for which the accounting is incomplete.
Those provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement period
(see above), or additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to reflect
new information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed as
of the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the amounts
recognised at that date.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)
Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost as
established at the date of acquisition of the business (see the accounting
policy above) less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the
cash-generating units (or groups of cash-generating units) that is expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment annually, or more frequently whenever there is indication
that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in
a reporting period, the cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment before the end of that reporting period.
If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the
carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the
other assets of the unit pro rata on the basis of the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised
directly in profit or loss in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable amount
of goodwill is included in the determination of the amount of profit or loss
on disposal.

The Group’s policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of an associate is
described below.

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint control
over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have
joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint
arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control
of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.
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3.

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and joint ventures are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using the equity
method of accounting. The financial statements of associates and joint
ventures used for equity accounting purposes are prepared using uniform
accounting policies as those of the Group for like transactions and events
in similar circumstances. Under the equity method, an investment in
an associate or a joint venture is initially recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise
the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income
of the associate or joint venture. When the Group’s share of losses of an
associate or joint venture exceeds the Group’s interest in that associate or
joint venture (which includes any long-term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate or joint venture),
the Group discontinues recognizing its share of further losses. Additional
losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate or
joint venture.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted for using the
equity method from the date on which the investee becomes an associate
or a joint venture. On acquisition of the investment in an associate or a
joint venture, any excess of the cost of the investment over the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the
investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included within the carrying
amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the
investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss
in the period in which the investment is acquired.

The requirements of IAS 39 are applied to determine whether it is
necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect to the Group’s
investment in an associate or a joint venture. When necessary, the
entire carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for
impairment in accordance with I1AS 36 Impairment of Assets as a single
asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and
fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment
loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any
reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with IAS 36
to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from the date when
the investment ceases to be an associate or a joint venture, or when
the investment (or a portion thereof) is classified as held for sale. When
the Group retains an interest in the former associate or joint venture
and the retained interest is a financial asset, the Group measures the
retained interest at fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded
as its fair value on initial recognition in accordance with IAS 39. The
difference between the carrying amount of the associate or joint venture
at the date the equity method was discontinued, and the fair value of any
retained interest and any proceeds from disposing of a part interest in the
associate or joint venture is included in the determination of the gain or
loss on disposal of the associate or joint venture. In addition, the Group
accounts for all amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that associate or joint venture on the same basis as
would be required if that associate or joint venture had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive income by that associate or joint
venture would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related
assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to
profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) when the equity method is
discontinued.

The Group continues to use the equity method when an investment in
an associate becomes an investment in a joint venture or an investment
in a joint venture becomes an investment in an associate. There is no
remeasurement to fair value upon such changes in ownership interests.
When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an associate or a joint
venture but the Group continues to use the equity method, the Group
reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss that had
previously been recognised in other comprehensive income relating to that
reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss would be reclassified to
profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint venture of the
Group (such as a sale or contribution of assets), profits and losses resulting
from the transactions with the associate or joint venture are recognized
in the Group’s consolidated financial statements only to the extent of
interests in the associate or joint venture that are not related to the Group.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable and represents amounts receivable for services provided in the
normal course of business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods are
delivered and titles have passed, at which time all the following conditions
are satisfied:

e the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of the goods;

e the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the
degree usually associated with ownership nor effective control over
the goods sold;

e the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

e |t is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
transaction will flow to the Group; and

e the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can
be measured reliably.

Service income is recognised when services are provided.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholders’
rights to receive payment have been established (provided that it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount
of revenue can be measured reliably).

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of
income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

The Group’s accounting policy for recognition of revenue from operating
leases is described in the accounting policy for leasing below.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)
Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee.
All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recognized as
receivables at the amount of the Group’s net investment in the leases.
Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a
constant periodic rate of return on the Group’s net investment outstanding
in respect of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

Leasehold land for own use

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the Group
assesses the classification of each element as a finance or an operating
lease separately based on the assessment as to whether substantially all
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of each element have been
transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both elements are operating
leases in which case the entire lease is classified as an operating lease.
Specifically, the minimum lease payments (including any lump-sum upfront
payments) are allocated between the land and the building elements in
proportion to the relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the land
element and building element of the lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made reliably,
interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating lease is
presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the consolidated statement of
financial position and is amortised over the lease term on a straight-line
basis except for those that are classified and accounted for as investment
properties under the fair value model. When the lease payments cannot be
allocated reliably between the land and building elements, the entire lease is
generally classified as a finance lease and accounted for as property, plant
and equipment.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)
Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective functional
currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on
the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements, the
assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations are translated into
the presentation currency of the Group using exchange rates prevailing
at the end of each reporting period. Income and expenses items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the period. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity under the heading of translation reserve
(attributed to non-controlling interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the Group’s entire
interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of control over
a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an
interest in a joint arrangement or an associate that includes a foreign
operation of which the retained interest becomes a financial asset), all
of the exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified to
profit or l0ss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that does not
result in the Group losing control over the subsidiary, the proportionate
share of accumulated exchange differences are re-attributed to non-
controlling interests and are not recognised in profit or loss. For all other
partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals of associates or joint arrangements
that do not result in the Group losing significant influence or joint control),
the proportionate share of the accumulated exchange differences is
reclassified to profit or 0ss.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take
a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance
that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to them and that
the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis
over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses the related
costs for which the grants are intended to compensate. Specifically,
government grants whose primary condition is that the Group should
purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets are
recognised as deferred income in the consolidated statement of financial
position and transferred to profit or loss over the useful lives of the related
assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses or
losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate financial
support to the Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they become receivable.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit schemes are recognised as
an expense when employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies 3. FTESTHTHEREME®)
(Continued)
Taxation P8

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and
deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable
profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income because it excludes items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it
further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements
and the corresponding tax base used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary difference to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can
be utilized. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in
a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in
joint arrangements, except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such investments and
interests are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there
will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilize the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of the
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset
is realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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3.

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)
Deferred tax (Continued)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when
it relates to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are
also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes
(other than properties under construction as described below) are stated
at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or
administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised
impairment loss. Costs include professional fees and, for qualifying assets,
borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Group’s accounting
policy. Such properties are classified to the appropriate categories of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for intended use.
Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other property assets,
commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment other than properties under construction less their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of
any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued
use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE=ZT—F+=—A=+—HIEFE

3. Summary of significant accounting policies 3. FTESTHTHEREME®)

(Continued)
Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
Buildings under development for future owner-occupied purpose

When buildings are in the course of development for production or for
administrative purposes, the amortisation of prepaid lease payments
provided during the construction period is included as part of costs of
buildings under construction. Buildings under construction are carried
at cost, less any identified impairment losses. Depreciation of buildings
commences when they are available for use (i.e. when they are in the
location and condition necessary for them to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management).

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital
appreciation (including property under construction for such purposes).
Investment properties include land held for undetermined future use, which
is regarded as held for capital appreciation purpose.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any directly
attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Depreciation is recognised so as
to write off the cost of investment properties over their estimated useful
lives and after taking into account their estimated residual value, using the
straight-line method.

Construction costs incurred for investment properties under construction
are capitalised as part of the carrying amount of the investment properties
under construction.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in
the profit or loss in the period in which the item is derecognised.
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3.

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets acquired separately and with finite useful lives are
carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful
lives is provided on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.
The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being
accounted for on a prospective basis.

Internally-generated intangible assets — research and development
expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the
period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development activities
(or from the development phase of an internal project) is recognised if, and
only if, all of the following have been demonstrated:

e the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it
will be available for use or sale;

e the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it;
e the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

e how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic
benefits;

e the availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources to
complete the development and to use or sell the intangible asset; and

e the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the
intangible asset during its development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible asset
is the sum of the expenditure incurred from the date when the intangible
asset first meets the recognition criteria listed above. Where no internally-
generated intangible asset can be recognised, development expenditure is
charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated intangible asset
is measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses (if any), on the same basis as intangible assets acquired
separately.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE=ZT—F+=—A=+—HIEFE

3. Summary of significant accounting policies 3. FTESTHTHEREME®)
(Continued)
Intangible assets (continued) BEEE®)

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are recognised
separately from goodwill and are initially recognised at their fair value at
the acquisition date (which is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets with finite useful lives
are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible assets that are
acquired separately.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future
economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains and losses
arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than
goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with finite useful lives to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss (if any). When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable
and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets
are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they
are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value
in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not
been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset (or the cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies 3. TESTHEEHE W)
(Continued)

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than
goodwill (Continued)

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of
the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of
its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

[nventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is
calculated using the standard cost method. Net realisable value represents
the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of
completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal
or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Group will
be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of
the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of
the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash
flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows (where the effect of the time value of
money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision
are expected to be recovered from a third party, a receivable is recognised
as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and
the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue
of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets
and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE=ZT—F+=—A=+—HIEFE

3. Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into the following specified categories:
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”), held-to-
maturity investment, available-for-sale (“AFS”) financial assets and ‘loans
and receivables’. The classification depends on the nature and purpose
of the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition.
All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts (including all fees paid or received that form
an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount on initial

recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments
other than those financial assets classified as at FVTPL, of which interest

income is included in net gains or losses.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the financial asset is

either held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

et has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the

near term; or

e on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that the Group manages together and has a recent actual

pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

e jtis a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging

instrument.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued)

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading may be

designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

e such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement

or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or

e the financial asset forms part of a group of financial assets or
financial liabilities or both, which is managed and its performance
is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Group’s
documented risk management or investment strategy, and
information about the grouping is provided internally on that basis; or

e it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded
derivatives, and IAS 39 Financial Instruments.: Recognition and
Measurement permits the entire combined contract (asset or liability)

to be designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses
arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss incorporates any dividend or interest earned on
the financial asset and is included in the ‘other gains and losses’ line item.

Fair value is determined in the manner described in note 6.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. At the
end of each reporting period subsequent to initial recognition, loans and
receivables (including trade and other receivables, pledged bank deposits
and bank balances and cash) are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any identified impairment losses (see

accounting policy on impairment loss on financial assets below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate, except
for short-term receivables where the recognition of interest would be

immaterial.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies 3. FTESTHTHEREME®)
(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued) TETHEHm@
Financial assets (Continued) SREEE)
Held-to-maturity investments 1B 2 PR E

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments and fixed maturity dates that the Group has the
positive intent and ability to hold to maturity.

Subsequent to initial recognition, held-to-maturity investments are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method less any
impairment (see the accounting policy in respect of impairment losses on
financial assets below).

AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated as
available-for-sale or are not classified as financial assets at FVTPL or loans
and receivables.

Equity and debt securities held by the Group that are classified as AFS
financial assets and are traded in an active market are measured at
fair value at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the carrying
amount of AFS monetary financial assets relating to interest income
calculated using the effective interest method and dividends on AFS equity
investments are recognised in profit or loss. Other changes in the carrying
amount of AFS financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the heading of revaluation reserve.
When the investment is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, the
cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the revaluation reserve
is reclassified to profit or loss (see the accounting policy in respect of
impairment loss on financial assets below).

Dividends on AFS equity instruments are recognised in profit or loss when
the Group’s right to receive the dividends is established.

AFS equity investments that do not have a quoted market price in an active
market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured and derivatives
that are linked to and must be settled by delivery of such unquoted equity
investments are measured at cost less any identified impairment losses at
the end of each reporting period (see the accounting policy in respect of
impairment loss on financial assets below).
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for indicators
of impairment at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets are
considered to be impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a
result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the financial assets, the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets
have been affected.

For an AFS equity investment, a significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value of that investment below its cost is considered to be objective
evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could
include:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

e Dbreach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments; or

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or
financial re-organisation; or

e the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade and other
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually are
subsequently assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective
evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the
Group’s past experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number
of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit terms of the
customers, observable changes in national or local economic conditions
that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment l0ss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss will
not be reversed in subsequent periods (see the accounting policy below).
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies 3. FTESTHTHEREME®)
(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued) TETHEHm@
Financial assets (Continued) SREEE)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued) EREERE(E)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment
loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of trade and other
receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of
an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance
account are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade and other receivable
is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to
profit or loss.

When an AFS financial asset is considered to be impaired, cumulative
gains or losses previously recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or oss in the period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment losses was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at the date
the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised.

In respect of AFS equity investments, impairment losses previously
recognised in profit or loss are not reversed through profit or loss. Any
increase in fair value subsequent to an impairment loss is recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading of
investments revaluation reserve. In respect of AFS debt investments,
impairment losses are subsequently reversed through profit or loss if an
increase in the fair value of the investment can be objectively related to an
event occurring after the recognition of the impairment loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions
of a financial liability and an equity instrument.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Group are recognised at the proceeds received,
net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is recognised and
deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s own equity
instruments.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables and borrowings)
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost
of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition. Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights
to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset
to another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred
asset, the Group continues to recognise the asset to the extent of its
continuing involvement and recognises an associated liability. If the Group
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred
financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and
also recognises a collateralized borrowing for the proceeds received.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies 3. FTESTHTHEREME®)

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Derecognition (Continuea)

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received
and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognised in
profit or loss.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety, the Group
allocates the previous carrying amount of the financial asset between the
part it continues to recognise, and the part it no longer recognises on the
basis of the relative fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer.
The difference between the carrying amount allocated to the part that is
no longer recognised and the sum of the consideration received for the
part no longer recognised and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it
that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised in
profit or loss. A cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is allocated between the part that continues to be
recognised and the part that is no longer recognised on the basis of the
relative fair values of those parts.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the
Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Critical accounting judgements and key sources
of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are described
in note 3, the directors of the Company are required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.
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4. Critical accounting judgements and key sources 4. ERSTHHERMAETTITRERRZRZE

of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Critical judgements in applying the entity’s accounting
policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving
estimations (see below), that the directors have made in the process of
applying the entity’s accounting policies and that have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in financial statements.

Revenue recognition

The Group sells hydraulic roof supports and is required to install them on
the customers’ premises. The directors of the Company were required
to consider whether it is appropriate to recognise the revenue from
these transactions when the hydraulic roof supports are delivered to the
customers, or whether it is more appropriate to recognise the revenue
upon completion of installation of hydraulic roof supports.

In making their judgment, the directors considered the detailed criteria
for the recognition of revenue from the sale of goods set out in IAS 18
Revenue and, in particular, whether the Group had transferred to the
buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods. As
the installation is an integral part of the transaction and the installation
process is not simple in nature, the directors consider the installation
cannot be unbundled from the sales of hydraulic roof supports and the
significant risks and rewards of the transaction could only be transferred
to the customers upon the completion of installation. Thus, the directors
are satisfied that recognition of the revenue from sales of hydraulic roof
supports upon the completion of installation is appropriate.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end
of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year.

Estimated useful lives and residual values of property, plant and
equipment and investment properties

The Group estimates the useful lives, residual values and related
depreciation charges for its items of property, plant and equipment and
investment properties. This estimate is based on the management’s
experience of the actual useful lives and residual values of items of
property, plant and equipment and investment properties of similar
nature and functions. It could change significantly as a result of technical
innovations and actions of its competitors. Management will increase
the depreciation charge where useful lives and residual values are less
than previously estimated. The carrying amounts of property, plant and
equipment as at 31 December 2014 was RMB1,727,100,000 (2013:
RMB1,683,405,000). The carrying amounts of investment properties as at
31 December 2014 was RMB10,196,000 (2013: RMB10,594,000).
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4. Critical accounting judgements and key sources 4, EXREFHERMAFTTIEERERZRZE

of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Write-down of inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realizable value. The
Group regularly inspects and reviews its inventories to identify slow-moving
and obsolete inventories. When the Group identifies items of inventories
which have a market price lower than their carrying amount or are slow-
moving or obsolete, the Group will write down inventories in the current
year. As at 31 December 2014 the carrying amounts of inventories was
RMB1,449,172,000 (2013: RMB1,639,358,000).

Estimated impairment of trade receivables

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss, the Group takes
into consideration the estimation of future cash flows. The amount of
the impairment loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition). Where the actual future
cash flows are less than expected, a material impairment loss may arise.
As at 31 December 2014 the carrying amount of trade receivables was
RMB3,305,365,000 (2013: RMB3,775,562,000).

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets is measured at the tax rates that are expected to
apply to the period when the asset is realised, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period. The Company and certain subsidiaries of the
Company received the High and New Technology Enterprise Certificates
(the “Technology Certificates”) and are entitled to preferential tax rate of
15% for three years before the respective expiration dates (see note 12
for details). In the opinion of the directors of the Company, these entities
will be able to receive the renewed Technology Certificates and continue
to enjoy preferential tax treatments after the respective expiration dates,
and pass the required annual assessment to qualify for preferential tax
treatments, therefore the tax rates for measurement of deferred tax
assets of these entities are expected to be 15%. If the applicable tax rates
are higher than the expectation, changes in the deferred tax assets are
recognised in profit or loss as deferred tax income.
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5. Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximizing the return to
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The
Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts, which includes the
borrowings disclosed in note 36, and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising share capital, share premium and other reserves.

The management of the Company reviews the capital structure on an
annual basis. As part of this review, the management considers the cost
of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital. Based on
recommendations of the management, the Group will balance its overall
structure through the payment of dividends, new share issues as well as
the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debts.

Financial instruments
(@) Categories of financial instruments
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Financial assets: SREBE
Other financial assets HivemEE 505,000 655,815
Held-to-maturity investments HHEIBEE 369,237 -
Loans and receivables (including cash and cash BERNERZE(BIERE R

equivalents) ReEEM) 6,973,006 7,415,222
Available-for-sale investments AR ERE 42,433 75,282
Total aEr 7,889,676 8,146,319
Financial liabilities: SRBAE
Amortised costs b E TSI 2,111,884 2,294,490
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6. Financial instruments (Continued) 6. ST Eum)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial assets and liabilities include trade and
other receivables, pledged bank deposits, cash and bank balances,
equity investments, trade and other payables, and bank borrowings.
Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial instruments and
the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.

Market risk

The Group’s activities expose it primarily to currency risk and interest
rate risk. There has been no change in the Group’s exposure to these
risks or the manner in which it manages and measures the risks.

(i) Currency risk

The primary economic environment in which the Company and
its principal subsidiaries operate is the PRC and their functional
currency is RMB. However, certain transactions of the Company
and its principal subsidiaries including sales and purchases of
goods are denominated in foreign currencies.

The Group currently do not have a foreign currency hedging
policy but the management of the Group monitors foreign
exchange exposure by closely monitoring the foreign exchange
risk profile and will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.
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6. Financial instruments (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

)

Currency risk (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and liabilities at the end of each
reporting period are as follows:

As at 31 December 2014
As at 31 December 2013

As at 31 December 2014
As at 31 December 2013

As at 31 December 2014
As at 31 December 2013

R-ZE—NF
RZZE—=%F

i

The Group is mainly exposed to the foreign currency risk
between USD/RMB, EUR/RMB and HKD/RMB.
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6. Financial instruments (Continued)

(o) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

U

Currency risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5%
appreciation and depreciation in the relevant foreign currencies
against RMB. 5% is the sensitivity rate used when reporting
foreign currency risk internally to key management personnel
and represents management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity
analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary items and adjusts their translation at the end of each
reporting period for a 5% change in foreign currency rates. A
positive number below indicates an increase in post-tax profit
for the year and a negative number below indicates a decrease
in post-tax profit for the year where the relevant foreign
currencies change 5% against RMB.
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USD impact e
if USD strengthens against RMB W ARBHE
if USD weakens against RMB WETHARBERE
EUR impact BaEE
if EUR strengthens against RVMB iMBTH A RBAE
if EUR weakens against RMB MBI ARBERE
HKD impact BLEE
if HKD strengthens against RMB AT ARBHE
if HKD weakens against RMB AT HARBEE

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the sensitivity
analysis is unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange
risk as the year end exposures do not reflect the exposure.
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2014 PK
—ZT-mF —F=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T R AREETT
15,269 (1,539)
(15,269) 1,539
4,754 2,442
(4,754) (2,442)
18,296 34,763
(18,296) (34,763)

RATEERS - BRERSB AR
B - BB I TR BB INE
A% -
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6. Financial instruments (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
(i) Interest risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation
to variable-rate pledged bank deposits, variable-rate bank
balances and variable-rate borrowings (see notes 34 and 36 for
details). Currently, the Group does not have a specific policy to
manage its interest rate risk, but the management will closely
monitor interest rate exposures and consider hedging significant
interest rate risk should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on
the exposure to interest rates for financial instruments (including
pledged bank deposits, bank balances and borrowings) at the
end of each reporting period and the excepted changes in
interest rates taking place at the beginning of the financial year
and being held constant throughout the reporting period in the
case of pledged bank deposits, bank balances and borrowings.

A 10 basis point increase or decrease in interest rates on
variable-rate pledged bank deposits and bank balance, and
a 100 basis-point increase or decrease in interest rate on
variable-rate borrowings are used when reporting interest rate
risk internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change
in interest rates. If the interest rates on variable-rate pledged
bank deposits and bank balances had been 10 basis points
higher and all other variables were held constant, the post-tax
profit for the year would have increased by:

6. TR T Rw®m)
) SREREEBIEZENRBER@®

SRR (E)

(@)

Increase in post-tax profit for the year FABRTLE = FIE N

FlEmp

AREE T BB EIPRTER - FERIT
e RIF BAEE (FHE 2 RMTEE34 %36) %
XERRH R o AR BRI ESE
BOREREMNXER - BERERENS
EREREE - WREHEREBEHER
MR ERR

BURE DT

TSEEST RGeS TA(BREE
EIRRITER « RITEBREE) RS
= ER A I R BB A B2 B B AR FE A ER Y
ﬂ?ﬂﬁﬁﬁ """"" A8 (gL KR TR - B1T

HEHREEMS @ REBERSHERT
"""" BETE °

3 BB EIRRITI R LIRIT AR LTt
HNFE10MEEE - T REEME LA
TFE100EER IR AT EEEAB AR
SRMERBREER - WAEREEHNE
RIEAIREE B AR o TS HEIFRTT

AR RIRTTAEBREO R EFHOMEER -
PREEMBHAE - RIFARBIREN K
o

2014 2013
—E—mEF —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETT

1,551 1,742

The post-tax profit for the year would have decreased by the
same amount as mentioned above if the interest rates on
variable-rate pledged bank deposits and bank balances had
been 10 basis points lower and all other variables were held
constant.

i) B B AR IRITF IR T AE AR HO A
TEF0EER - MATARMERTE - A
FARBREEN IR DARAR SRR -
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6. Financial instruments (Continued)

(o) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Interest risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

If the interest rates on variable-rate borrowings had been 100
basis points higher and all other variables were held constant,
post-tax profit for the year after taking into consideration of
capitalisation of interest would have decreased by:

Decrease in post-tax profit for the year

Annual Report 2014

EWMIT A
b) =ELEMREIEBZNMBER (&

mismEER(E)

()

FARRRBLL R AR

FIFER (&)
FREDH (&)

fie )% BAEE A= EFH001EELES - MAA
HASHIE - QKR LA S EAMRN
FRRBIR G :

2014 2013
—T—=F

—z-mE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBF T ARBFTT

826 1,156

The post-tax profit for the year after taking into consideration
the capitalisation of interest would have increased by the same
amount as mentioned above if the interest rates on variable-
rate borrowings had been 100 basis points lower and all other
variables were held constant.

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its
investments in listed equity securities.The Group’s equity price
risk is mainly concentrated on equity instruments operating in
coal industry sector quoted in the Stock Exchange. In addition,
the Group has appointed a special team to monitor the price
risk and will consider hedging the risk exposure should the need
arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based
on the exposure to equity price risks at the reporting date. For
sensitivity analysis purpose, the sensitivity rate is 25% in current
year as a result of the volatile financial market.

(i)

fis)¥ BEE R KT 1008 - MAA
HASHTE - QK REAMERNBIRDN
FARRBIREN I IZ DRAAR S E M -

H B AR

ANER B R A TR T AR AN RE 2 T e AR
ERAR - ARBMRANMEREREZE
R AR B PR T SR FE RS R P R (B A AR
TR -5 AEEEREREEKER
BRERERR  TNEFEREZELIHNE
R -

SREDM

AT EURE DT TR BT S B HE R A A
AERRRETE - ABREINIME @ A
REBTIZNE  NEENGRELERS
25% °
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6. Financial instruments (Continued) 6. ST Hum
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies b) SREERE IR B FERBEEE)
(Continued)
Market risk (Continued) miSEE (%)
(i) Other price risk (Continued) (i) EEREELR ()

Sensitivity analysis (Continued) BRE D (E)

If the prices of the respective equity instruments had been 25% WA TEMERS A LA T E25%

(2013: 25%) higher/lower: (ZZE—=%F : 25%) :

e investment valuation reserve would increase/decrease by o AREBEMKREGMEMESBRNAEE
RMB10,823,000 (2013: RMB16,737,000) for the Group ERERNFEEFS ML RHOAR
as a result of the changes in fair value of available-for-sale #£10,823,000C(=ZF—=4F : ARKE
investments. 16,737,0007T) °

Credit risk FERE

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, the Group’s maximum exposure RZE—NER=ZT—=F+=A=+—8 "

to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to REENSAEERRGHERR ZEFENT

failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties is arising BYAREESZHBEL DAL TSEE

from: A

o the carrying amount of the respective recognised financial assets o HREMBINAKRMMIEBEEASMEE
as stated in the consolidated statements of financial position; RRREE &

and

e the amount of contingent liabilities in relation to the financial o AMIFE43PTHRER AR BE L ISR A
guarantees issued by the Group and bills receivable endorsed ARSI ABERAEBEEEHEREY
by the Group with full recourse as disclosed in note 43. EEEENEERSE -

In order to minimize the credit risk, the management of the Company REEEERR  ARREREEZR—EE

has delegated a team responsible for determination of credit limits, =] E\fﬁzmﬁf‘fﬁﬁlﬁﬁ 1:??%%& s EL i B

credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure that EiRF - DARE(REREXER 2 17 8 LA YR [B] 80 BR (F

follow-up actions are taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the % o AN - AR A ERENSHREHAREHNS

management of the Company reviews the recoverability of each trade B EFHAIMEIRE - RS E S

debt at the end of each reporting period to ensure that adequate FETIE R MBERETE - At - NARIEERER
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this 7 AEEEERBREAERE -

regard, the management of the Company considers that the Group’s
credit risk is significantly reduced.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the risk of the default ARREERE ?’@Kiﬁﬁ‘“ifgﬂi?ﬁgﬁ’\]
in payment of the endorsed bills receivable is low because all EBRTK - REAZHESERKEIETI AT
endorsed bills receivable are issued and guaranteed by reputable HASEBMRITEN &jﬂ%{%

PRC banks.
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6. Financial instruments (Continued) 6. ST Eum)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

The Group has concentration of credit risk on liquid funds which
are deposited with several banks. However, the credit risk on bank
balances is limited because the majority of the counterparties are
state-owned banks with good reputation or banks with good credit
rating assigned by international credit-rating agencies and with good
reputation.

The Group has no concentration of credit risk on the Group’s trade
receivables and bills receivable as the Group has a number of diverse
customers.

Finance lease receivables

The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements
to cover its credit risks associated with its financial assets except
for finance lease receivables. Credit risks associated with the
finance lease receivables are mitigated because the finance lease
receivables are secured over the leased storage equipment. The
carrying amounts of the finance lease receivables amounted to
RMB19,349,000.

As at 31 December 2014, the fair value of the leased assets are
estimated to be approximately RMB23,093,000.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate
by the management to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate
the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The management monitors
the utilization of bank borrowings and ensures compliance with loan
covenants.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities based on the
agreed repayment terms. The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest
date on which the Group can be required to pay. The table includes
both interest and principal cash flows.

() LRVESEEBZ MR ®)

FERE(E)

AEERTHREFBITNRBE AT ES
SERMR - A BRABOHFHH/ER
REFHBIARITRERR I REEE T RFE
EFRAEBRIFNRTT  MBRITAERNER
ERBRBR o

AR B B AE B 5 WA M R R R S
EERR  RERAEEETRER -

BMEHEREWREA

RS E RGBS - AEEIEIEE
B E MR REEARESREER
2 EERBIRERE - B EH S EWGRIE
Rz EERBRIEK - AR EERERIKK
B ERFFREEERR - R EHERKIE
ZBRMEE A A RE19,349,0007T °

R-B—NE+-_A=+—H  BEZEZA
FEHET 45 A RE23,093,0007T °

REBE TR

RERRBESRRE - NEEREIE MR
EEERRRABNAEELEMTN—EX
FREFRSEFEY  BERSRENBOY
2 - ERETSEERITEENERA - NER
BRI

TRESIAKBEITEERABREHEER
BB TAROTHA - ZREIIBBERA
SEAREBR AN RKT BB RBEERT
BReRERY - ZXRBERMNERAEHE

= B=
ILEE °
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6. Financial instruments (Continued)

—MEF—A=+—BILFE

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

6. EMIT A

) SREREEBIEZENRBER@®
FREESER(H)

Weighted
gffective  On demand Total
average  orlessthan 3 months to Tyearto  2yearsto Over  undiscounted Carrying
interestrate 3 months 1 year 2years 5 years Syears  cash flows amount
MEER  EEXHY 38R AfBRE
5% R38R FE SH5FE  REME HEf
% RUB'000 RVIB'000 RVB'000 RVB'000 RVB'000 RVIB'000 RVB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETn ARETRT ARETn ARETR ARETR
The Group T5E
Asat 31 December 2014 R-E-ME+=B=1-R
Trade and other payables BB REMENEE - 1774580 240,135 - - - 2014715 2014715
Borrowings &8 28 632 98,643 - - - 99275 97,170
1,7715212 338778 - - - 2113990 2,111,885
As at 31 December 2013 R-E-—=%£+-f=1-H
Trade and other payables B REERFE - 1932810 25630 - - - 2198440 2158440
Borrowings e 36 30748 98,867 - - - 138,615 136,050
1972558 34497 - - - 2297085 2204490

The amounts included above for variable interest rate instruments for
non-derivative financial liabilities are subject to change if changes
in variable interest rates differ to those estimates of interest rates
determined at the end of the reporting period.

In addition to the above, the Group is also exposed to liquidity risk
in the next six months from each reporting date in relation to the
maximum loss and cash outflows that may result from the Group’s
endorsed bills receivable with full recourse should the issuing banks
of these bills fail to honour their obligations, please refer to note 43

for details.

WEBTIE R R O AT
BT SR E EIBFIETAS
%ﬂ%@§°

s SENSE-S4 S hi) B VN
BATAZRBEZRER - AASEAE2H
BRENESERKEE  MZERBEHEZ
RITREEBITHEME - FTREEENZRKEEK
BEm - F15F20HME43

Bk EXCPRAtoh -
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6. ERMTHE )
0 ®RIAZAVEFT=

6. Financial instruments (Continued)

(c) Fair value measurements of financial instruments

This note provides information about how the Group determines fair
values of various financial assets and financial liabilities.

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial
liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Some of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities are
measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period. The
following table gives information about how the fair values of these
financial assets and financial liabilities are determined (in particular,
the valuation technique(s) and inputs used).

Fair value as at

Financial assets 31 December 2014

R-Z—MOF
THREE tTZA=t—HBZAF%E

M EREASRENAEELSHEREERS
MAEBEATEZER -

RECEMHEERAVENEZARESRME
EREMABEZATVE

AEEHFIEMEEREBABRSHREHNR
BATEFE - TRAFEHSAZSERE
EREREBEEAFEZEESAN(LEZMA
ZEETDERBARE) -

Listed AFS investments
AR ERE — Coal industry
— RMB34,098,000
BB H)_E AR AN 5
—BERAITE
— AR #34,098,0007T

Listed AFS investments

held by an associate — Manufacturing industry

R ARIFA 2 LAt — RMB9,192,000
HERE REBH_ETIRANE 5
—BUETTE
— AR #9,192,0007T

There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2 in the period.

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that are
not measured at fair value on a recurring basis

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets
and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated
financial statements approximate their fair values.

Listed equity securities in Hong Kong

Listed equity securities in Hong Kong

Fair value Valuation technique

hierarchy and key input
fRERER

RAEEZER ETWARE

Level 1 Quoted bid prices

EE in an active market

RGBTSR B2 (E

Level 1 Quoted bid prices
ERF in an active market

RGBTSR B2 (E

HAN 1 AR B 3524 o [ I B A o
WHBELEREERNFEFBZARESE
MEERSHABEZATE

FFRA - REAHMBERRNREHRARER
2 SRAERSHE EHREERLAFER
o
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7. Revenue

7.

LON
2014 2013
— 2=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTT

Sales of hydraulic roof supports BB 7 tHE 3,701,446 4,851,515
Revenue from steel and other materials trading S 5 N E At [RAEHE 5 2 WA 1,679,707 2,393,045
Sales of spare parts i {2 SHE 540,204 612,838
Sales of other coal mining equipment Hib e 2 e 89,367 128,528
Other revenue E AUz A 113,733 69,385
6,124,457 8,055,311

8. Segment information 8. 2EEE

The Group identifies an operating segment which is a component of
the Group (a) that engages in business activities from which it may
earn revenues and incur expenses; and (b) whose operating results are
reviewed regularly by the executive directors, the chief operating decision
maker, to make decisions about resources allocation and performance

assessment.

The Group has only one operating segment which is the manufacture of
coal mining machinery and the Group’s operating results before tax are
reviewed regularly by the Group’s chief operating decision maker to make
decisions about resources allocation and performance assessment. As no
other discretionary financial information is provided to the Group’s chief
operating decision maker, no segment information is presentation other

than the entity-wide information.

Information about major customers

The following illustrates the revenue from customers which contributing
over 10% of the total revenue of the Group:

Customer A ZHEA
Customer B ZFB
Customer C ZBC

1:  The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the total revenue

of the Group for this year.

AEEBTIBAERAEEBRNZLEDE : @
Er R EMEERSERED 0 ROZEL
ERETHHATES  TBLLERRAMER
MASLE IR BE R R A (R IR

AEBRBE—ELES L - BIEERERE - Kbk
BTSSR EERHARENERELRREANE
% MR ERD B RRBFFEFELIRE - ERWE
AALKE T ZEERRARKEMBIERERHE
BMBER  WRERBEESSIN  LEZIHIE
B o

BRIEEFZEH

IATPNRRE R B G2 SE E A A R E10%H) 1
A

2014 2013
— —T=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTT
840,632 1,008,678
660,349 946,270
646,325 N/AT R

10 BEERAGAREZFRREATREI0S
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9. Other income 9. Hulg A
2014 2013
—E—mEF ZT—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TR ARET T
Government grants (note) R 48 B (BT ) 10,791 17,638
Interest income on bank deposits RITERZFEUWA 95,876 89,718
106,667 107,356
Note: Government grants mainly represent unconditional government grants MisE : BUNHBIE ZiEpEMEEMEERmMEMA
received from the local government for compensation of research and BT R B A ER A R B o
development expenses incurred.
10. Other gains and losses 10. iz K &8
2014 2013
=k —T-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TR ARET T
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment BEWE  BE&EERE 286 5,129
Net foreign exchange gains (losses) I 5 R U es (8518) 1,774 (32,238)
Allowance for doubtful debts REERE (348,071) (131,625)
Write-down of inventories EAE i (1,999) (10,397)
Others A 5,576 (2,888)
(342,434) (172,019)
11. Finance costs 1. MERAK
2014
—ZE—MEF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBETT ARMET T

Interests on bank borrowings wholly repayable HARAFREEENZ
within five years RITERZF B 2,383 3,788
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12. Income tax expense

Income tax expenses comprise:

Current tax: — PRC enterprise income tax
(Over) under provision in prior years

Deferred tax — current year

Deferred tax — attributed to a change in tax rate

BINEBEEREBR D ERAE]

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ=—Z—NFE+—-A=+—HIFE

12. FREBIRAX

SR 28

BVEARRIR © — B RSN
BEFE(BERBBETR
EETIR — A FE

BB - R B R EFEH

2014

—g-mE
RMB’000
ARMT R

85,109
(2,181)
(43,678)

2013
—F-=

RMB’000
ARETT

184,273
107
(19,790)
2,098

39,250

166,688

The tax rates of the major group entities for the year ended 31 December
2014 and 2013 are as follows:

The Company (Note 1)
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Comprehensive
Equipment Co., Ltd. (“ZMJ Comprehensive Equipment”)

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Hydraulic Electrical
Control Co., Ltd. (“ZMJ Hydraulic Control”) (Note 3)

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Material Trading
Co., Ltd. (“ZMJ Material Trading”)

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Longwall Face Machinery Co., Ltd.
(“ZMJ Longwall Machinery”)

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Lu An Xinjiang
Co., Ltd. (“ZMJ Lu An Xinjiang”) (Note 4)

Huainan ZMJ Shun Li Machinery Co., Ltd. (“ZMJ Shun Li
Machinery”) (Note 5)

EEXE&E

ARF (1)
BN RRBERAR
G NIGED)

M FEH B BEEERR AR
(IEpRBEELE |) (M 5E3)

BB BERE AR S (B ) B L 8
BRAR (R EHRE])

BN BRI AR AR
(BB R EE MR )

Ljesr 3 SENESRIE
BRAB([BREEEEL
e |) (HaE4)

B SRR 5 ST AR AR PR A
(T EpRpe e s petm | ) (BIRES)

2014

—®-mF

15%

15%

15%

25%

25%

15%

15%

HEZTNFR-FT—=F+-A=+—HIEF
BB

15%

15%

25%

25%

25%

15%
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12. Income tax expense (Continued)

Note 1:

Note 2:

Note 3:

Note 4:

Note 5:

The Company received the High and New Technology Enterprises
Certificate on 31 July, 2014, which entitles to a preferential tax rate
of 15% from January 1, 2014 to 31 December, 2016. The Company
previously was entitled to a preferential tax rate of 15% from 1 January
2011 to 31 December 2013 under a separate certificate.

ZMJ Comprehensive Equipment received the “Technology Certificate”
on 26 June 2013 and is entitled to a preferential tax rate of 15% from 1
January 2013 to 31 December 2015.

ZMJ Hydraulic Control received the “Technology Certificate” on 26 June
2013 and is entitled to a preferential tax rate of 15% from 1 January 2013
to 31 December 2015.

ZMJ Lu An Xinjiang received the “Technology Certificate” on 9 June 2014
and is entitled to a preferential tax rate of 15% from 1 January 2014 to 31
December 2016.

ZMJ Shun Li Machinery received the “Technology Certificate” on 16 July
2013 and is entitled to a preferential tax rate of 15% from 1 January 2013
to 31 December 2015.

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit per the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as
follows:

Annual Report 2014

12. ISR @)
MisEl : AARR_ZE—WELA=+—BEESH I

FifaE2

Fi5E3

PiaE4 -

P75 -

GTEZFE AT NHF—A—HAE=-ZT—~X
FH_A=T—RERZAEEHE15% - BIR
B—EEZ ARAZABA-ZT——F—A—
HE-_Z—=F+_A=+—HERZHE=R
FiER15% °

RN = T — =5 A =+ AT
EE) m-P-=F—A-BE-T-n%
+T A=t REREEEEHEIS -

BERBREBIEN T —=F A= +<BEE
[RiffEE] B=T—=F—A—HZE=-Z—A
FT_A=t—BRERZHAEEHXI% -

B EBRLIEN S —WE N A NBEE
[HEEE] m—B—EE—A—RE-2—X
F+-A=1T—BAERZHEEHEI5%

MR ERN —T—=F A+ BRI
[BMiEE] AT =F—A—HEZ-ZT—1
Ft-A=T—RERZHEEHE5%

FRHIBERIRGEABARE M2 EKERIN S
FIEBRLNT

2014 2013
—E-ImF =
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBFIT
Profit before tax KR AT F 232,584 1,003,669
Tax at the PRC enterprise income tax rate of 15% BB EMBSHE15%E
] 34,888 150,551
Tax effect of share of (profit) loss of associates and joint ~ FE(GEE & A BIFIA A2 CaF))
ventures BENTHETE (2,733) 2,936
Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible for tax TRIHFRE Y 2 s 2
purpose 1,986 3,523
(Over) under provision in prior years BEFE(BREEE) BETR (2,181) 107
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERMIEE B 2 B2 8,679 11,532
Utilization of deductible temporary differences not recognised Fi|Fi AR fE R Al IR FI BT i [ = 2 (1,069) -
Effect of different tax rate of subsidiaries NI RNl =7 3,387 2,691
Tax effect of deductible temporary differences not RIERA IR ER =R
recognized T i s 2 43 -
Additional deduction for qualified research and FEINNGR SR ENTRER
development expenses (3,750) (6,750)
Decrease in opening deferred tax assets resulting from R A AR TR 8 B E MR A
an decrease in applicable tax rate HIEEERD - 2,098
39,250 166,688

Details of deferred taxation for the year are set out in note 26.

RERIREFIA L+ BEHN L6 ©
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13. Profit for the year 13. FREF]
Profit for the year has been arrived at after charging (crediting): FRBMGENRGEA A TSIERFH
2014 2013
—E—NF —F—=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TT ARETTT
Depreciation for property, plant and equipment ME - BENJETE 165,720 148,503
Depreciation for investment properties BEYEITE 398 399
Amortisation of intangible assets ER AR 2,488 2,107
Release of prepaid lease payments TE o £ 4b T & FOE B 8,817 9,913
Total depreciation and amortisation TE LB AR 177,423 160,922
Employee benefits expenses (including directors): EERAFAZ(BEES)
— Salary and other benefits —TEREMET] 353,297 397,809
— Retirement benefits scheme contributions —RIREFET B R 58,759 57,816
412,056 455,625
Auditors’ remuneration ZEREM B & 2,980 2,980
Impairment loss on trade and other receivables B 5 & E MW IE R EE R 348,07 131,625
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense RAEMX 2 FEA 5,070,466 6,233,115
Gross rental income from investment properties LEYERS WA BRE (4,660) (4,260)
Less: direct operating expenses from investment B EEHSWRAZIREYHE L
properties that generated rental income HEGERE 1,435 1,327
(3,225) (2,933)
Operating lease rentals in respect of rented premises ~ HREEEZL&LHERS 5,224 5,224
14. Other comprehensive income (expense) 14. Htt 2 EUWA (B%)

2014 2013
—E—NEF —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARET T

Other comprehensive income (expense) includes: Efh 2w A () B3E ¢

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profitor — RIGERE 18 B 7482 15752

loss: EH -
Fair value loss on available-for-sale financial assets FRRHEE 7 SREEATE

during the year &8 (32,849) (22,418)
Share of fair value loss available-for-sale financial B —FE S AR A HEHE 2

assets of an associate SREEATEERE (10,467) -
Exchange gains arising on translation during the year FERIRE EAL 7 E NS (923) 113
Other comprehensive expense for the year, FANHEMEAERE

net of income tax M ATEH (44,239) (22,3095)
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15. Directors’, chief executive’s and supervisors’ 15. 2 - BeTRAEREEZME

emoluments

FRENRENEEREEOMESFHENT :

Details of the emoluments paid and payable to directors and supervisors
for the year are as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE-E-ME+-A=+-HLEFE

Salary, wages  Performance Retirement
and other incentive benefit scheme Directors’
benefits payments  contributions fee Total
H& I8 HRBHY BIEER
REMEF e TR E=He @y
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARET T AR®T R ARET ARET T
Executive directors: HITEE -
Mr Jiao Chengyao (note) R A () 578 2 99 - 700
Mr Shao Chunsheng BEELE 578 23 99 - 700
Mr Xiang Jiayu DEG Pk 645 180 143 - 968
Mr Fu Zugang AR % & 476 261 132 - 869
Mr Wang Xinying THers 504 205 91 - 800
Sub-total NEt 2,781 692 564 - 4,037
Independent non-executive directors; B HEHTES
Mr Lin Zhijun (resigned on April 2014)  #REE 4
(R=ZZ—WFNAFHTE) - - - - -
Mr Li Bin ESngie - - - 80 80
Mr Gao Guoan SR kA - - - 80 80
Mr Luo Jiamang BRRE L - - - 80 80
Ms Liu Yao (assigned on Jung 2014)  2|ZE4+
(RZZ-—WESAEZMR) - - - 146 146
Sub-total NEt - - - 386 386
Supervisors: £
Mr Wang Tiehan TEELE 376 157 62 - 595
Mr Xu Yongen BoxBRE
(resigned on Jung 2014) (RZZ—MFARE) - - - - -
Mr Ding Hui TELE 82 361 106 - 549
MrLvYu BEE - - - - -
Mr Ni Heping {RAT5E 7 509 91 - 672
Mr Jia Jingcheng ERiREE 158 124 53 - 335
Ms Xu Mingkai wHEsla L 141 159 46 - 346
Mr Zhang Zhigiang SRR ILE
(assigned on June 2014) (M=T-—MFESAEZF) 124 119 39 - 282
Sub-total INat 953 1,429 397 - 2,779
Total i 3,734 2,121 961 386 7,202
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ=—Z—NFE+—-A=+—HIFE

15 Directors’, chief executive’s and supervisors’ 15 EE - BTRAEBREEZME 5
emoluments (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-_T-—=Ft+-A=1—RHItFEE

Salary, wages Performance Retirement
and other incentive  benefit scheme Directors’
benefits payments contributions fee Total
6 I8 BREEMS RIRER
R E AR il SRR etk ety
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Executive directors: HiTEE -
Mr Jiao Chengyao (note) A (Hi5E) 271 319 74 - 664
Mr Shao Chunsheng BEERE 271 319 74 - 664
Mr Xiang Jiayu BEGEika 610 108 104 - 822
Mr Fu Zugang gl b 400 105 11 - 616
Mr Wang Xinying THeRE 329 113 85 - 527
Sub-total NEF 1,881 964 448 - 3,293
Independent non-executive directors: B I 77E% -
Mr Lin Zhijun MEFLEL - - - 146 146
Mr Li Bin R E = = = 80 80
Mr Gao Guoan BRREE = - - 80 80
Mr Luo Jiamang HRETAE = = = 80 80
Sub-total NEF - - - 386 386
Supervisors: EZ:
Mr Wang Tighan TEERE 226 213 H - 480
Mr Xu Yongen fRKBEE 224 - 25 - 249
Mr Ding Hui TEEE 320 203 103 - 626
Mr Lv Yu BigsEsE = = _ _ _
Mr Ni Heping {RANFILE 305 210 94 - 609
Mr Jia Jingcheng BERERAE 169 105 52 - 326
Ms Xu Mingkai REAS L+ 153 100 44 - 297
Sub-total NEF 1,397 831 359 - 2,587
Total e 3,278 1,795 807 386 6,266
Note: Mr Jiao Chengyao is also the chief executive of the Company and his BeE : AL ATREA R RITRAR - TR
emolument for the role as chief executive is also included above. BEFNTE A RS ER -
The performance incentive payment is mainly determined on the basis ERIBHHN RS EBZAEB L ERABREE
of the Group’s and individual performance for years ended 31 December TE-MER-TE=Ft"_HA=1t—HILFEZ
2014 and 2013, respectively. FRIRETE °
No remuneration was paid by the Group to the directors or supervisors BHET-—NMF+-HA=1+—"HILFE  "EEL
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation B\AERRESEIEMMS - ERE MBI
for loss of office in the year ended 31 December 2014 (2013: Nil). None BAKER A IBRAME(CT—=F &) -
of the directors or supervisors has waived any remuneration in the year BHE_ZT-NE+-HA=+—HILFE TEE=

ended 31 December 2014 (2013: Nil). FEEWEAAHE(ZT—=F: &) -
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16. Employees’ emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group, four (2013:
four) were directors or supervisors of the Company whose emoluments
are included in the disclosures in note 15 above. The emoluments of the
remaining one individual (2013: one) was as follows:

Salaries and other benefits T&EREAMEF]
Performance related incentive payments ERIBENIR S
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIREFET BB

Annual Report 2014

16. EEM <

AEFREBREFALTZH  OA(ZTE—=4F:
MEZ)ARAREENES  HENMESFHBR L
XHIFEISHE - B T —R(ZE—=F : —F)AL
MEfEmT :

2014
—s-mE
RMB’000
ARMT
™™ 480

252 221
26 46

1,019 747

17. Dividends

17.

RS

2014
—s—m
RMB’000
ARMT R

Dividends recognised as distribution during the year FEAERDIRATIE
— 2012 Final (RMB0.30 per share) ——E - FRH
(B ARE0.307T) - 486,337
— 2013 Final (RMB0.165 per share) —— T =K
(BB ARE0.1657T) 267,485 =
267,485 486,337

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend in respect
of the year ended 31 December 2014 of RMB0.038 per share (2013: final
dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2013 of RMB0.165
per share) has been proposed by the directors and is subject to approval
by the shareholders in the forthcoming annual general meeting.

18. Earnings per share

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to
owners of the Company is based on the following data:

Earning for the purpose of basic and diluted earnings

18.

MEREAREERNMS

WEHARE  EECEBREE_T—NF+_=_A
=+— B It FERMN AR ST AR0.0387T
(CE—=F :pHE—"T—=F+"A=+—8H
\EFEIRN AR EEFRARE0.1657T) » 7B
RS RERE IR BAFE RS AL - HAEE -

BRAER
LTI SRR RN B A THR

2014
—E—mEF
RMB’000
AR%T R

per share (profit for the year attributable to owners Z BT (AR RIRRR EML

of the Company) FEREF) 205,194 866,712
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for WEREARFMS 2 TRk

the purpose of basic earnings per share InET5 2 1,621,122,000 1,621,122,000

The diluted earnings per share is the same as basic earnings per share in
2014 as the Company did not have any dilutive potential ordinary shares in
issue in 2014,

RZZ—0OF  SREFSBNEGREREHNA
Al REARAARR -ZE—MOFEWEEMEETA
BEHEEERZ LR -
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19. Property, plant and equipment

19. V¥ - BENRRE

Plant and Motor Other Construction
Buildings  machinery vehicles  equipment in progress Total
BF BERKE Bl HRE EEIR st
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT AR®TT ARETT ARETT
COST A
At 1 January 2013 R-Z—=%—H—H 880,162 890,340 48,601 86,437 156,137 2,061,677
Additions NE = 22,190 3,930 4,468 90,146 120,734
Transfer g 6,445 33,877 - - (40,322 -
Disposals RE - (30,774) (4,057) (857) - (35,688)
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=F+=ZR=+—H 886,607 915,633 48,474 90,048 205,961 2,146,723
Additions NE 40,239 111,959 2,398 3,942 55,334 213,872
Transfer B 143,408 693 - - (144,101) -
Disposals BE = (7,076) (3,092 (2,234) - (12,402
At 31 December 2014 RZZE-WFE+=-/F=+—H 1070254 1,021,209 47,780 91,756 117,194 2,348,193
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION Z:HFE
At1 January 2013 R-_ZF—=%—H—H 65,458 227,176 23,186 30,779 - 346,599
Provided for the year F R 32,945 94,232 7,132 14,194 - 148,503
Elimination on disposals BB - (28,980) (2,027) (r77) - (31,784)
At 31 December 2013 R-ZE—=%+-"A=+—H 98,403 292,428 28,291 44,196 - 463,318
Provided for the year FREE 33,162 110,970 6,635 14,953 = 165,720
Elimination on disposals BRI - (3,558) (2,458) (1,929 - (7,945)
At 31 December 2014 RZZ—NF+=A=1+—H 131,565 399,840 32,468 57,220 - 621,093
CARRYING VALUES HREE
At 31 December 2013 R-Z—=%+-"A=+—H 788,204 623,205 20,183 45,852 205,961 1,683,405
At 31 December 2014 RZE-—NF+=A=1+—H 938,689 621,369 15,312 34,536 117,194 1,727,100
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19. Property, plant and equipment (Continued) 19. % - BERRZE®)

All the buildings are located in the PRC. The Group was in process of
obtaining the relevant property ownership certificates for buildings with
a net book value of RMB129,439,000 as at 31 December 2014 (2013:
RMB13,109,000). In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
relevant property ownership certificates can be obtained in due time
without incurring significant costs.

The above items of property, plant and equipment except for construction
in progress are depreciated on a straight-line basis, taking into account
their residual value, at the following rates per annum:

MBERBTHEZETEEA - AEB{NFERR
—E-MOFE+A=T-HBREFERARK
129,439,0007T (= Z — =4 : AK#13,109,0007T)
WETHEEMEMBESE - ARREFERAL - AlE
REVSIRRY AR @ M T SELEARMA o

BAEZTRRS - Ll - BFE MREEE &R R
HRSBEERABRENE - RANFEROT :

Buildings 2.711%-3.17% EF 2.71%%2317%

Plant and machinery 9.50% R Kt 2s 9.50%

Motor vehicles 19.00% =k 19.00%

Other equipment 19.00% HE A 19.00%
20. Prepaid lease payments 20. A LIRS FE

2014 2013
—B-mF —T=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETTT

Analysed for the reporting purpose as: MERMBPTAOT :
Current portion mENE D 8,681 8,660
Non-current portion IEmBE D 389,836 397,611
398,517 406,271

The prepaid lease payments are all in respect of land use rights located in
the PRC held under a medium-term lease of 50 years.

The Group has obtained all relevant land use right certificates for the
leasehold land as at 31 December 2014. The Group was in the process of
obtaining the relevant land use right certificates for the leasehold land with
a net book value of RMB22,848,000 as at 31 December 2013.

a3 & FIR A A BRI A BIIR505  HIFE
ERBH L AE o

RZZ—mE+-—A=+—H  XEBCBEHR
EHE T AR -t AERE - AEEDAFER
R =F+_-_A=+—HEmZFEAARE
22,848,0007T HFH & T Hb AR B8 -t FR RS o
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ=—Z—NFE+—-A=+—HIFE
21. Investment property 21. REY
Buildings
#F
RMB’000
AREFT
COST A
At 31 December 2013 and 2014 R-E—=FR-_F—NF+=-_A=1+—H 12,591
DEPRECIATION e
At 1 January, 2013 N—TE—=F—H—H 1,598
Provided for the year FABE 399
At 31 December 2013 R=_ZE—=F+=-A=+—H 1,997
Provided for the year FERBHE 398
At 31 December 2014 RZE—NF+=—A=+—H 2,395
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2013 RZZE—=%+=A=+—H 10,594
At 31 December 2014 RZZE—NHFE+=-_A=+—H 10,196

As at 31 December 2014, the fair value of the Group’s investment
properties was RMB15,683,000 (2013: RMB15,976,000). The fair value
has been arrived at based on a valuation carried out by ;a] g B 78 %
28 E L5 AR 2 7], independent valuers not connected with the
Group. The valuation was determined by the depreciated replacement
cost method, which the directors of the Company are of the view that
it is the best estimate of the fair value of these investment properties.
Depreciated replacement cost method is based on an estimate of the fair
value for the existing use of the land, plus the current cost of replacing the
improvements, less deduction for physical deterioration and all relevant
forms of obsolescence and optimization. There has been no change from
the valuation technique used in the prior year. In estimating the fair value
of the properties, the highest and best use of the properties is their current
use.

Details of the Group’s investment properties and information about the fair
value hierarchy as at 31 December 2014 are as follows:

REF—NF+-A=+—H AEEEEMED
NFEEEAREE15683000C(ZF—=F : ARK
15,976,0007T ) ° A F{E AR5 B 7N £5 (B W 4% BA E Y
B ERM AR ERRREEMHEBRARNGE
B - ZAHERMERSRANESTERNLNE A2
RIEERAZA LR EELREMELNTENR
% - TEEBEKAETIER L3R AR A
ATE NERSESIRMNENEERSE @ BRE
FRBFER — BB A RPRE RE(LEE - (HE
FAERTFEAMANTEES) - NMEEWEZA
FER - HRERRABERS RERERS -

R-E-—NOF+—A=+—H  AEENREME
NEBATFESEOFBNT

Fair value as at

31 December

Level 3 2014

R-ZB—NF

+=A=+-8

EIR HWAFE

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR%TR AR%T

Investment properties located in Zhengzhou, the PRC Rz AR B BB 95 & 1 2 15,683 15,683
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21. Investment property (Continued) 21,

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the year.

The above investment properties are depreciated on a straight-line basis,
taking into account their residual value, at the following rates per annum:

Buildings 2.71%-317%
All the buildings are located in the PRC. The Group had not obtained

the relevant property certificates for buildings with a net book value of
RMB5,418,000 as at 31 December 2014 (2013: RMB5,696,000).

Annual Report 2014

BREWME #)
O R A S AR

P ERE MR R AR B E RN ERER
& RANERDT

EF 2.71%Z=3.17%

FIEEFIHMNRFEIRA - AEEEKERN -
—mFE+=A=+—HEREFEAR AR5 418,000
T(ZE—=%F : AR¥5696,0007T) WIEFHEY
EBREE -

22. Intangible assets 2 B EE

Software
B
RMB’000
ARET T

COST RS
At 1 January 2013 R-ZE—=%—HA—H 12,439
Additions INE 1,493
At 31 December 2013 R-TE—=F+_-_H=+—H 13,932
Additions INE 2,156
At 31 December 2014 R_ZE—NF+=-_A=+—8H 16,088

AMORTISATION b3
At 1 January 2013 R-_ZE—=F—H—H 5,758
Provided for the year FREAE 2,107
At 31 December 2013 R—ZE—=F+=-FA=+—H 7,865
Provided for the year FE R B 2,488
At 31 December 2014 R-EBE—NFE+=-_A=+—H 10,353

CARRYING VALUES BREE

At 31 December 2013 R-E—=%+—-H=+—H 6,067
At 31 December 2014 R-E—WNF+_HA=+—H 5,735

Software has a definite useful life and is amortised on a straight-line basis
over three to five years.

FHEEENEAFR R=ERFANEREE
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ=—Z—NFE+—-A=+—HIFE
23. Investments in associates 23. REFE N R 2 RE
2014 2013
— 2=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETT
Cost of investments in unlisted associates RIEETEE QA 2R ENAR 394,392 390,392
Share of post-acquisition profits and other AR R =TI R E A
comprehensive income, net of dividends received 2EWA - K E RS 12,404 5,691
406,796 396,083
As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, the Group had interests in the HE—_ T NFEER-_ZFT—=F+-A=1+—H1F"
following associates: REBR A THE & A AR e
Proportion of
Place of nominal value Proportion of Principal
Name of entity registration of registered capital voting power held activities
EREH it {hEMEAREELH ERBRARELH TEEK
2014 2014
—E2-mF 2 —E-DmE
BN RER R IRS RO AR A The PRC 34% 34% 34% 34%  Aftermarket services
ZMJ Suda Parts and Services Co., Ltd. i E% R
E5 (L) REREESBRAR The PRC 49.18% 49.18% 49.18% 49.18%  Equity investment
Hua Xuan (Shanghai) Equity Investment Fund Co., Ltd. H and financial
management
BRARE K
HBER
EIMEH OIF) Rl REERAR The PRC 38% 38% 38% 38%  Manufacture of parts
ZMJ (Jiangxi) Comprehensive Equipment Co., Ltd. H HETH
NARBEEE®EEET I RRERAR The PRC 31% 31% 31% 31%  Manufacture of
Datong Coal Mining Group Zhongbei i machinery
Electromechanical Equipment Machinery Co., Ltd. EERR
ER SRS SEEAROERAR The PRC 35% 35% 35% 35%  Manufacture of
Xinjiang Kerui ZMJ Heavy Machinery Co., Ltd. A machinery
HEEEHE
BRISERERRER AR The PRC 47.5% 47.5% 47.5% 475%  Manufacture of
Heilongjiang Zhenglong Coal Mining Machinery Co., Ltd. H machinery
HEER
BB R R REE AR AT The PRC 49% 49% 49% 49%  Manufacture of parts
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Special Forging Pressing H EETH

and Manufacturing Co., Ltd.

SRR TERITERAR The PRC 40% /A 40% NA  Manufacture of parts
Shanghai Zhengan Mine Engineering Technology Co., Ltd & NEF TER  EETH
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23. Investments in associates (Continued) 23. REE DRI 2 RE )
Aggregate information of associates that are not &Rl =

NN
N

individually material

WREALBEATSEE

2014
—F-mE —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETIT
The Group’s share of profit (0ss) AEEDEREF(EE) 18,130 (11,740)
The Group’s share of other comprehensive expense AEEHHEMEEAX (10,467) -
The Group’s share of total profit (loss) and REB DR (EE) &
comprehensive income (expense) EERA(FX) 2% 7,663 (11,740)
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s interests REBRZFHE NS
in these associates ZEmREEARE 406,796 396,083
24. Investment in joint ventures 2. REELEZRE
2014 2013
—E-ImF —T—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREETIT
Cost of investment in unlisted joint venture: MRIELETEERE ZIREKA : 4,321 4,321
Share of post-acquisition profits and other DU EE 1R = T K E A
comprehensive income, net of dividends received Z2EEA - KRB RIS (840) (760)
3,481 3,561
As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, the Group had interests in the BE_ZTNFR=T—=F+=A=+—H1E"
following joint ventures: AEERATEEREHEAES

Proportion of
Place of nominal value Proportion of
Name of entity registration of registered capital voting power held

BEAH it it MEREEL A R RRELL A

ERM RS SERERAA The PRC 40% 40% 33% 33%
Huainan Allen West Electromechanical Equipment Co., Ltd

R EEERREREERAR The PRC 40% 40% 33% 33%
Huainan Shun Li Coal Mining Machinery Maintenance H
Co., Ltd

Principal
activities
TEER

Manufacture of
machinery
EERR

Manufacture of
machinery
EERR
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24. Investment in joint ventures (continued) 24, AL E S I8 )
ERNMELTEAZABOEGAE

Aggregate information of joint venture that are not
individually material

£t

The Group’s share of profit (loss) and comprehensive REFED (T (ER) &

2014 2013
—F-MF —F=%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARBFT

income ZEERA 91 91

Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's interests AEBNZERELEREE
in these joint ventures 2 R BREEARE 3,481 3,561

25. Available-for-sale investments 25 AtHEZRE
2014 2013
—ZE-mF ZE—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETTT
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong REE_ LT ZRAES 34,098 66,947
Unlisted equity securities (Note) I LM IRARE FH (FaE) 8,335 8,335
42,433 75,282
Analysed for reporting purposes as: TERMB DTN -

Non-current assets IEMENE E 42,433 75,282
42,433 75,282

Note: The above unlisted equity investments represent investments in unlisted
equity securities issued by private entities incorporated in the PRC. They are
measured at cost less impairment at the end of the reporting period because
the range of reasonable fair value estimates is so significant that the directors
of the Company are of the opinion that their fair values cannot be measured
reliably.

D B F ERERAIRE RN ERBEMRK 2R

BARRMETH ETRARSZRE - RERE
KBS MRER AR E 8 - FERATE
AR BEREAK - RAAANEFRAL
ATETEA R E -
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26. Deferred taxation 26. IEFEBLIE
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial B RBME - ARECHBERZOTHT ¢

reporting purposes:

2014 2013
—Z—MEF ==
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARKETTT
Deferred tax assets EEFIBE E 132,595 88,917
The following are the major deferred tax assets recognised and movements RAFERRAC EERERBEEREZFHNOT -

thereon during the year:

Bad debt Write-down Other Unrealized
provision of inventory  provision  Accruals profit Total
RERE GEME HBE EREX KBRS =i
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTT ARSTT ARETT ARETT ARBTT
The Group REE
At 1 January 2013 RZE—=F—F—H 49,658 1,591 1,010 16,126 2,840 71,225
Credit (charge) to profit or loss A E#zET A (FIER) 20,703 1,559 - (3,349) 877 19,790
Effect of change in tax rate MR E (768) - (280) (1,050) - (2,098)
At 31 December 2013 RNZE—=%F
+=-A=+—8 69,593 3,150 730 11,727 3,717 88,917
Credit (charge) to profit or loss A Ez s A (FIER) 50,522 300 550 (8,300) 606 43,678
At 31 December 2014 R-ZE—M4F
+=-—A=+—8H 120,115 3,450 1,280 3,427 4,323 132,595
At the end of each reporting period, the Group has the following REREHR - AREE TIARBERZARBATIE
unrecognised unused tax losses: 548 -
2014 2013
= —T—=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TR ARET T
Unused tax losses KRBT IEER 140,878 107,082
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in relation to the above tax Rt BB BB R ERIEEH IR A E T AR AR

losses due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. HRICHARA ©
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26. Deferred taxation (Continued) 26. IEFEBIIE ()
The expiry dates of the above unrecognised tax losses are as follow: LR ERBIEEE 2 ERBABHOT
2014 2013
— =%
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARBT T
31 December 2014 —E—NE+—-—A=+—H - 7,648
31 December 2015 —E—REFE+=-_A=+—H 10,616 10,616
31 December 2016 —E—REt+-_A=1+—H 6,583 6,583
31 December 2017 —E—+H+-_A=+—H 11,195 11,195
31 December 2018 —E—-N\F+=-A=+—H 71,040 71,040
31 December 2019 —E-NFt+-_A=1+—8H 41,444 -
140,378 107,082
27. Held to maturity investment 27. EEZEFHRE
2014 2013
=k —F=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETIT
Debt securities (Note) BEEES (M) 369,237 -
Analysed for reporting purposes as: TERBMDITAOT -
Non-current assets IERBNEE 369,237 -
Note: On 26 March 2014, the Company entered into the subscription agreement et RZZE—WFE=A=+7<H » ANAF]EESun Hung Kai

with Sun Hung Kai & Co. (BVI) Limited and Sun Hung Kai & Co. Limited,
pursuant to which, the Company agreed to subscribe for the notes in the
principal amount of USD60,000,000, with a coupon rate of 3.0% per annum,
semi-annually payable in arrears. The notes will expire on 28 December

& Co. (BVI) Limited &2Sun Hung Kai & Co. Limited5] 32 3288
ek« BRI - AR F[EE R AN $ 58 460,000,000
ETTNERE  FEBXRAE30%  FEFUBNAR
ST EBRBR =T —tF+=A=+/\BHEm °

2017.

28. Finance lease receivable 28. R EHEEWFIE
2014 2013
—E-NE —T—=fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETIT
Current finance lease receivables BN R A T & R GRIE 7,831 -
Non-current finance lease receivables JEmEN A A & R GRIE 11,518 -

19,349 =
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28. Finance lease receivable (Continued) 28. RIEHEERE
HEZHE

AEEETREBRIEVEEELAE - MEHEEARA
RMEHEFHR=F -

Leasing arrangements

Certain of the Group’s equipments are leased out under finance leases. All
leases are denominated in RMB. The term of finance leases entered into is
3 years.

Amounts receivable under finance leases

R¥EHE -

Minimum lease payments
BEHEE AR

31/12/2014

—Z=—-mF
+=A
Sar=—Ig
RMB’000
AR%T R

31/12/2013
—E—=F
+=A
= =
RMB’000
ARBT T

Annual Report 2014

R IE (18)

RMEHER TR FKIE

Present value of minimum
lease payments

REAENREE

31/12/2014
—=—-mF
+=A
Sar=1g
RMB’000
ARETT

31/12/2013
—E—=F
+=A
= =
RMB’000
ARBT T

Not later than one year TRR—F 8,689 - 7,831 -
Later than one year and not later than B —F R TNER
five years hE 12,165 - 11,518 -
Less: unearned finance income B ABEERE R N/A N/A
(1,505) - TEA TERA
Present value of minimum lease RIEHAERIRFIE
payments receivable HE 19,349 - 19,349 -

Unguaranteed residual values of assets leased under finance leases at the
end of the reporting period are estimated at RMB1 (31 December 2013:
Nil).

The interest rate inherent in the leases is fixed at the contract date for
the entire lease term. The average effective interest rate is approximately
5.54% (31 December 2013:Nil) per annum.

Finance lease receivable balances are secured over the equipment leased.
The Group is not permitted to sell or repledge the collateral in the absence
of default by the lessee.

The finance lease receivables at the end of the reporting period are neither
past due nor impaired.

RBERR  RREHELENEENEERE
HREEGEFASARBIT(ZE—=F+-A=1—
B )

THEMEZ BXRANBETE  ERNBERE
HY o P ERRERRL) B554%( - B—=F+—
=t+—H:#&)-

ﬂﬁﬁhﬁ% IR AEER AT BRI TR FE (R - A%
BHEABEANLEEZOS DS BEMPERS -

RBEHR -
=0

& 10 B e MR TR I £ J8 A O R ORR
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29. Long-term receivable 29. REIEIRIA
2014 2013
—Z-mF —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETIT
Long term receivable due from customer (Note 1) FEY R B HA e U oE (Bt RE) 68,649 -
Less: Long-term receivable due within 1 year B —FAEE 2 RARENGRIE (31,919) -
Long-term receivable due after 1 year —FREH 7 REE WA 36,730 -
The amount is expected to be received as follows: FRIE TEHA A LA T B R URER
Within 1 year 1R 31,919 -
Over 1 year but less than 2 years HBiE1F R DR2E 24,842 -
Qver 2 years but less than 5 years BB {H RS 11,888 -
68,649 -
Note 1: The balance represents long term receivable from a customer. The amount is MiEE! : RAERIEBRER—REF 2 RAEWGRIE ° %K
interest free and repayable in 5 semi-annual instalments of EUR1,818,000 HAEESAAIAHNREBEFEE  SHESE
gach, starting from 22 March 2015. 1,818,0008T - =T —HFE=A=-+_—HHK -
30. Inventories 30. 7&
2014
—E—{F T—=4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETIT
Raw materials and consumables R FOE R 334,624 326,293
Work in progress F K 235,258 331,574
Finished goods =K 879,290 981,491
1,449,172 1,639,358
31. Loan receivables from an associate N. B —REERATER
2014 2013
—E-mF —EB—=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TT ARBT T
Analysed for the reporting purpose as: TEMBMAITAOT -
Current portion — variable-rate loan receivables mENE D — FBFIREUE K
(Note) (PH&E) 80,000 50,000
Note:  The balance as at 31 December 2014 represented loan receivables from s RZZF—mF+_A=+—8 ' Z&BERKA
the Group's associate Heilongjiang Zhenglong Coal Mining Machinery Co., SEBENRREINEXBEERERARIZE
Ltd., which were denominated in RMB, unsecured and will be repaid within R ZERAARERE - EEKR - UER+TZ
twelve months. The balance carried interest rate ranging from 90% to BARERE - ZERZRNTHEARRITEER

100% of the People’s Bank of China Benchmark Rate. RI0%ZE100%:T & ©
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32. Trade and other receivables

Annual Report 2014

2. EFREMEWRIE
2014 2013
= —T—=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETT

Bills receivable e EE 868,628 620,304
Trade receivables =) e 4,093,423 4,215,037
Less: allowance for doubtful debts R REREE (788,058) (439,475)
4,173,993 4,395,866

Prepayments to suppliers R R TR FRIE 155,547 261,021
Deposits Sli< 6,720 9,812
Other tax recoverable EAb A Ug B 5 IE 7,827 47
Staff advances ==k 5,915 3,776
Dividend receivable JEUIRZ 2, 950 -
Others Hith 7,917 11,659
Less: allowance for doubtful debts B RIREHE (5,118) (6,739)
179,758 279,576

Total trade and other receivables B REMEWFIESFT 4,353,751 4,675,442

The Group generally allows a credit period of 180 days to its customers.
The credit period provided to a customer can vary significantly based on a
number of factors, including the Group’s relationship with the customer,
the customer’s credit profile and payment history, total contract value and
market conditions. The following is an aged analysis of bills receivable and
trade receivables net of allowance for doubtful debts presented based on
the invoice date at the end of each reporting period:

AEBE-—RETEPZEEHRIBOX - 8 TEF
ZIEEMAERZBERERMERBRER - BREARE
BEEF ZBE BEPZERRRENKTE &
MBERTR - AT REREPRZEZBHZ7)
2 FEMWRIE & B 5 e WA IR R B B 1R 2 ARk
DT

2014

—E-ImF

RMB’000

AR¥TF T
Within 180 days 180K A 2,056,574 2,741,729
Over 180 days but within 1 year BE180KB1FR 901,361 860,480
Over 1 year but within 2 years BB FE2FER 938,720 721,874
Over 2 years within 3 years HBIB2FEIFN 277,338 71,783
4,173,993 4,395,866
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32. Trade and other receivables (Continued) 32. EZ R HAEWFIE 5)

In determining the recoverability of trade receivables, the Group considers
any change in the credit quality of the trade receivables from the date
credit was initially granted up to the reporting date. The Group closely
monitors the credit quality of trade receivables and considers trade
receivables that are neither past due nor impaired to be of a good credit
quality.

Most of the Group’s customers are major coal mining enterprises in the
PRC. The Group will monitor and review the credit conditions of the coal
mining enterprises on a timely basis. In the opinion of the directors of the
Company, the Group has no significant credit risks because most of the
Group’s customers are coal mining enterprises that have good reputation
and/or have long term relationship with the Group.

Aging of trade receivables which are past due but not
impaired

HHEE B 5 RUGRIAZ A @R IER - NEEE B E
SREFECEAEERRVEHEEE AERER
HIEAR] < (ML - REEE I ERE SRR
MEEEE  URRESEEFEREAH AR
B EEEEBR -

AEBARHDEP RTPEEERKLNF - NEESK
BREERNEHZIRRREARZEERBR - ARF
EERR - AREUESREERR - RERAE
BAHAFFPHEERI - Rk HEAEEE R
BRI -

EBHMERRIE 2 B 5 BRI

2014 2013

—E-MF —F=F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TT ARBT T

Over 180 days but within 1 year HBIE180KEBIFERA 667,296 407,886
Over 1 year but within 2 years WBBIFE2FR 661,018 648,649
Over 2 years within 3 years HBB2FEIFN 277,338 71,783
1,605,652 1,128,318

The Group has provided fully for all receivables over 3 years because
historical experience is such that receivables are past due beyond 3 years
are generally not recoverable.

The Group did not provide an allowance on the remaining past due
receivables as there has not been a significant change in credit quality
and the amounts are still considered recoverable based on the historical
experience and subsequent settlement. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances.

REEDH3F A LRBFIAREAIRER - BS
RIBE L KR E B B3F 2 BUGHURE — R EA W
8] -

REEN Eh e T B RIRR IR E - REZ
ERESETEEANE AERNBELRRERLE
HREFRDRG R E o NEEY B AL
B AEAERS o
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32. Trade and other receivables (Continued) 32. EZ R HAEWRIE 5
Movement of allowance for doubtful debts on trade and B 5 N E b EW IR 2 RERE &

other receivables

2014
—E-IF
RMB’000
AR%TR
Opening balance FEAEEER 446,214 314,589
Provided for the year FREAE 348,071 131,625
Write off Ji (1,109) -
Closing balance FREERS 793,176 446,214
Included in the allowance for doubtful debts of the Group are individually RZZE—mWFE+=—A=+—H st AXEERE
impaired trade receivables with an aggregate balance of RMB404,372,000 BB FEAERNEREER ZEWFIE - &R
as at 31 December 2014 (2013: RMB174,687,000), which have been HAARKA04372000c(ZE—=F : ARK
placed in significant financial difficulties. The Group holds no collateral 174,687,0007T) + 7% E 5B A M BR 8 A B 7% (R 2
over these balances as at 31 December 2014. As at 31 December 2013, BAR R-Z—EOF+-_A=+—10 ' ~5E
the Group held collateral of RMB25,198,000 and provided fully for the WEFEZEEH TR R —=F+=
balances that exceeds the amount of the collateral. RA=+—0  AEEREZEEH 2 ERMmARE
25,198,0007T * I B BB B IR i & 58 2 AR TR EL
FTIRHEE o
33. Other financial assets 3B HMEHMEE
2014 2013
—F-mF —T—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR AREETTT
Structured deposit (Note) B TF IR (M EE) 505,000 655,815
Note: Other financial assets as at 31 December 2014 represented the structured Wit : R=ZZT—WF+=-A=+—H HEthe@mEEAR
deposits with certain banks in the PRC carrying variable expected interest rate & THEMNRITHEBETR - BEZEFH X
ranging from 3.60% to 4.51% per annum and maturity period of three or six NF3.60%%E4.51% * HARA=EAHKMEA -

months.
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34. Bank balances and cash/pledged bank deposits

Bank balances and cash of the Group comprise cash and short-term bank
deposits. The bank balances carry interest at market rates which range
from 0.35% to 3.25% per annum as at 31 December 2014 (2013: 0.35%
to 3.25% per annum).

34.

BITHEBERE CERARTER

AEBIRITHRGEIIES BIERS REHRITER
IRITHEBRIEMISHEGE RZT—WmFE+ = A
=+—H8  FHESBNF03H5%E3B%(=ZF
—=4F : FHIE0.35%Z%3.25%) °

2014 2013

—2-JmE —T=F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T ARETFT

Cash BRe 493 304
Bank deposits with original maturity within three months ~ [R 2l HA B /& 31 A sk bA T~ 2 $R17

or less 75K 1,821,164 2,046,130

Cash and cash equivalents HeERBESZEED 1,821,657 2,046,434

Bank deposits with original maturity over three months ~ [REIHA B /&31E A LA £ 2 R177F K 546,657 610,000

Bank balances and cash IRITEBREIRE 2,368,314 2,656,434

Pledged bank deposits represent deposits pledged to banks to secure bank
acceptance bills and letters of guarantee and short-term bank loans and
are therefore classified as current assets. The pledged bank deposits carry
interest at market rates which range from 0.35% to 3.25% per annum as
at 31 December 2014 (2013: 0.35% to 3.25% per annum).

DI IRRITIE R IR TR FEZ R R s AN S HASR 1T
BEZRES  BAUREIBEARBDEE - D HKIF
IRITERIEMISHEGE RZT—WmF+=A
=t+—HB  FHENT035%E3.5% 2 HE(=F
—=1F : FFIE0.35%ZE3.25%) °
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35. Trade and other payables 35. ES R HMENFIE
2014 2013
—F-mF —T—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T R AREEFIT
Bills payable JERTRIR 418,224 227,961
Trade payable (Note i) B 5 R E () 1,310,389 1,605,127
1,728,613 1,833,088
Salary and bonus payables [ENTEERS 68,403 118,670
Amount due to a non-controlling shareholder FES — KT B A Bl — & FEFERR
of a subsidiary (Note ii) A% 3R k38 (B i) 112,600 114,600
Deposits (Note iii) &1 (B i) 27,724 20,092
Deferred income to be recognised within one year (Note iv) —4F PSR Z EIE WA (PR =Eiv) 10,678 14,558
Other taxes payable E b T IE 19,255 50,409
Accruals and other payables (Note v) Ta bR R H e A< 3R IE (P 5Ev) 71,374 71,991
2,044,647 2,223,408
Notes: FI5E
) Trade payables and bills payable comprise amounts outstanding for trade ) EBISENFBERENEREFEEMAEZIEBE MK
purchase. Payment terms with suppliers are mainly on credit within 90 days B2 o MEERNRZHRERES B HERK
from the time when the goods are received from suppliers. The following is an B EYHBET0 A AEER o AT ARSRERIZE
aged analysis of bills payable and trade payables presented based on invoice EHBZYZ ENRIRERE S RN FTIERE DT :

date at the end of each reporting period:
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35. Trade and other payables (Continued) 3. ES R HMENRE®)
2014 2013
—2-JmE —T=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETIT
Within 90 days 90K A 626,664 874,083
Over 90 days but within 1 year BB B FER 770,613 658,100
Over 1 year B4 331,336 300,905
1,728,613 1,833,088
i) The balance represents the amount due to a non-controlling shareholder i) RASERTEFE(T EPEEME SR ST AR — B FEIE IR AR AR 2 3K
of ZMJ Shun Li Machinery. The amount is unsecured, interest-free and 18 o ZRIEREER - £ S BAKRERER -

repayable on demand.

i) Deposits represent the deposits received from suppliers for transportation and i) FIEIEMEERATKREER R MR ZF]E
other services.

iv)  Deferred income to be recognised within one year represents the government v R —FARRZEERAEBAREEFGE THITE
subsidies received by the Group towards certain research projects. The B Fr U ERER AT B © 2 R BAR (EIRE YA B 155
amount has been treated as deferred income and will be transferred to BEREER ZWA

income for the relevant projects.

v)  Accruals and other payables mainly consist of payables for the acquisition v TBEREREMESREZZCEARBEYE BE
of property, plant and equipment, rental payables and payables for other R 2 BN FRIE - NS R E At AR TS 2 FET 5K

services. 15 o
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36. Borrowings 36. B E
2014 2013
=F—mF —T=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T R AREEFIT
Bank loans RITER 97,170 136,050
Secured (Note) AR () 97,170 97,550
Unsecured i - 38,500
97,170 136,050
Variable-rate borrowings FENEREE 97,170 136,050
Note: The balance as at 31 December 2014 represented the bank loan of Wik : REZT—WFE+Z A=+ —HZESRIEPRHRTT
USD15,880,000 borrowed from Bank of China Paris Branch carrying effective B 225 17.215,880,000%€ TLIRITE K * B F A
interest rate at 2.3% plus London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) per %2.3% M BERITRZESF S ([LBOR]) » LAARY
annum, pledged by cash deposit of RMB20,000,000. 20,000,0007T 2 B2 & 17 sRAEHE AR o
2014
—Z—MF T—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T R AREETIT
Carrying amount repayable: FEEEREE -
Within one year —FR 97,170 136,050
The ranges of effective interest rates (which are also equal to contracted AEBEEERFE(ZRNETOFER) 2 &E 0
interest rates) on the Group’s borrowings are as follows: T
2013
—= —F—=
RMB’000
ARETR AREETIT
Effective interest rate B A=
Variable-rate borrowings FEFIEEE 2.7% 10 6.0%

2.6% 2.7% £ 6.0%
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37. Other non-current liabilities 37.

Deferred income over one year

1B —F ZIERRA

HttFRBaE
2014 2013
—2-JmE —T=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARBET T

17,163 20,491

In 2009, the Company received a government subsidy of RMB19,970,000
in respect of construction of its new plant. In March 2012, ZMJ Shun Li
Machinery received a government subsidy of RMB10,506,000 in respect
of construction of its new plant. The amounts are recognised as deferred
income and transferred to profit or loss over the useful lives of the relevant

REZZZNE - NEEFRIETRE W R
& AR%19,970,000T - R ——F =1 - &K
TR T M B R IS R W B BUS B & A R
10,506,0007T ° %% & BB R AELEWA - R
BHEEZAMERAFENEREEL -

assets.
38. Share capital 38. R4
Listed A Shares Listed H Shares Total
LHAR LR st
Number of Number of Number of
share Amount share Amount share Amount
R #E x| RH#E kx.] i Ex.]
'000 RMB'000 '000 RMB'000 '000 RMB'000
TH ARETT TH ARETT TH ARETT
At 1 January 2013, R=F—=F—F—H"
31 December 2013 and 2014 ~ —F—=FR-_T—F
+-fA=+—H 1,377,888 1,377,888 243,234 243,234 1,621,122 1,621,122
Except for the currency in which dividends are paid, H Shares and A BRETER B 2 EBIN - HRRARES T EBZE
Shares rank pari passu in all respects with each other. [RSEHNL ©
39. Capital commitments 39. EARAEE
2014 2013
—E-mF —T—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFT

Capital expenditure in respect of acquisition of property, B 25 41{B R IE4R S B ERE

plant and equipment contracted for but not provided

BBz AREEDE  BE

in the consolidated financial statements KEERE 7 BERNFY 56,085 37,178

Capital expenditure in respect of the acquisition of land 2 #5548 R &4y > B EEULEES T b
use right authorized but not contracted for FREZERFES 25,911 25,911
81,996 63,089
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40. Operating leases 40. REHE
The Group as lessee NEBVEREMEA
2014
—E2-mF
RMB’000

AR®TT

Minimum lease payments paid under operating leases ~ FERIBELLHAEL 2

2013
—T—=F
RMB’000
ARETTT

during the year: SEBERMZK

— Land — b 5,224 5,224
At the end of each reporting period, the Group had commitments for future REREHR - ANEBFER TFIEREE|E 2 T
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases which H R E M A A RFERE T FURIE -

fall due as follows:

2014 2013
—E-IF ZT—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARKETTT
Within one year —FR 5,224 5,224
In the second to fifth years inclusive F_EERF(BRERERSE) 20,894 20,894
Over five years AFELAE 47,011 52,235
73,129 78,353

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for KEBENREARRERE (SRS THRER 218

certain parcels of land that it occupies. The leases are negotiated for terms & o MARETEFHR20F ©

of 20 years.
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40. Operating leases (Continued) 40. KEHE»
The Group as lessor AEEEREEA

Property rental incomes earned was RMB8,469,000 for the year ended
31 December 2014 (2013: RMB6,560,000). The leases are negotiated for
terms of 1 year to 8 years.

Equipment rental incomes earned was nil for the year ended 31 December
2014 (2013: RMB33,000,000). The equipment rental lease was
negotiated for a term of 2 years.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group had contracted with tenants
for the following future minimum lease payments:

HE-_ZT-—NFE+_A=1+—HILEE - FiRY
EHSWA B ARKES 469,000t (—ZE—=4F : A
R #6,560,0007T) ° AR TE FHAR1F R8T -

HE-_ZT-—NFE+-_A=1+—HILEE - FIHREGR
BHEWAASZTIL(ZZE—=4F : AR%33,000,000
JL) o B ERTE FHAF -

REREHR  AEBREBFITHZ A RKIEHR
FWT

2014 2013
—E-mF —ET—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T

ARMET T

Within one year —FE R 4,638 7,279
In the second to fifth years inclusive FEFAF(RREEEME) 8,666 11,184
More than 5 years AFAE 17,584 19,704
30,388 38,167
41. Retirement benefit plans M. EREHEE

The Group’s full-time employees in the PRC are covered by a government-
operated defined contribution pension scheme, and are entitled to a
monthly pension from their retirement dates. The PRC government is
responsible for the pension liability to these retired employees. The Group
is required to make annual contributions to the retirement scheme at
a rate of 20% of employees’ basic salaries, which are charged as an
expense when the employees have rendered services entitling them to the
contributions and the contributions are due.

During the year, the total amounts contributed by the Group to the scheme
in the PRC and charged to the profit or loss:

Amounts contributed and charged to the profit or loss

EFHYNBE X 2 SRR

AEEHEEBEEFARFEEZ EBHIE
KREBZRE - AEARKZAEEAZARNK
T PEBNFAEAZFRANERBTEAEER
T - ARERIZEBEART S Z20%AR K BIE
HERER - BESEHNESRHBERTESZ
FHF 2 R REFBIZ AR

RAEE - AEEE RS ERAENEFEL AT
HHEE - MEFSEDRNBREN

2014
—s-mE
RMB’000
ARMT

58,759

2013
—F=fF

RMB'000
ARETTT
57,816
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42. Related party transactions 2. BRLERS

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the parent of the Company
is Henan SASAC of the PRC government and that the Group is subject to
the control of the PRC government. In accordance with IAS 24, entities
that are controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced by the PRC
government (“PRC government related entities”) are regarded as related
parties of the Group. Due to the complex ownership structure, the PRC
government may hold indirect interests in many companies. Some of
these interests may, in themselves or when combined with other indirect
interests, be controlling interests which may not be known to the Group.
Nevertheless, the Group represented that the following captures the
material related parties taking into account the exemption under IAS 24.

(1) The Group and Henan SASAC

The Group has transactions with entities controlled, jointly controlled
or significantly influenced by Henan SASAC (“Henan SASAC related
entities”) and the transactions details are as follow:

ARREERA  AABZE AR ATEBTAE
EHEEZ - MAKEXPEBGES - REBEFRS
FHERIZE245E - SR BIBATES - KFEEHIREKR
FEZER(TEBSARER DR AR EE
RAR T - ERNEMZ EARGE  TEBFAIRS
RARFSAMERER - BTRESEAETHEHA
HAFE S S Ot - ATRE B AR E R AT 2
RS o A ARERM - 5 RER SR
AWz % - TXHINBAEAREHTT

(1) NEE o mEERES

AEEREAREDEER  HFAEHSE
yerap(AnsRaEEmER)EaR
SER - HERDZEEMT :

2014 2013
—ZE—MEF —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBFIT

Sales of finished goods $HEEK M 712,593 476,475
Purchase of raw materials FREE R R 645,486 780,935

For the years ended 31 December 2014, revenue from Henan SASAC
related entities accounted for 11.6% of total revenue (2013: 5.9%),
and purchases from Henan SASAC related entities accounted for
12.7% of total cost of sales (2013: 12.5%).

The details of outstanding balances with Henan SASAC and Henan
SASAC related entities are set as follow:

Amount due from Henan SASAC related entities

HE-_ZT-—NE+-_A=1+—BItFE K7
A BE R AR TR 2 WasE B E11.6%
(ZF—=%F :59%) ' MRBAEEREEZNA
B KB EHENT127%(=ZE—=
& 1 12.5%) °

BRAMARER I AEEEERARER
RERGHRFREINDOT

2014 2013
—F-mE —T—=

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TR ARBTT

FEUCT R B EZEHE R
Z A

61,600 63,614

Amount due to Henan SASAC

R ABERELR 2R 2,459 2,459

Except for the amount due to Henan SASAC which is unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand, all the amounts due from
Henan SASAC related entities are from trade sales or purchases. The
outstanding balances with Henan SASAC and Henan SASAC related
entities have been included in note 32 and note 35, respectively.

BEMTEEEEZR 2 FAREERR 28K
AREBREEI  BETRERERBRAER
ZFAEFRL KA B HIHE SRS - WAmEE
BEZMABEBEERARERZREEER
2RI M 5E32 K Ff 5E 35 At
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42. Related party transactions (Continued)

@)

The Group and other PRC government related
entities

Apart from the significant transactions with Henan SASAC related
entities set out above, during the years ended 31 December 2014
and 2013, the Group’s transactions with other PRC government
related entities are collectively significant as a large portion of its
sales of goods, purchases of materials, most of bank deposits,
borrowings, other general banking facilities and the relevant interest
income earned and expenses incurred during the years ended
31 December 2014 and 2013 are transacted with banks owned/
controlled by the PRC government.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the transactions with
PRC government related entities are activities in the ordinary course
of the Group’s business and entered into under normal commercial
terms and conditions, and that the dealings of the Group have not
been significantly or unduly affected by the fact that the Group and
those entities are government related. The Group has also established
its approval process for sales of goods and purchases of materials
and its financing policy for borrowings, such approval process and
financing policy do not depend on whether the counterparties are
government related entities or not.

The Group and its associates and joint ventures

The Group had the following significant transactions with its associates
and joint ventures:

2. BB AERS ®)

()

AEBEA A EBFRETR

B EXETEENEE AR AR ERETCE
ARSI REBRBE_T—NFER_F
— =&+ A=t+—RALFEEEMPBRBUT
HREBETZRSGEHEBER - AENE
ECENER-_T—=F+_"A=+—H8It
FEZABHERBEE - VEHRE - KPHIR
IFH - BE - B —ARERTTRVE LA R B BREL
R BUA KD EAER % & B BT
FiiEs  AE s IR THITZ R 5 °

ARAREERS  REFHRTEBFARERE
TZRXHDHAKE 2 AEEFES » WIE—K
R GFRRIFMRTL - MAREETZERS
WEAAKEREZSERBRAEBKEN
XEEARTERE - ARETRERBEER
PMRRBRA MR T - U EERERER
R REFWUZEF RBEBERY TEURNR 5
HFREBBTHRER -

2014 2013
—F-mE —T=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARET T

Trade sales: BHIHE ¢
Associates i /NG 78,716 378,020
Joint ventures AENE 9,941 11,184
88,657 389,204

Trade purchases: B SR
Associates i /NG 110,041 64,172
Joint ventures BEDE 9,265 8,830
119,306 73,002
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42, Related party transactions (Continued) 2 BHRIERSE)
(3) The Group and its associates and joint ventures Q) ANEEEABE AR REERE
(Continued) (&)
The Group had the following outstanding balances with its associates RERER - AEBEHEEBE AR REGEE
and joint ventures at the end of each reporting period: HXBUTREEL
2014
—F-mE —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTIT
Amounts due from: JEU R & 5 508
Associates NG| 241,455 293,981
Joint ventures e E 1,285 2,080
242,740 296,061

Amounts due to:

R T OB TR

2014
—2-mE
RMB’000
ARBT R

2013
—z-=

RMB’000
ARMET T

Associates AN 31,044 10,055
Joint ventures aEhE 243 -
31,287 10,055
All amounts due from or due to associates and joint ventures FifE PR S FE B & A R R & & R 5 2 FUIA Y
are from trade sales. The outstanding balances with the Group’s REBHIHE - BASEBE N R REEBE

associates and joint ventures have been included in note 32 and note

35, respectively.

Remuneration of key management personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members of key
management were as follows:

ZARBEE AR D RIF KT ES2 e M 5358t

N
iE

@) FEEIE A BB

EERHEMTIEERABZMEMT :

2014 2013

—Z—MF —T—=fF

RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARBT T ARET T

Short-term benefits G HAR A 11,495 6,211
Post-employment benefits BRI 1,129 918
12,624 7,129
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42. Related party transactions (Continued)

(4) Remuneration of key management personnel
(Continued)

Key management represents the directors and other senior
management personnel disclosed in the annual report. The
remuneration of key management personnel is determined with
reference of the performance to individuals and market trends.

43. Contingent liabilities

During the year, the Group has endorsed and derecognised certain bills
receivable for the settlement of trade and other payables with full recourse.
In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the risk of the default in
payment of the endorsed bills receivable is low because all endorsed
bills receivable are issued and guaranteed by reputable PRC banks. The
maximum exposure to the Group that may result from the default of these
endorsed and derecognised bills receivable at the end of each reporting
period is as follows:

42.

43.

B AR S )
4) FEEEAEBS @)

TEREBABREFRTRBECESRAMS
REEAE - TEEBAB 2B THIRIREA
RAETIZBEETE -

HAREE

RAEE - AEBEAEERRIEHERE T RIKERE
ZHAAGEHAHEREZ B MEMBNFA -
ARBEERR HREEEZREERIHE
BRIFZPERITEHRIREER  BRAEEZ
ERREZABTA - REREMR - RNEEATAE
ARNZEEERR LR BRRREMARE L
RARBELIAT

2014 2013
—E—NF —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETTT
Outstanding endorsed bills receivable with recourse BEREZHAEBEDRE
FEU R 765,364 1,782,526

These endorsed and derecognised bills receivable have a maximum
maturity of 6 months, and the total undiscounted cash flows of these
endorsed and derecognised bills receivable, representing the Group’s
maximum loss if the issuing banks fail to honour their bills and guarantees,
amounted to RMB765,364,000 as at 31 December 2014 (2013:
RMB1,782,526,000).

ZEBERRIEER 2 RN EN SR E R LR A
NEA R—EB-ME+-_A=+—H ZE5=
KR IEHER 2 U IR R AR IR IR & R AR 58 A (w3
TIRITARRBEEEZZERERSEAEBA
R#765,364,000c sz mBE(ZT—=F : AR
1,782,526,0007T) °
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44, Subsidiaries 44. it B A 7l

General information of subsidiaries

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 December 2014 and 2013

are as follows.

A2 AR

R-E-—MNMER-_ZT—=F+—"A=+—H ' AR
AIB AR Z F BT »

Nominal value
Place of of issued and
incorporation/  fully paid up Proportion of ownership
establishment/  share capital/ interest and voting power
Name of subsidiary Principal activity operation registered capital held by the Group
MR BERTRHZRAR rEERERER
HEATERE TEER RYEEHEY FRERHE RAEEDL
2014
—E-mEF
%
Directly held:
BERE -
BINERREBIEGRAA (FiTa) Manufacture of hydraulic ~ The PRC RMB15,000,000 100.00 100.00
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Hydraulic products H A #15,000,0007%
Electrical Control Co., Ltd. (note a) EERBER
BN ER AR EER AR (Fia) Manufacture of mining ~ The PRC RMB100,000,000 68.89 68.89
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery machinery H 100,000,000
Comprehensive Equipment Co., Lid. (note a) A A FRARHE M
)RR S B A R AR AR Trading of raw materials ~ The PRC RMB10,000,000 100.00 100.00
(FiFa) and products e AE#10,000,00075
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group BHRERES
Material Trading Co., Ltd. (note a)
BINERRERRER AR (HiTa) Manufacture of mining ~ The PRC RMB50,000,000 53.21 53.21
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Longwall Face machinery H AR 50,000,0007T
Machinery Co., Ltd. (note a) TR
B S BN B A R AR Manufacture of mining ~ The PRC RMB50,000,000 54.00 54.00
(HiEa) machinery H A #50,000,00075
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group A E R
Lu An Xinjiang Co., Ltd. (note a)
BT AR B R AR Manufacture of mining ~ The PRC RMB78,600,000 57.97 57.97
(HiEa) machinery e A #78,600,00075
Huainan ZMJ Shun Li Machinery Co., Ltd. A E R
(note a)
SEEFEREERETAR Aftermarket service of ~ Russia USD100,000 100.00 100.00
(Fi=ED) mining machinery HES 100,000 7T
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Siberia R 1% RS

Co., Ltd. (note h)
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44, Subsidiaries (Continued)

General information of subsidiaries (Continued)

Name of subsidiary

HEBAREE

HEBERE S (B BRAR
ZMJ International Trading (Hong Kong)
Co., Ltd.

ZMJ Germany Gmbh(FffzEc) (notes c)

Indirectly held:
BEHE -

HINEHSRER AT
(T8 ER ) (Fftakd)
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Zhu Duan Co., Ltd.
(“ZMJ Foundry”) (notes a and d)

B BARAMM BB R A
(T EP AR L D) (FiEEaze)
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Gelin
Material Technology Co., Ltd.
(“ZMJ Gelin Material”) (notes a and e)

Principal activity

FEEK

Sale and purchase of
mining machinery

SHE KRR RE
Hm R

Sale and purchase of
mining machinery/
research and
development of
mining products

SHE KRR RE
/T
g

Sale of molding and
metal material

BAREBIHHE

Sale of molding and
metal material

BAREBIRHE

44. B~ 8] (&)
[ AR 2 —RREE )

Place of
incorporation/
establishment/
operation

ML
R E

Hong Kong
Bt

German

e
=[5

The PRC
hE

The PRC
hE

Nominal value

of issued and
fully paid up
share capital/
registered capital

BERTRBERE/
HEMEAMEE

USD7,500,000
7,500,00057C

EUR1,000,000
1,000,0008x 7T

RMB30,000,000
AR #30,000,0007T

RMB50,000,000
AR #50,000,0007T

Proportion of ownership
interest and voting power

held by the Group

AEBRERER
RAEEDL

100.00

100.00

55.26

100.00

100.00

100.00

55.26

100.00
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44. Subsidiaries (Continued)
General information of subsidiaries (Continued)

Notes:

(@  All these subsidiaries are enterprises established in the PRC. The English
names of these companies represent management’s best efforts to translate
the Chinese names of these companies as no English names have been
registered.

(b) ZMJ Siberia was established by the Company on 2 June 2011 in Russia.
The English name of this company represents management’s best effort to
translate the Russian name of this company as no English name has been
registered.

(c) ZMJ Germany Gmbh was established by the Company on 20 August 2013 in
Germany. The English name of this company represents management’s best
effort to translate the Germany name of this company as no English name has
been registered.

(d) ZMJ Foundry was established by the Company (38.60%) and the Company’s
subsidiaries including ZMJ Comprehensive Equipment (13.33%), ZMJ Shun Li
Machinery (3.33%) and other non-controlling interests in 2011 in the PRC.

(e) ZMJ Gelin Material was established by ZMJ Foundry, a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, on 28 January 2013.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of the
year.

Annual Report 2014

44. B A8 (%)
B ARz —MRER )
B 5E -

(@

ZEMBRARHAETBERILZ X - ZFARMN
RXEBRERERNHZEARNPXERED
RENRE - RS AR B MIRSCERE o

BREARNEREARANR-_E——F XA -HE
BRI - ZRRINAEX B RERER N HZ
RAIM A BEEL OB - FZA LB
BT o

ZMJ Germany Gmbh BARRIR =T —=F \A=1+H
FEEBKY - ZARINEXGRAERERNHZ
ARAKNERZBELAEIE - HZA R &R
XHTE o

BRI 55 58 5 7K 7 (38.60%) EE AN A Al Bt B A F) (B
TREDIE AT (13.33%) ~ BB BEAK T2 ST HEAR (3.33%) ) K2 &
fFEERE RN =T ——FEP KL ©

NIRRT R AR AR —RIEZ BB A F 0
BEBN —T—=F—A=+/\BKL °

MAER - BEMBARBETEAERES °
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45. ERAR QB MBARR KR ZER

45, Information about the statement of financial

position of the Company

2014 2013
—2-mE —F—=

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARETT

NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BENMKRE 1,303,898 1,270,113
Prepaid lease payments TEf b EFRIE 232,889 238,015
Investment properties BB 10,196 10,594
Intangible assets B AE 4,645 4,546
Investments in subsidiaries KB AR ZIEE 235,756 241,038
Investments in associates RSN B ZIRE 386,282 375,697
Available-for-sale investments A HEZIRE 8,335 8,335
Deferred tax assets EEFTEE E 113,133 69,418
Held-to-maturity investments HHEIHRE 369,237 -
Finance lease receivables A& & W EIE 11,518 -
Long term receivables REAFEWGRIE 36,730 -
2,712,619 2,217,756
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Prepaid lease payments A LSRR 5,236 5,233
[nventories =& 1,184,836 1,285,105
Trade and other receivables B 5 Rk B A FE W R IR 3,976,502 4,232,416
Finance lease receivables B & & e E 7,831 -
Long term receivables within one year —FAEIER R EE WA 31,919 -
Loan receivables from subsidiaries FEUSHT B A R B - 60,000
Loan receivables from an associate FEUR—REE & N B E K 80,000 50,000
Other financial assets e &EE 505,000 655,815
Tax recoverable AT U Bl IE 7,234 -
Pledged bank deposits EIHIFIRITIER 210,117 280,110
Bank balances and cash IRITEBR LIRS 2,274,196 2,546,921
8,282,871 9,115,600
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Trade and other payables B 5 R EAMFERFRIE 1,616,413 1,725,669
Advances from customers XFEEE 367,564 480,837
Tax liabilities HRIEEE - 24,320
1,983,977 2,230,826
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEFE 6,298,894 6,884,774
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES BEERRBERE 9,011,513 9,102,530
CAPITAL AND RESERVES B R #E
Share capital [N 1,621,122 1,621,122
Share premium &R E 3,409,354 3,409,354
Reserves (Note) s (MIaE) 3,974,380 4,062,069
Equity attributable to owners of the Company AARRE(HE R 9,004,856 9,092,545
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FkREBEE
Other non-current liabilities HitnIEmeasE 6,657 9,985
6,657 9,985




For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE—Z—NF&+ A =+—HI-FE

45, Information about the statement of financial

position of the Company (Continued)

Note:

Reserves

Balance at 1 January 2013 R-—ZT—=5—H—H
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45. SRR RMBIRR TR ZER ()

B
B

Statutory
surplus Other
reserve reserves
HAibf#EE
RMB’000
ARKEFT

Retained
earnings Total
REER A%
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT AREBFTT

ARG
RMB’000
ARETT

2 EER 417,994 32,902 3,246,747 3,697,643
Profit and total comprehensive income FREHN k2 EWRAEE
for the year - - 850,763 850,763
Transfer R 85,076 - (85,076) -
Dividends (note 17) A% & (Bt £517) - - (486,337) (486,337)
Balance at 31 December 2013 R-_E—=F+—A
=t+—BAz&H 503,070 32,902 3,526,097 4,062,069
Profit and total comprehensive income FRHEFREEBALE
for the year - - 170,263 170,263
Other comprehensive expense for the year £ A E b 2 E B 52 = (10,467) - (10,467)
Contribution from the parent of the Company ZxA @& AFLTE = 20,000 - 20,000
Transfer R 17,026 - (17,026) -
Dividends (note 17) A% & (Bt 5E17) - - (267,485) (267,485)
Balance at 31 December 2014 R-ZT—NF+—H
=t+—RAz&H 520,096 42,435 3,411,849 3,974,380
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Summary Financial Information

MBEERE

Summary Financial Information of the Company prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”)

RERMEHRSENRROARRNMBESRE

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
=L —T =F —F-f ¥ —F ZFTF
Revenue and profit: RMB millions RMB millions RMB millions RMB millions RMB millions
W AFIFIE NGVl AREBEET ARKBERT AREAERT AREAER
Revenue A 6,124.46 8,055.31 10,212.85 8,060.08 6,358.31
Profit before tax BRTRE 232.58 1,003.67 1,910.93 1,421.03 1,064.36
Income tax expense FSHER (39.25) (166.69) (297.39) (207.78) (171.57)
Profit for the year RNEFFHE 193.33 836.98 1,613.54 1,213.25 892.79
Profit for the year attributable to: AEEFERE
Owners of the Company KARIER A 205.19 866.71 1,589.15 1,194.06 882.57
Non-controlling interests FEERR RS (11.86) (29.79) 24.39 19.19 10.22
Earnings per share (RMB) FREF(AREIT) 0.13 0.53 1.12 0.85 0.71
Assets and liabilities: BEHEARE
Non-current assets ERENEE 3,135.66 2,661.52 2,554.58 1,926.76 1,374.42
Current assets MENEE 9,060.22 9,989.92 10,452.06 8,508.73 7,678.73
Current liabilities mEAE 2,594.92 2,948.77 3,579.97 4,202.90 3,778.12
Net current assets MENVEEF5 6,465.30 7,041.16 6,872.09 4,305.83 3,900.61
Total assets less current liabilities 484 EERRE
= 9,600.96 9,702.68 9,426.67 6,232.59 5,275.03
Non-current liabilities ERBAEE 17.16 20.49 72.82 83.97 134.97
Net assets FEE 9,583.80 9,682.18 9,353.85 6,148.62 5,140.06
Total equity attributable to owners  ZX/A A% 5 fE(S
of the Company ey 9,432.32 9,518.85 9,160.78 5,874.08 4,995.02
Non-controlling interests R R 151.48 163.33 193.07 274.54 145.04

The financial data of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2010 and
2011 and information as to its financial position as at 31 December 2010 and
2011 are extracted from the Company’s prospectus dated 22 November 2012.

ARRBE_T—ZTEN"T——F+-H=+—HIt
FEEZHBEBUREN - E—TER T F+—
A=+—AMBHRAZER  HEEEARRAHAE=
T——F+— A+ _HAZRRERE-
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